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Introductory Section




NEPTUNE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

60 NEPTUNE BOULEVARD
Nzprung, NJ 07753-4836
‘TeLEPHONE: 732.776.2000

January 19, 2021

Honorable President and Members of the
Neptune Township Board of Education

60 Neptune Boulevard

Neptune Township

County of Monmouth, New Jersey

Dear Board Members and Constituents:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Neptune Township School District (the *District”)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy
of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the Board of Education, To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented
in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly
the financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information at June 30, 2020 and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended. All disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical and single audit, The introductory section includes this transmittal letter (designed to be read
in conjunction with management’s discussion and analysis), the District’s organization chart,
independent auditors and advisors, certificate of excellence in financial reporting, and a roster of
officials. The financial section includes Management’s discussion and analysis (presented immediately
after the report of independent auditors), the basic financial statements, required supplementary
information, supplementary and other information, as well as the auditors® report thereon. The
statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a
multi-year basis and is unaudited. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulation (CER) Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08,
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments.
Information related to this Single Audit, including the auditors’ report on internal control and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, if applicable, are
included in the single audit section of this report.




1. Reporting Entity and its Services

The District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB"). All funds and the government-wide financial statements of the District are
included in this report, The Neptune Township Board of Education with all its schools constitute the District’s
reporting entity and does not have any component units and is not considered a component unit of any other
governmental entity, The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels
Pre-K through 12. These include regular, vocational, as well as special education for handicapped students,
The District completed the 2019-2020 fiscal year with an average daily enrollment of 3,890 students. The
following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District ovet the last five years.

Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Student Percent
Year Enroliment Change
2020 3,890 (1.67)%
2019 3,956 (0.76)
2018 3,986 (4.39)
2017 4,169 (2.26)
2016 4,265 (0.81)

Comprehensive academic services are offered to all students beginning in preschool at the age of three and
continuing up to grade twelve. Preschool classes for approximately 441 youngsters [down 9 from the prior
'year] are housed in the Early Chifdhood Center as well as in four of the five neighborhood elementary schools
focated throughout the Township. Grades kindergarten through five enrolled 1,459 on average [down 26]
during the school year while the Neptune Middle School averaged 712 teenagers [down 11] in grades six
through eight and Neptune High School averaged 1,278 students [down 20] in grades nine through twelve.

The Neptune Township School District operates during the traditional school year from September through
June for 180 instructional days and supplements this with a 25-day summer program for students with special

education needs,

2. Economic Condition and Qutlook

A global economic crisis is looming as a result of the COVID-19 health pandemic. New Jersey, like every
other state in the union, is facing severe economic conditions likely not seen since the Great Depression of the
1930°s. Similarly, the world is facing a health-related crisis not seen since the Spanish Flu of 1918. As
Governotr Murphy raised concerns over exposure to this often fatal virus, schools in NJ were forced to close in
March and the academic year was completed via online instruction. Businesses of every sott were shuttered
in the wake of this viral contagion. The fiscal impact is far-reaching and a return to “normal” remains
uncertain,

As the school year labored to an end, the state and national economies were spiraling downward.
Unemployment rates rose to 14.7%, shedding 20.5 million jobs resulting in 38 million unemployment claims
filed since March 2020. Economists at the Congressional Budget Office are projecting a 39.6% decline in
economic activity and acknowledging that a recession is upon us.




This time last year, New Jersey witnessed an unemployment rate of a mere 3.5% with nearly 50,000 new jobs
created during that year and an increase in the minimum wage to $11 per hour. Currently, the state is facing
massive revenue shortfalls from all sources as it approaches what is traditionally a June 30 year end. In an
effort to mitigate this fiscal crisis, state lawmakers passed a temporary spending plan to keep the state’s budget
open through September 2020, This required borrowing $9.9 billion and cutting or delaying certain obligations
by $1.2 billion,

Generally, as the nation goes, so goes New Jersey. The tong-term forecast from the CBO has the economy
shrinking by 5.6% over the course of a year, Unemployment rates will hover around 16% until the end of
2020. The federal deficit will hit $3.7 trillion by the end of fiscal 2020. By contrast, the 2019 deficit was $984
billion. The national debt is currently at $26.5 trillion. These trends are deleterious to the state and local
economies and their impact will be long lasting.

3, Initiatives

Despite the tremendous challenges that the health pandemic has had on the last four months of the school year,
the overall District’s goal remains unchanged. The Neptune Township Board of Education along with its
administrative team maintain as its primary goal the continual academic improvement and success of the
student body. This success is partially measured by state and local assessments, The District continues to
employ a data-driven approach to interpreting the outcome of standardized testing and works to better align
curricula with state and national standards to ensure that the instructional program best serves the students of
the community. Results of standardized testing are shared with administration and targeted professional
development is created to address the needs of the learners and allows for review and revision to programs
implemented throughout the District. Data are shared with the public to ensure that all stakeholders are
informed.

On an annual basis, the Neptune Township Board of Education in conjunction with the Chief School
Administrator convene a meeting to formalize District goals. The 2020-2021 District Goals are enumerated
below:

« Provide a physically and socially / emotionally safe, secure, and responsive environment for students
and staff,

o Provide support for students and increase teacher capacity in the area of instruction. Address learning
gaps that stem from emergency pandemic school closure.

e Employ efficient and effective fiscal management practices.

e Promote the positive opportunities, accomplishments and work of the District.

o Utilize District technology resources / technology coaches to provide training for teachers in creating
unique and engaging learning experiences for students, both remotely and in-person.

Several of the above goals are catried forward from the prior year. Their weight and importance warrant a
continued and renewed focus for the ensuing school year,




4, Service Lfforts and Accomplishments

Over the years, the Neptune Township Public School District has developed professional associations with
other respected community organizations, many of which result in direct benefits to our students. Renewed
agreements with Brookdale Community College offer college level academic credit well before the students
formally graduate from high school. A “Dual Enrollment” option provides seniors in good academic standing
with the opportunity to earn up to six college credits at no cost to the student, The District and Brookdale
continue to support the more comprehensive Poseidon Early College High School program, This unique
alliance which is cost shared between the two institutions, enables select high school students to earn a
recognized Associates Degree from Brookdale while attending Neptune High School. The program is entering
its seventh year of operation and has successfully graduated three classes.

The District maintains a strong relationship with its neighbor, Hackensack Meridian Health Jersey Shore
University Medical Center, to provide practical and actual medical experiences from shadowing doctors to
observing live surgical operations. This partnership bolsters one of the various specialty academies that are
offered at Neptune High School. Numerous other community organizations offer structured learning
expetiences for students with disabilities which enhance their academic and real-world experiences. Exposure
to varied growth opportunities may ultimately help in post-high school career decisions.

5, Major Operational or Financial Concerns

Under “normal” conditions, funding for public schools in NI has become increasingly difficult due to the rate
of growth in educational expenses and a much slower rate of growth in supporting revenues. State aid to the
Neptune Township School District has been on a downward trajectory as the District continues to lose student
entollment. Starting in FY 2019, aid was reduced by $607,176. In the subsequent budget years the reductions
are $1.6 million and $2.8 million, respectively, Beyond FY 2021, the District will see further reductions of $2
million per year on average for at least three more years, This was the projected scenario pre-COVID. As
noted in the above Section 2, the condition of the State’s budget will likely result in additional reductions to
school funding,

While 38% of the District’s revenue comes from state aid, 47% is derived from the local taxpayers. The fiscal
burden of supporting the school budget is shifting each year toward the local property owners, Mechanisms
wete put into place several years ago to cap the amount of taxes that schools could raise each year by 2% of
the existing tax levy, In response to public outety, districts that wish to exceed the 2% levy increase must seek
voter approval, generally speaking. There are certain exceptions in the budget process that allow for higher
increases without a public vote, however as a responsible steward of public funds, limits must be respected.

School spending is driven principally by mandated and negotiated obligations such as salaries, health insurance
premiums, pupil transportation, and out-of-district tuitions. These four categories alone comptise the majority
of school budget appropriations, School officials must continually work to achieve a balance among the many
competing elements of the annual school budget.




6. Significant Budget Variances or Budget Modifications

School budget development and refinement is an ongoing process that occurs throughout the year with input
from many interested parties. Under the best of circumstances, there will be variations between budgeted
revenues and actual revenues; budgeted appropriations and actual expenditures, Account modifications are
regularly made to ensure that the district remains on course to finish the year in the black.

As a result of the March school shutdown, there were some noticeable variances in discretionary revenue
streams, as well as expenditures, On the revenue side of the ledger, income from the rental of District facilities
foll short of the mark as many dance groups that rent the Petforming Arts Center for spring recitals were locked
out. Conversely, miscellaneous revenue saw an unexpected, sizeable energy rebate several years after
conservation practices were instituted. Likewise, the District’s application for discretionary “Extraordinary
Aid” yielded more than $500,000 of what was originally budgeted. By the end of the school year, the District
generated slightly more revenue than budgeted.

In review of last year’s budgeted appropriations and final expenditures, most modifications were made to
salary accounts due to staff (tansfers, retirements and new hires. Other budget variations resulted from changes
in out-of-district tuition placements and underlying consultant services for students, particularly where
personal aides were required as part of a student’s individualized education plan (“IEP”). In response to the
health emergency, the District redirected some of its resources toward the acquisition of personal protective
equipment (“PPE™). A favorable budget surplus in the health insurance premium accounts allowed for
acquisition of additional student devices (laptops) to further the District’s one-to-one initiative. The District
again struggled as it tried to adequately gauge the fiscal impact of the newly created and expanding College
Achieve Charter School. Projected enrollments from the Department of Education as provided by the charter
school did not materialize, resulting in a sizeable unexpended account balance. Enrollment projections
continue to vary greatly resulting in further budget modifications.

7. Internal Control

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed to ensure
that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting
data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP®). Internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of
a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring that adequate
internal control is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs.
This internal contro! is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management. As part of the District’s
single audit described earlier, tests are made to evaluate the adequacy of internal control, including that portion
velated to federal awards and state financial assistance programs, as well as to evaluate the District’s
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.




8. Budgetary Confrols

In addition to internal control, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the voters of the municipality, The Board of Education of Neptune Township approves modifications to
the budget. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund and the special revenue fund. Project-length budgets
are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount
as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section, An encumbrance accounting system is used
to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line-item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either
canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year, Those amounts to be
reappropriated are reported as assignments of fund balance at June 30, 2020 in the basic financial statements.

9. Accounting Systems and Reports

The District’s accounting records reflect accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). The accounting system of the
District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in “Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements,” Note 1.

10. Other Information

A. Independent Audit: State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Wiss and Company, LLP was sclected by the full
Board of Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was
designed to meet the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08. The
auditors’ report on the basic financial statements and specific required supplementary information is included
in the financial section of this report. The auditors’ reports related specifically to the Single Audit are included
in the Single Audit section of this report,

B. Awards: The Association of School Business Officials (“ASBO”) awarded a Certificate of Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the District for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019. This was the twenty-fifth consecutive year that the District has received this prestigious award
and is the only District in the State of New Jersey to receive twenty-five consecutive awards. In order to be
awarded this certificate, the District published an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report satisfied both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
and applicable legal requirements. The Certificate is valid for a period of one year only.
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N Sy [l fens
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W’ WISS

A PARTNER TO GROW WITH

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Neptune Township School District

Neptune, New Jersey

County of Monmouth

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Neptune
Township School District, County of Monmouth, New Jersey (the “District”), as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards and
requirements require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2020, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability-
PERS, schedule of District pension contributions-PERS, schedule of the State’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability associated with the District-TPAF, schedule of the State’s proportionate
share of the net OPEB liability associated with the District and changes in the total OPEB liability
and related ratios — (PERS and TPAF) and budgetary comparison information as identified in the
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information such as the school based budget schedules, combining and individual fund financial
statements, and the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative
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Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants
and State Aid, respectively, and the other information, such as the introductory and statistical section
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The school based budget schedules, combining and individual fund financial statements and the
schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the school based budget schedules, combining and
individual fund financial statements and the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 19,
2021, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
Sat &, b

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

Waase 4 Cofrany

WISS & COMPANY, LLP
January 19, 2021
Florham Park, New Jersey
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis




Neptune Township School District
Neptune, New Jersey

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year ended June 30, 2020

The discussion and analysis of the Neptune Township School District’s (the “District”) financial
performance provides an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the year ended June
30, 2020. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance
as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements, notes and additional
information in the transmittal letter to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial
performance.

Management’s Discussion and Anatysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No.
34 - Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments. Certain comparative information between the current year and the prior year is
presented in the MD&A.,

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for fiscal year 2020 are as follows:

e The total net position of the District decreased $3,725,209 during the current fiscal year, which
was mostly atiributable to a decrease in state aid revenues.

¢ General revenues of $87,510,772 in combined governmental activities and business-type
activities accounted for 84% of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges
for services and operating grants and contributions accounted for $17,159,837 or 16% of total
revenues of $104,670,609, of which $102,762,642 pertained to governmental activities and
$1,907,967 pertained to business-type activities.

¢ The District generated fund balance in excess of 2% in the current year in the general fund in
the amount of $1,910,000.

o The District maintains restricted reserves for capital and maintenance of $8,757,165 and
$1,750,000, respectively in the general fund.

¢ The District followed GASB Statement No, 75 (GASB 75), Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the 2020 fiscal year
resulting in the recording of additional revenue and expense in the amount of $3,536,725
related to post-employment health benefits,
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Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of basic financial statements and notes to those statements.
These statements are organized so the reader can understand the Neptune Township School District
as a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to offer an increasingly
detailed look at specific financial activities. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an
introduction to the District’s basic financial statements. The three components of the District’s basic
financial statentents are: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the basic financial statements, The CAFR also contains required and other supplementaty
information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Reporting the School District as a Whole
Government-wide Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of
the entire School district and are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s
finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business,

These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources
and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-
sector businesses. This basis of accounting takes into consideration all of the current year’s revenues
and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in net position. The change in
net position is important because it informs the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the
financial position of the School District has improved or worsened. The causes of the change may
be the result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors include the
District’s property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility
conditions, and required educational programs to cite just a few. In the Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two distinct types of activities:

¢ Governmental activitics - All of the District’s programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil
transportation and extracurricular activities.

e Business-type activities - Programs reported here are used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of
the District is that the costs of providing goods and services be financed through user charges.
The District operates two enterprise funds. The Food Service and Aquatic Center enterprise
funds are reported as business-type activities. The District uses an internal service fund to
account for its self-insurance prescription drug program which is considered to be a major fund
of the District. The internal service fund has been included within the governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.
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The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 26 and 27 of this report.
Reporting the Distriet’s Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the District’s funds. The District, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related Jegal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

The District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental
fund statements provide a detailed, short-term view of the District’s general government operations
and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
educational programs, Differences that arise between governmental activities (as reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds are reconciled in
the financial statements,

The District maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the general fund and special revenue fund, both of
which are considered to be major funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and special revenue fund.
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary information for
the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 through 29 of this report.

Proprietary Funds

The District maintains a proprietary fund type in the form of two enterprise funds and one internal
service fund. The enterprise funds are used to report business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The District uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of its food
service program and aquatic center, which are also considered to be major funds of the District. The
District utilizes the internal service fund to account for the activities of its self-insured prescription
drug program.

The basic proprictary funds financial statements can be found on pages 30 through 32 of this report.
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Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the
governmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the District’s own programs, The
District utilizes a long established unemployment compensation trust fund to account for
contributions from the District and employees to reimburse the State of New Jersey for the cost of
approved unemployment compensation claims. The District uses separate and distinct agency funds
to account for resources held for student activity groups as well as for payroll-related liabilities. The
basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 33 and 34 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements
can be found on pages 35 to 73 of this report.

The School District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole. Net
position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position, The
District’s financial position is the product of varied financial transactions including the net results
of activities, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.

The following table provides a summary of the District’s net position at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Neptune Township School District

Net Position
June 30,
2020 2019
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activitics Total

Assgls:
Current and other assets $ 15,160,539 51,256,108 $ 16,416,647 § 12,882,950  $1,372,052 § (4,255,002
Capital assets, net 227.463,002 755,013 222 547,005 232,900,930 782,016 233,682,946

Total assets 242,623,601 2,011,121 244,634,722 245,783,880 2,154,068 247,937,948
Deferred outflow of resourees:

Pension deferrals 4,631,908 4,631,908 5,383,923 5,383,923
Liabilities: e —
Current liabilities and other 2,190,034 137,003 2,327,037 2,329,937 242218 2,572,155
Long-term liabilitics

outstanding 21,737,599 21,737,599 22,040,803 22,040,803
Totat liabililies 23,927,633 137,003 24,064,636 24,376,740 242,218 24,612,958
Deferred infiow of resources;

Pension deferrals 7,399,947 7,399,947 7,181,657 7,181,657
Net position:

Investment in capital assets 227,463,062 755,013 228,218,075 232,900,930 782,016 233,682,946
Restricted 14,412,165 14,412,165 12,000,704 12,090,704
Unrestricted (deficit) (25,947,298} 1,119,105 (24,828,193) {25,376,228) 1,129,834 (24,246,394)

Tolal et position $215927929  $ 1,874,118 $217,802,047 $219,6i5406 § 1,911,850 $221527256
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The largest portion of the District’s net position is its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings
and improvements, furniture and equipment and construction in progress). The District uses these
capital assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Capital assets, net, and the investment in capital assets decreased mainly due to current
year depreciation exceeding current year capital asset additions. Long term liabilities and deferred
outflow of resources decreased while the deferred inflow of resources increased due to the actuatial
calculation related to net pension liability of the District.

Total net position of the District decteased by $3,725,209 during the current fiscal year, This was
primarily the result of the decrease in federal and state revenues offset by the decrease in instruction
and support service expenses. The following table shows changes in net position for the fiscal years

ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Neptune Township School District

Changes in Net Position

Years ended June 30,

2020 2019
Governmental  Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities ‘Total
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 6,857,997 % 596,411 § 7,454,408 § 6,586,288 % 1,049,912 § 7,636,200
Operating grants and
contributions 8,403,481 1,301,948 9,705,429 8,627,258 1,553,414 10,180,672
General revenues:
Property taxes 39,540,272 39,540,272 38,241,319 38,241,319
Federal and state aid not
restricted to specific purposes 47,153,726 47,153,726 52,164,912 52,164,912
Barnings on investments 80,976 9,608 90,584 121,563 13,816 135,379
Miscellangous 726,190 726,190 2003,743 203,743
Total revenues 102,762,642 1,907,967 104,670,609 105,945,083 2,617,142 108,562,225
Expenses:
Instruciion 62,135,818 62,135,818 65,902,632 65,902,632
Support services 41,892,241 1,945,699 43,837,940 43,630,548 2,575,006 46,205,554
Charter schools 2,422,060 2,422,060 1,898,648 1,808,648
TFotal expenses 106,450,119 1,945,699 108,395,818 111,431,828 2,575,006 114,006,834
Change 1n net position (3,687,477) (37,732  (3,725,209) (5,486,745) 42,136 (5,444,609)
Net position — beginning 219,615,400 1,911,850 221,527,256 225,102,151 1,869,714 226,971,865
Net position — ending $ 215927929 § 1,874,118 $ 217,802,047 § 219615406 % 1,911,850 § 221,527,256

The decrease in charges for services was the result of decreased participation in the food service
program in the current year due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The decrease in federal and state aid was the result of the impact of GASB 75, dccounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which required the District
to record approximately $3.5 million in revenues, which were contributions made on-behalf of the
District by the State for post-employment benefits compared to $6.7 million in the prior year.
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The increase in miscellaneous revenue was the result of current year utility rebates that were not
received in the prior year.

Expenses decreased approximately $4.9 million due to decreases in instruction and support setvice
expenses resulting from the schoo! closures during the COVID-19 pandemic,

Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the legal requirement to annually seek
voter approval for District operations once the tax levy increase exceeds the 2% CAP. Property taxes
made up 38.9 percent of revenues for governmental activities in the Neptune Township School
District for fiscal year 2020, Unrestricted federal and state aid accounted for another 45.2 percent of
revenue. The balance of revenues generated from tuition and fransportation revenue, investment
income and other miscellancous unrestricted sources comprised 159 percent of the total
governmental revenues.

The total cost of all programs and services was $106,450,119. Instruction comprised 58.4 percent of
District expenses. Instructional expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of
pupils and the interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities. It is
important to note that additional instructional costs are included with support services, which is in
conformity with New Jersey Budget Guidelines,

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services.

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District’s business-type activities were comprised of charges for services and federal
and state reimbursements. Charges for services were $596,411 or 31.3 percent of revenue. This
represents amounts paid by patrons for daily food service and use of the aquatic center. Federal and
state reimbursements for meals, including payments for free and reduced-priced lunch and breakfast,
and donated commodities amounted to $1,301,948 or 68,2 percent of total revenue, The balance of
revenues generated from investment income comprised 0.5 percent of the total business-type
revenues.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

Governmental Funds

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The focus
of the Disirict’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and

balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing
requirements,
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General Fund. The general fund is the main operating fund of the District, At the end of the current
fiscal year, the total fund balance was $14,315,184 including funds restricted for capital and
maintenance reserves in the amount of $10,507,165, current year excess surplus of $1,910,000 and
prior year excess surplus of $1,995,000.

Special Revenue Fund. The special revenue fund is used to track the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes, other than debt service
or capital projects. Revenue for the current fiscal year decreased approximately $220,000 and
expenditures for the current fiscal year decreased approximately $2,500. Title T Grants to Local
Education Agencies Cluster was the largest federal grant in the special revenue fund, with
expenditures in the current fiscal year of $1,232,189. The District’s largest state grant is the Preschool
Education Childhood Aid with expenditures in the cutrent fiscal year of $5,904,045.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this
report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following
schedule presents a summary of the revenues of the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation
to prior year revenues.

Increase  Percent of
Percent (Decrease)  Increase
Revenues Amount of Total from 2019  (Decrease)
Local sources $ 47,096,552 482%  $1,732.329 3.7%
State sources 47,854,791 48,9 (586,321) (1.2)
Federal soutces 2,814,861 2.9 (398,782) (14.2)
Total $ 97,766,204  100.0% $ 747,226 0.8%

Local sources increased due to the increased local tax levy, as well as an increase in tuition from other
LEAs within State during the year. The federal sources decrease was driven by decreases in the SEMI
funding in the current year, as well as decreased awards for Title T and Title I SIA grants.

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund and special revenue fund expenditures
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in
relation to prior year expenditures.

(Decrease) Percent of

Fxpenditures Percent Increase  (Decrease)
Amount of Total from 2019  Increase

Current expenditures:

Instruction $ 38,308,448 402% § (1,697,216) (4.2) %

Support services 52,388,789 55.0 208,465 10.1
Capital outlay 2,213,198 2.3 (1,991,316)  (47.4)
Charter schools 2,422,060 2.5 523,412 27.6
Total $95,332,495 100.0%  $ (2,956.655) 3.0 %
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Current expenditures reflect a decrease atiributable to salary and health benefit decreases and the
decreases in general supplies due to the school closures as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Capital outlay expenditures decreased as a direct result of the District taking on a large energy
conservation project in the prior year with only a small portion rolling into the cutrent year. The
District had no other major capital projects in the current year,

Charter school expenditures increased as more students enrolled in charter schools within the District
boundaries, even though fewer students attended than were initially expected based on budgeted
appropriation.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared in accordance with New Jersey law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on the modified accrual basis. The most significant budgeted fund is the General
Fund.

During the course of the year under audit, the District made several necessary revisions to its annual
operating budget. Revisions in the budget were made to prevent over-expenditures in specific line
item accounts. Several of these significant revisions are mentioned below:

There were significant budget transfers from Undistributed Expenditures — Instruction — Tuition to
Private Schools for the Disabled — Within State due to historical trending and known student head
count. Additionally, the District has contracted a special education program that has helped retain
students in the district who might have otherwise been sent to an outside placement.

There were significant transfers from Unallocated expenditures due to anticipated decreases in health
insurance premiums. The final settlement was actually several percentage points below the final
budget.

There were significant budget transfers to Capital Outlay - Construction Service to fund projects
including the canopy work at Shark River Hills and Midtown Community Elementary Schools and
the fire suppression system for the high school MDF room. These projects were in progress at the
end of the year and were propetly encumbered.

Capital Assets
At the end of the fiscal year 2020, the District had $228,218,075 invested in land, construction in
progress, land improvements, building and building improvements and machinery, equipment and

vehicles, net of accumulated depreciation. The following presents a comparison of capital assets, net
of depreciation, held at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

23




Governmental and Business-Type

Activities
2020 2019

Land $ 4,790,571 $ 4,790,571
Construction in progress 880,500 707,058
Land improvements 4,724,778 4,618,902
Building and building

improvements 214,993,171 220,604,393
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 2,829,055 2,962,022
Total $228,218,075 $233,682,946

For more detailed information, please refer to Note 4 to the basic financial statements.
Long-Term Liabilities

At June 30, 2020, the District had $21,860,532 of outstanding long-term liabilities relating to
compensated absences and the net pension liability. The District does not have any other long-term
debt as of June 30, 2020,

For more detailed information, please refer to Note 5 to the basic financial statements.
For the Future

The fiscal outlook in the near term is a concern for most school districts and municipalities, including
this one. ‘Top-down changes in funding will require flexibility and very careful planning at the local
level. The Neptune Township School District will continue to employ prudent and responsible fiscal
practices to maintain its sound financial condition.

The District considered the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, potential for state aid reductions,
and CARES Act grant funding.

The School District is proud of its community support and is mindful of retaining a positive image
within the local and statewide communities. With this reputation, the School District will look to
partner with surrounding districts at various levels to achieve economies that may be needed for
future stability and growth,

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the resources
entrusted to it. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Mr.
Peter J. Leonard, Business Administrator/Board Secretary at Neptune Township Board of Education,
60 Neptune Boulevard, Neptune, NJ 07753, Please visit our website at www.neptuneschools.org.
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Basic Financial Statements




Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a financial overview of the District’s
operations. These financial statements present the financial position and operating results

of all governmental activities and business-type activities as of and for the year ended June
30, 2020.




Neptune Township School District

Statement of Net Position

A-1

June 30, 2020
Governmental Business-type
Acfivities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,631,553 $ 1,237,218 2,868,771
Accounts receivable 2,876,821 116,127 2,992,948
internal balances 145,000 (145,000) -
Inventories 47,763 47,763
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 10,507,165 10,507,165
Capital assets, non-depreciable 5,671,071 5,671,071
Capital assets, depreciable, net 221,791,991 755,013 222,547,004

Total assets 242,623,601 2,011,121 244,634,722
Deferred Quiflow of Resources
Pension deferrals 4,631,908 4,631,908
Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,044,857 92,923 2,137,780
Unearned revenue 22,244 44,080 66,324
Net pension liability 18,909,169 18,909,169
Current portion of long-term obligations 122,933 122,933
Noncurrent portion of fong-term obligations 2,828,430 2,828,430
Total liabilities 23,927,633 137,003 24,064,636
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Pension deferrals 7,399,947 7,399,947
Net Position
Investment in capifal assets 227,463,062 755,013 228,218,075
Restricted for:

Excess Surplus - current year 1,910,000 1,910,000

Excess Surplus - designated for subsequent

years 1,995,000 1,995,060

Capital Reserve 8,757,165 8,757,165

Maintenance Reserve 1,750,000 1,750,000
Untrestricted (deficit) (25,947,298) 1,119,105 {24,828,193)

Total net position $ 215927929 $ 1,874,118 § 217,802,047

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.




A-2
Neptune Township School District
Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2020

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Nel Position
Operating '
Charges for Granfs and Governmental Business-tyjre

Funclions/Programs Expenses Services Confributions Activitles Activities Total
Governmental activities
Enstruction $ 62,135,818 % 6,409,828 $ 8,403,481 $ (47,322,509} $ (47,322,509)
Support services:

Aftendance/social work 620,375 (620,375) (620,375)

Health services 1,338,196 (1,338,196) {1,338,196)

Other support services 10,753,421 (10,753,421} (10,753,421)

Improvement of instruction 1,549,708 (1,549,708} (1,549,708)

School library 1,532,006 (1,532,006 (1,532,006)

General administration 1,818,196 (1,818,196) (1,818,196)

Sehool adurinistration 5,263,755 (5,263,755) (5,263,755)

Required maintenance 3,844,224 {3,844,224) (3,844,224)

Operation of plant 8,498,979 {8,498,979) (8,498,979}

Security £,024,823 {1,624,823) {1,024,823)

Student ransporintion 3,436,829 448,169 {2,988,660) {2,988,660)

Business nnd other support

services and benefits 2,211,729 (2,201,729) {2,211,729)

Charter schools 2,422,060 (2,422,060} (2,422,060)
Tolal govermmental nctiviiies 106,450,119 6,857,997 8,403,481 (91,188,641} (91,188,641)
Buskness-type activities
Food Service 1,648,477 309,219 1,301,548 $ (37,319) {37,310)
Aquatic Cenler 297,222 287,192 {10,030) (10,630)
‘Total business-{ype activities 1,945,699 596411 1,301,948 (47,340} (47,340}
Total primary government $ 108,395,818 § 7454408 3 9705429 {91,188,641) (47,240) (91,235,981}
General revenues:

Property taxes, levied for

general purposes 39,540,272 39,544,272

State Sources (Unrestricted) 47,012,730 47,017,730

Federal Sources (Unrestricted) 135,996 £35,995

Interest Earnings 80,976 9,608 90,584

Miscellaneous Income 726,190 726,190
Total general revenues 87,501,164 9,608 87,510,772
Change in net position (3,687477) {31,732) (3,725,209)
Net position-beginning 219,615,406 1,911,850 221,527,256
Net position-ending $ 215,027 929 $ 1,874,118 5 217,802,047

See accompanying notes o basic financial statements. 26




Fund Financial Statements




Governmental Funds




Neptune Township School District
Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020

Major Funds

B-1

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund TFunds
Assels
Cosh and cash equivalents $ 1,071,700 § 1,071,700
Agcounts receivable:

Intergovemmental-state 1,167,019 1,167,619

Intergovernimentai—federal 6,217 § 146,246 152,463

Accounts receivable - otler 1,557,339 1,557,339
Interfund receivable 840,901 840,901
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 10,567,185 10,507,165
Total assels s 15,150,341 § 146,246 $ 15,296,587
Liabilities and Fund bakances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable s 824,443 5 824,443

Interfund payable 10,714 § 695,901 706,615

Uneamed revenne 22,244 22,244
Total liabilities 835,157 718,145 1,553,302
Fund balances:

Restricted for:

Excess surphus currend year 1,910,000 1,910,000
Excess sugphus prior year 1,995,000 1,995,000
Maintenanee reserve 1,750,000 1,750,000
Capital reserve 8,757,165 8,757,165
Unpssigned:
General fund (deficit) (96,981) (96,981)
Special revenue fund (deficit) (571,859) {571,899)
Total fund balanees {deficit) 14,315,184 {571,899) 13,743,285
Total liabilities and fund batances $ 15,150,34} 5 146,246
Amounids reperted for governmental activities in the
statement of net position (A-1) are different becavse:
Capital assets vsed in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The
cast of the assets is $328,066,184 and the accumulated
depreciation is $100,603,122, 227,463,062
Deferred pension costs in govermental activities are not
finaneial rescurces and therefore are not reporied i the funds. {2,768,039)
Accrued pension contributions for the June 30, 2020 plan year
end are not paid with current economiic resources and are
therefore not reported as a Hability in the funds, buf are included
in accounts payable in the govensment-wide stalement of net
position. {1,149,256)
Net pension liability is net due and payable in the current perid
and therefore is nof reported as a tiability in the funds, (18,509,169)
Long-{enn lisbilities are not due and payable in the ewrrent period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the fuads, (2,951,363)
Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of the self-nsurance
program to the individual fund. The activities of flis fund are included in the
Statement of Activities. 499,409

Net position of governmental activities

See geccompanying notes to basic financial statements,
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Neptune Township School District
Governmental Funds

B-2

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Year ended June 30, 2020

Revenues
Locak sources:
Local tax levy
Interest on investments
Transportation fees from other LEAs
within the State
Tuition from othier LEAs within the State
Miscellancous
Total revenues—local sources

State sources
Federal sources
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Enstruction
Undistributed:
Tnstrugtion
Attendancefsocial work
Heallh services
Guidance services
Speech;, OT, PT and related services
Child study teams { special education
Improvement of instruction
School library
General administratios
School admiristration
Comteal services
Administrative infermation technology
Required maintenance
Custodial services
Care and vpkeep of grounds
Security
Student transportalion
Persoimel services-
unaltocaied employee benefits
On-behalf payments-TPAF, FICA, jong term
disability, medieal and pension
Charter schools - current
Capital owlay
Total expendilures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Tolal ather financing sources (uses)

Net ¢hange in find balances

Fuud batances (deficit), July 1
Fuad balances (deficit), June 30

The reconciliation of the fund balances of governmental funds to the net position of governnient

Major Funds

Specinl Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds

$ 39,540,272 $ 39,540,272
80,976 80,976
448,169 448,169
6,409,828 6,409,828
617,307 517,307
47,096,552 47,096,552
42,130,175 $ 5,724,616 47,854,791
135,996 2,678,865 2814861
89,362,723 8,103,481 97,766,204
18,680,396 3,096,936 31,771,332
6,531,116 6,531,116
333,728 333,728
783,399 783,869
1,410,127 1,416,127
1,419,185 1,419,185
1,266,386 3,671,116 4,937,502
860,178 860,178
832,831 832,831
1,214,187 1,214,187
2,864,570 2,864,570
785,200 785,200
449,624 449,624
2,763,085 2,763,085
5,032,118 5,032,138
805,056 803,656
584,835 584,835
3,009,236 3,009,236
13,215,702 13,215,102
11,087,106 11,087,106
2,422,060 2,422,060
2,213,198 2,213,198
28,504,443 6,768,452 95,332,495
798,280 1,635,429 2,433,709
1,862,708 185,100 2,047,808
(185,160} (1,862,708% (2,047,808)
1677.608 (1,677,608) -
2,475,888 (42,179 2,435,189
11,839,296 {529,720} 11,309,576
M 14,315,184 S {571.89N $ 13243285

activities in the statement of activities is presented in an accompanying schedule (3-3).

See accompanying notes (o basic flnancial statements.
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Neptune Township School District
Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2020
Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (B-2) $ 2,433,709

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
‘This is the amount by which depreciation expense exceeded capital
asset additions in the period.
Depreciation expense $ (7,438,145)
Capital additions 2,000,277 (5,437,868)

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, €.,
compensated absences (sick and vacations) are measured by the amounts
earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of
financial resources used (paid). The amount represents the
net change. (509,043)

Certain expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds,
Pension expense (283,158)

The internal service fund is used by the District to charge the
costs of the self-insurance program to the individual fund. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included with
governmental activities. 108,883

Change in net position of governmental activities (A-2) $ (3,687,477)

See accompanying noles to basic financial stalements.
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Proprietary Funds




Assels
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
State
Federal
Other
Inventories
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, depreciable, net
Total capital assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interfund payable
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position

Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Neptune Township School District

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities

Major Enterprise Funds

B-4

Governmental Activity

Internal
Food Aquatic Service Fund
Service Center Totals Self-Insurance
$ 118,526 $1,118,692 $ 1,237,218 559,853
662 662
68,622 68,622
43,093 3,750 46,843
47,763 47,763
278,666 1,122,442 1,401,108 559,853
604,881 150,132 755,013
604,881 150,132 755,013
883,547 1,272,574 2,150,121 559,853
92,923 92,923 60,444
145,000 145,000
23,162 20,918 44,080
116,085 165,918 282,003 60,444
116,085 165,918 282,003 60,444
604,881 150,132 755,013
162,581 956,524 1,1§9,105 499,409
3 767462 $ 1,106,656 $ 1,874,118 499,409
See accompanying notes o basic financial statements, 30




Neptune Township School District

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position

Year ended June 30, 2020

Operating revenues:
Local sources:
Services provided to other funds
Daily food sales-reimbursable programs
Daily food sales-non-reimbursable programs
Daily swim revenue
Swim membership revenue
Swim rental revenue
Swim seminar revenue
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses;
Salaries
Employee benefits and taxes
Supplies and materials
Cost of sales - non-reimburseable programs
Depreciation
Purchased services
Miscellaneous
Total operating expenses

Operating (loss} income

Nonoperating revenues:
State sources:
School tunch program
Federal sources:
School breakfast program
School lunch program
Healthy Hunger-Free Kids Act (HHFKA)
Summer Food Service Program (COVID-19 Emergency)
Food donation program
Interest revenue
Total nonoperaling revenues

Change in net position

Total net position, beginning
Total net position, ending

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Business-Type Activities
Major Enterprise Funds

B-5

Governmental Aetivity

Internal

Food Aquatic Service Fund
Service Center Totals ScH-Insurance
$ 3,075,000
$ 111,046 111,046
198,173 198,173
$ 26,614 26,614
16,032 16,032
123,737 123,737
109,476 109,476
11,333 11,333
309,219 287,192 596,41} 3,075,000
38,007 183,366 221,373
4,437 4,437 2,966,117
16,148 55,848 71,996
69,900 69,9060
87,761 13,432 101,193
1,393,826 44,576 1,438,402
38,398 38,398
1,648,477 297,222 1,945,699 2,966,117
(1,339,258) (10,030} (1,349,288} 108,883
16,690 16,690
232,764 232,764
725,627 725,627
22,701 22,101
165,648
138,518 138,518
9,608 9,608
1,301,948 9,608 1,311,556
(37,310) {422) (37,732} 108,883
804,772 1,107,078 1,911,850 390,526
$ 7607462 $ 1,106,656 $ 1,874,118 3 499,409
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Neptune Township School District
Propriefary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activitics

Receipts from services provided to other funds
Receipts from cusiomers

Payments o employees

Payments for employee benefils

Payments o consullants

Payments to managemend company

Payments to supptiers

Net cash {used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activity
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activity

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Paymenis from other funds

Cash received from state and federal sources

Net cash provided by noncapilal financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activity
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash (used in} capital and related financing activity

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconcilistion of eperating (loss) income fo net cash
(used in) provided by operating activitics
Operating (toss) income
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash (used
i) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assels and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) in inventory
(Pecrease) increase in accouns payable
Increase (decrease) in uncarned revenue
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitics

Noncash noetcapital financing activities
The District received $127,041 of food commodities from the U.S,
Depariment of Agriculiure for the year ended June 30, 2020,

Business-Type Activitics
Major Enterprise Funds

B-6

Governmental Activity

Internal
Food Aquatie Service Fund
Service Center Totals Self-Insurance
3,075,600
$ 314,020 $ 259,032 $ 373,052
(38,007 (183,366) (221,373)
4,431 (4,437} (2,959,878)
(14,748) (14,748)
(1,349,298) {1,349,298)
(239,082) (100,424} {339,506)
(1,331,552) {24,758) (1,356,310) 115,122
9,608 9 608
9,608 9,608
(50,118) 15,550 (34,568)
1,337,108 1,337,108
1,286,990 15,550 1,302,540
(74,190) {74,190}
{74,190) {74,190}
(118,752) 400 (118,352) 115,122
237,278 1,118,292 1,355,570 444,731
§ 118,526 $ 1.118.692 $ 1,237,218 559,853
$(1,339,258)  § (10,0300  §  (1,349,288) 108,883
87,761 13,432 101,193
{2,580) 6,250 3,670
{18,147 (18,147)
{66,709) {10,155) (76,864) 6,23%
7,381 (24,255) (16,874)
$1,331.552y 8 (24758) _$ (1,356310) 115,122
12

See accompanying notes to basic financial siatements.
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Neptune Township School District
Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2020

Unemployment
Compensation Agency
Trust Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivaients $ 1,160,912 675,604
Accounts receivable 25,269 29.456
Total assets 1,186,181 705,060
Liabilities
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 503,990
Flexible spending payable 23,335
Accounts payable ‘ 53,962 44,011
Due to student groups 133,724
Total liabilities 53,962 705,060
Net position
Held in trust for unemployment benefits § 1,132,219

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements,
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Neptune Township School District

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Year ended June 30, 2020

Additions
interest received
Contributions-employees
Federal CARES ACT-COVID 19
Total additions

Deductions
Unemployment claims
Total deductions

Change in net position

Net position-beginning of year
Net position-end of year

See accompanying nofes to basic financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

B-8

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust

$ 15,024
69,791
63,853

148,668

178,234
178,234

(29,566)

1,161,785
$ 1,132,219
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Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Neptune Township School District (“District”) have been prepared
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles.

A. Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, b) organizations for which the
primary government is financially accountable, and ¢) other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete,

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability. A
primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity. It
is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting
majority of an organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government, A primary government may also be
financially accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it.

The District, as the primary government for financial reporting entity purposes, has oversight
responsibility and control over all activities related to the Neptune Township School District in
Neptune Township, New Jersey. The District receives funding from local, state, and federal
government sources and must comply with the requirements of these funding source entities.

The District has no component units that are required to be included within the reporting entity, as
set forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial

Reporting Standards.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the District, For the most pat,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements, Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues,

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and the proprietary funds ate reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements. The New Jersey Department of Education requires that all funds be
seported as major to promote consistency amongst the school districts in the State of New Jersey.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incutred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures related to compensated
absences and the net pension liability are recorded only when payment is due,

Property taxes, interest, and state aid associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to
be susceptible to accrual and have been so recognized as revenues of the current fiscal year.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account

for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund,
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Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional
equipment, which are classified in the capital outlay subfund.

Special Revenue Fund: The District maintains one special revenue fund, which includes the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified
purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

The District reports the following major proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds: The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for the District’s ongoing activities
that are similar to those often found in the private sector where the determination of net income is
necessary ot useful to sound financial administration.

Food Service and Aquatic Center Enterprise Funds: The food service fund accounts for all
revenues and expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations, The food service fund is utilized to
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises. The Aquatic Center fund accounts for all revenues and expenses in the operation of
the aquatic center similar to a private business enterprise. The stated intent is that the costs (ie.,
expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the
students or other entities on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

The District reports the following major internal service fund:

Self-Insurance Fund:. The self-insurance fund is used to record the activity of the District’s
prescription benefit expenses.

Additionally, the District reports the following fiduciary fund types:
Fiduciary Funds: Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a

trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units
and/or other funds.

Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund: This fund is used to account for employee
contributions that are utilized to pay unemployment compensation insurance claims as they
arise.

Agency Funds (Payroll and Student Activity Funds). Agency funds are used to account for the
assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in
nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
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Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements,

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
setvices, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations, The principal operating
revenues of the District’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales of food and usage fees
from individuals to offset the cost of operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the
cost of sales, usage fees, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The District reports unearned revenue on its balance sheets and statement of net position.
Unearned revenue arises when resources are received by the District before it has legal claim to
them, as when federal assistance is received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the District has a legal
claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheets and
statements of net position and revenue is recognized.

Ad Valorem (property) taxes are susceptible fo accrual, as under New Jersey State Statute a
municipality is required to remit to its School Board the entire balance of taxes, in the amount voted
upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax
levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and
available, The Board is entitled to receive moneys under the established payment schedule, and the
uncollected amownt is considered to be an “accounts receivable.”

The County Board of Taxation is responsible for the assessment of propetties, and the Township
Tax Collector is responsible for collection of taxes. Assessments are certified and taxes are levied
on January 1; taxes are due February I, May I, August1 and November 1. Unpaid taxes are
considered delinquent the following January 1 and are then subject to lien.

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted each year for the general and special revenue funds.
Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary
control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the
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Neptune Township School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts
referenced in N.J.A.C. 6A:23. All budget amendments must be approved by School Board
resolution, Budget amendments during the year ended June 30, 2020 were made and properly
approved by School Board Resolution and were made in accordance with statutory guidelines. The
amendments made by the District were not deemed significant and were part of the normal course
of operations. The over-expenditure in the general fund is due to the inclusion of the non-budgeted
on-behalf payments made by the State of New Jersey as District expenditures, These amounts are
offset by related revenues and as such do not represent budgetary over-expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year, For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payments for
budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund. Encumbrance accounting is also employed
as an extension of formal budgetary integration in governmenta! fund types. Open encumbrances at
year-end are re-appropriated in the subsequent year’s budget. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at
fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained
to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

I.. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit and short-term
investments with otiginal maturities of three months or less. Investments are stated at fair value.
The District classifies cextificates of deposit, which have original maturity dates of more than three
months but less then twelve months from the date of purchase as investments and are stated at cost.
All other investments are stated at fair value.

F. Interfund Receivables/Payables

Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or services
rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

G. Inventories

Inventories which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are
recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase. Enterprise fund inventories are valued at
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Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method and the District uses
the consumption method for expensing inventory. At June 30, 2020, the unused Food Donation
Program commodities of $1,926 are reported as unearned revenue,

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, building and building improvements,
and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in
the government-wide financial statements, The District defines capital assets as asscts with an
initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or through estimation procedures performed by an independent
appraisal company.

Donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date of acquisition.

The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the assets lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the District are depreciated using the straight line method, except for land and
construction in progress, which are not depreciated. The following estimated uscful lives are used
to compute depreciation:

Years
Land improvements 10-20
Machinery and equipment 2-20
Buildings 50
Building improvements 20-50
Vehicles 5-10

I. Compensated Absences

The District records a liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already
rendered and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer
and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. The District uses the “vesting
method” for estimating its accrued sick and vacation leave liability.

Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the Board’s
personnel policies and according to negotiated contracts. In the event of retirement, according to
contract, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation and sick leave.

40




Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The liability for vested compensated absences of the District recorded in the government-wide financial
statements amounted to $2,951,363 at June 30, 2020. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements. :

J. Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which has been received but not yet
earned. Unearned revenue in the food service enterprise fund represents the unused portion of Food
Donation Program commodities and positive balances on students’ prepaid meal cards, Unearned
revenue in the Aquatic Center Enterprise Fund relates to funds received for summer swim team,
swim lessons and pool memberships,

K. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and the proprietary fund type in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount,

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources, Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as either capital
projects fund or debt service fund expenditures,

L. Fund Balances

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
(“GASB 54”) established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources reported in governmental funds. Under GASB 54, fund balances in the governmental
funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting and classified
into the following five categories.

1) Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they ate either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Assets
included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories, long-term
receivables, and corpus of any permanent funds.
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Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2) Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
" constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation,

3) Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed by a
formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The
District’s highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of Education (the
“Board”) and formal action is taken by resolution of the Board at publicly held meetings.
Once committed, amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the Board revises or
changes the specified use by taking the same action (resolution) teken to originally commit
these funds.

4y Assigned — amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent is expressed by either the
Board or Business Administrator, to whom the Board has delegated the authority to assign
amounts {o be used for specific purposes, including the encumbering of funds,

5) Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications in the
general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other
funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within
the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund
balance amount. In the other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific
purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be
necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the unrestricted fund
balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned
funds.

OFf the $14,315,184 of fund balance in the General Fund at June 30, 2020, the encumbrances of
$789,229 are partially offset by an unrestricted deficit of $886,210, $1,910,000 is restricted for current
year excess sutplus, $1,995,000 has been restricted for prior year excess surplus that has been
designated for subsequent year’s expenditures $8,757,165 is restricted in a capital reserve and
$1,750,000 is restricted in a maintenance reserve.

M. Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows
of resources, and liabilities in the government-wide financial statements. Net position invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accurulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is
reported as restricted in the government-wide financial statements when there are limitations imposed
on their use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments,

42




Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

N. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses and deferred inflows and outflows of
resources during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

0. On-Behalf Payments

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New Jersey
for social security and post-retirement pension and medical contributions for certified teacher and
other members of the New Jersey Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. Additionally, revenues and
expenses related to on-behalf pension contributions in the government-wide financial statements have
been incteased by $10,440,410 to adjust for the full acerual basis expense incurred by the State of New
Jersey duting the most recent measurement period. The amounts are not required to be included in the
District’s annual budget.

P. Calculation of Excess Surplus

The designation for restricted fund balance - excess surplus is a required calculation pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 18A:7E-7, as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund
fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a requited minimum
amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. The District generated excess
surplus of $1,910,000 during the 2019-2020 school year that will be utilized in the 2021-2022 fiscal
year budget.

Q. GASB Pronouncements

Recently Issued Accounting Principles

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities in January 2017. This Statement
establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for fiduciary activities. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Due to
the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year. Management has not
determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases in June 2017. This Statement establishes standards of
accounting and financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019, Due to the COVID-19
pandemic, the effective date has been postponed until fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021,
Management has not determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.
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The GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period in June 2018. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest
cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
effective date has been postponed by one year. Management has not determined the impact of the
Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majorify Equity Interests — an Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61 in August 2018. This Statement modifies previous guidance for
reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, This Statement
also provides guidance for reporting a component unit if a government acquires a 100 percent
equity intetest in that component unit. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2018, Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been
postponed by one year. Management has determined that is Statement did not impact the District’s
financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations in May 2019, This Statement
establishes a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers to eliminate diversity in
practice. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year,

Management has not determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

R. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will #or be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will nof be recognized as an
inflow of resoutces (revenue) until that time. The District has one item that qualifies for reporting in this
category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

S. Subsequent Events

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between June 30,
2020 and January 19, 2021, the date that the financial statements were available for issuance. The
effect of those events and transactions that provide additional pertinent information about
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conditions that exists at the balance sheet and statement of net position date, have been recognized
in the accompanying financial statements.

As of June 30, 2020, District operations and the ways in which education is provided have been
disrupted by the outbreak of the novel coronavirus COVID-19. Going forward, COVID-19 could
further limit the District’s operations, including unexpected deferrals of tax payments from the
municipality, deferrals or reductions in state aid or an increase in expenses associated with this or
any other potential infectious disease outbreak, District management cannot reasonably predict how
long the Pandemic in New Jersey is expected to last and how the outbreak may impact the financial
condition or operations of the District. District management continues to monitor the Pandemic and
plans to take action to address any significant impact on future operations.

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities are
not due and payable in the current petiod and therefore are not reported in the funds. The
$2,951,363 difference is attributable to the compensated absences liability.

3. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools and Statement
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The District classifies certificates of deposit, which
have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the date of
purchase, as investments and are stated at cost, All other investments are stated at fair value. New
Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions
they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that
may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public
funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA), GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Government Units from
a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.
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NJ.S.A, 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental
units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public
depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include
savings and loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks, the deposits
of which are federally insured, All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value
at last equal to 5% of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of
Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of
all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the
Governmental Units.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school boards deposit public funds in public depositories located in
New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made
in public depositories. School boards are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New
Jersey Cash Management Fund and the New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds
that exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of
collected public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of
the capital funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market
value at least equal to 100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less

than $25,000,000.

Operating cash accounts are held in the District’s name by several commercial banking institutions.
At June 30, 2020 the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $9,756,422, and the bank
balance was $13,210,304. Of the bank balance, $250,000 of the District’s cash deposits on June 30,
2020 was secured by federal depository insurance. The New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act (GUDPA) covered the bank balance of $12,321,260. $639,044 held in the District
agency accounts are not covered by GUDPA,

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures” (“GASB 407), the
District’s operating cash accounts are profiled in order to determine exposure, if any, to Custodial Credit
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Risk (risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty the District would not be able to recover the
value of its deposits and investments). Deposits are considered to be exposed to Custodial Credit Risk if
they are: uncollateralized (securities not pledged to the depositor), collateralized with securities held by
the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the financial institution’s trust
department or agent but not in the government’s name.

The District does not have a policy for the management of custodial credit risk, other than depositing all
of its funds in banks covered by GUDPA. At least five percent of the District’s deposits were fully
collateralized by funds held by the financial institution, but not in the name of the District. Due to the
nature of GUDPA, further information is not available regarding the full amount that is collateralized.

Investments
New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of secunities:

a. Bonds and other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United
States.

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National
Mortgage Agency or of any United States for Cooperatives, which have a maturity date not
greater than twelve months from the date of purchase.

¢. New Jersey Cash Management Fund (NJCMF) and New Jersey Asset and Rebate
Management Fund (NJARM).

In order to maximize liquidity, the District utifizes the New Jetsey Cash Management Fund (“NJCMF”)
as its sole investment, The NJCMF is administered by the State of New Jersey, Department of the
Treasury, It invests pooled monies from various State and non-State agencies in primarily shori-term
investments. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares.

These investments include: U.S. Treasuries, short-term Commercial Paper, U.S. Agency Bonds,
Corporate Bonds, and Certificates of Deposit. Agencies that participate in the NJCMF typically eam
returns that mitror short-term investments rates. Monies can be freely added or withdrawn from the
NJCMEF on a daily basis without penalty. At June 30, 2020, the District’s balance was $5,456,032 and is
classified as cash equivalents at June 30, 2020 due to its short-term nature and is considered a Level 1
investment under GASB Statement No, 72. The debt instruments in the NJCMF are rated by three
national rating agencies.

All investments in the Fund are governed by the regulations of the Investment Council, which prescribes
specific standards designed to ensure the quality of investments and to minimize the risks related to
investments. In all the years of the Division of Investinent’s existence, the Division has never suffered a
default of principal or interest on any short-term security held by it due to the bankruptcy of a securities
issuer; nevertheless, the possibility always exists, and for this reason a reserve is being accumulated as
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additional protection for the “Other-than-State” participants. In addition to the Council regulations, the
Division sets further standards for specific investments and monitors the credit of all eligible securities
issuers on a regular basis,

Custodial Credit Risk: Pursuant to GASB 40, the NJCMF, which is a pooled investment, is exempt from
custodial credit risk exposure, The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk,

Credit Risk: The District does not have an investment policy regarding the management of credit risk.
GASB 40 requires that disclosure be made as to the credit rating of all debt security investments except
for obligations of the U.S. government or investments guaranteed by the U.S. government, The District
did not have any funds invested in debt securities,

Interest Rate Risk. The District does not have a policy to limit interest rate risk. The average maturity of
the District’s sole investment, the NJCME, is less than one year.

Conceniration of Credit Risk: The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any
one issuer. At June 30, 2020, all of the District’s investments were invested in NJCMF.

All of the District’s investments are classified as cash equivalents at June 30, 2020.
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The following schedule is a summarization of the governmental activities changes in capital assets

for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accunmulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital asscls being deprsciated, net

Governmental activities capiial assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Iicreases Transfers Balance
$ 4,790,571 $ 4,790,571
707,058 $ 1,927,343 $(1,753,901) 880,500
5,497,629 1,927,343 (1,753,901) 5,671,071
11,842,046 659,756 12,501,8002
297,797,033 43,414 552,047 298,392,494
10,929,189 29,520 548,098 11,500,817
320,568,278 72,934 1,753,901 322,395,113
7,223,144 553,880 7,777,024
77,192,640 6,206,683 83,399,323
8,749,193 677,582 9,426,775
93,164,977 7,438,145 100,603,122
227,403,301 (1,365,211) 1,753,901 221,791,991
$ 232,900,930 $ 5,437,868 $ - $ 227,463,062
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:

Instruction $3,445,162
Undistributed instruction 711,276
Attendance and social work 36,181
Health services 84,987
Guidance Services 152,880
Other support services —related services 153,862
Other support - regular 535,303
Improvement of instruction 93,257
School library 90,292
General administration 131,637
School administration 310,564
Central Services 85,128
Administrative information technology 48,746
Required maintenance of plant 536,307
Operation of plant and upkeep of grounds 545,563
Care and Upkeep of Grounds _ 87,346
Security 63,405
Student transportation 326,248
Total allocated depreciation expense $7,438,145

The following is a summary of business-type changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30,
2020:

Beginning Ending
Balance Ingcreases Balance
. Capital assets, being depreciated:
Equipment $ 1,569,528 $ 74,190 $ 1,643,718
Less accwmnulated depreciation for:
Equipment (787,512) (101,193) (888,705)
Total business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 782,016 $ (27,003) $ 755,013
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Bonds

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through
referenda. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness.

There are no serial bonds outstanding or bonds or notes authorized not issued at June 30, 2020.
Changes in long-term liabilities

The following presents the change in long-term liabilities,

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Net pension liability $ 19,719,433 $ 8/10,264 $ 18,909,169
Compensated absences 2,442,320 $ 569,591 60,548 2,951,363 $122,933

Governmental activities
long-term Habilities $ 22,161,753 $569,591 $870,8i2 § 21,860,532 § 122,933

Compensated absences and the net pension liability are liquidated by the general fund.
6. Pension Plans
Description of Systems

Substantially all of the District’s employees participate in one of the following contributory defined
benefit public employee retirement systems, which have been established by State statute: the
Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS).
These systems are sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey, The Teachers’ Pension
and Annuity Fund Retirement System is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan, with a
special funding situation, as, under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State
of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-coniributing employers.
The Public Employees’ Retirement System is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuify Fund

The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund was established in January 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide coverage including post-retivement health care to substantially all
fulltime public school employees in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and
vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25 years for health care coverage.
Age eligibility and benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89,
P.L. 2008, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L. 2011. Members are classified into one of five
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tiers dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier 1, 2 and 3 members are eligible to retire at
age 60, 60, and 62, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55th of the
average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years’ compensation for each year of
membership during years of credited service, Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62
and 65, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/60th of the average annual
compensation for the highest five fiscal years’ compensation for each year of membership during
years of credited service. Anyone who retires early and is under their respective tier’s retitement
age receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate
in accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute based upon their tier.

Public Employee’s Retirement System

The Public Employees’ Retirement System was established in January 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all
fulltime employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district or public agency,
provided the employee is not a member of another State- administered retirement system. Age
eligibility and benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89, P.L.
2008, Chapter 1, P,L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L, 2011, Members are classified into one of five tiers
dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier 1, 2 and 3 members are eligible to retire at age 60,
60, and 62, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55th of the average
annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years® compensation for each year of membership
during years of credited service. Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62 and 65,
respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/60th of the average annwal
compensation for the highest five fiscal years’ compensation for each year of membership during
years of credited service, Anyone who retires early and is under their respective tier’s retirement
age receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate
in accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute based upon their tier,

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issued
publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary
information for TPAF and PERS. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of
New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O, Box 295, Trenton,
New Jersey 08625-0295,

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and contributions are required by active
members and contributing members. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by
State of New Jersey legislation, Under the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, employee contribution
rates for TPAF and PERS are 7.5%. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially
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determined rate in both the TPAF and PERS. The actuatially determined contribution includes
funding for noncontributory death benefits and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current
statute the District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the State of New Jersey contributed $8,781,504 to the TPAF
for on-behalf medical benefits, long-term disability insurance and pension contributions on behalf
of the District. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A, 18A:66-66, the State of New Jersey reimbursed
the District $2,305,602 during the year ended June 30, 2020 for the employer’s share of social
security contributions for TPAF membets as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts have
been included in the Government-wide and fund financial statements.

The District’s actuarially determined contributions to PERS for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019
and 2018 were $1,026,139, $1,001,933, and $969,379, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of PERS and additions to/deductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For the purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Defexred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Public Emplovee’s Retirement Systein (PERS)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $18,909,169 for its proportionate share of net
pension liability, The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valvation July 1,
2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. The District’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportion was 0.1049431783 percent, which was an
increase of 0.0047915183 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018,
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For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized full accrual pension expense of
$1,334,851, in the government-wide financial statements. At June 30, 2020, the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources  of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 339,395 % 83,532
Changes of assumptions 1,888,150 6,563,313
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 298,489
Changes in propottion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share contributions 1,255,107 454,613
District contributions subsequent to the measurement

date 1,149,256

$ 4,631,908 § 7,399,947

$1,149,256 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school
district contributions subsequent to the measurement date. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30;

2021 $  (201,801)
2022 (1,574,115)
2023 (1,486,853)
2024 (615,834)
2025 (38,602)

$  (3,917,295)
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019, This actuarial valuation
used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation rate:
Price 2.75%
Wage . 3.25%

Salary increases:

Through 2026 2,00 - 6,00%
based on years of service
Thereafter 3.00 - 7.00%

based on years of service
Investment rate of return 7.00%

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018, It is likely that future
experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual expetience
deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated.
The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.

Mortality Rates

Pre-retitement morality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income
Employee mottality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree
mortality table with a 91,4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates
used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality
table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based
on Scale MP-2019.
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Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00%
at June 30, 2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major assct class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expecting future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Assef Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Risk mitigation strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.8S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 4.25%
High yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private equity 12.00% 10.85%
100,00%

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% as of June 30, 2019 and
5.66% as of June 30, 2018. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June
30, 2019 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed
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70% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers coniributed 100% of their
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through June 30, 2057. Therefore, the long-term expected rated of return on plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through June 30, 2057 and the municipal bond rate was
applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as of
June 30, 2019 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the District’s
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.28 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (7.28
percent) than the current rate:

At 1% At Current At 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.28%) (6.28%) (7.28%)

State's proportionate share of
the net pension liability
associated with the District $ 23,885353 $ 18,909,169 § 14,716,029

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued financial report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System.

Additional Information

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources $  3,149,522,616

Deferred inflows of resources § 7,645,087,574
Net pension liability $ 18,143,832,135
District's Proportion 0.1049431783%
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Collective pension expense for the Local Group for the measurement period ended June 30, 2019 is
$974,471,686.

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pension
through the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2019, 2018, 2017,
2016, 2015 and 2014 is 5.21, 5.63, 5.48, 5.57, 5.72, and 6,44 years, respectively.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Special Funding Situation

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by
the State in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State
is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity, Since the local participating employers do not
contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net
pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
patticipating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local participating
employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing entities’ total proportionate
share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer. The State’s
proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District as of June 30,
2020 was $171,701,547. The District’s propottionate share was 30.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018, which
was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. The State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the District was based on a projection of the State’s long-term contributions to the
pension plan associated with the District relative to the projected contributions by the State
associated with all participating school disiricts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the
State’s proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District was
0.2797766109 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0108789633 from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2018,

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense and revenue in
the government-wide financial statements of $10,127,416 for contributions incurred by the State.

Actuarial assumptions

The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:
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Inflation rate:
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%

Salary increases:

Through 2026 1.55 - 4.45%
based on years of service
Thereafter 2,75 - 5.65%
based on years of service
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Mortality Rates

Pre-retitement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median income
Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree
mottality table with a 114,7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability mortality rates
were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment
for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of
2010 on a generational basis, Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018,

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00%
at June 30, 2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class, These ranges arc
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage by adding expected inflation.
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Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF’s target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Ailocation  Real Rate of Return
Risk mitigation strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 4,25%
High yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private equity 12.00% 10.85%
100,00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.60% as of June 30, 2019 and
4.86% as of June 30, 2018. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June 30,
2019 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher, The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 70% of the
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through 2054. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to
projected benefit payments through 2054, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected
benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District
to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with
the District as of June 30, 2019, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as
what the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.60 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (6.60 percent) than the current rate:

At 1% At Current At 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(4.60%) (5.60%) (6.60%)

State's propottionate share of
the net pension fiability
associated with the District $ 202,474,127 $ 171,701,547 $ 146,170,022
Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued TPAF financial report.

Additional Information

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources
Net pension liability

District's Proportion

10,077,460,797
17,525,379,167
61,370,943,870

0.2797766109%

Collective pension expense-Local Group for the plan for the measurement petiod ended June 30,
2019 is $3,642,191,152.

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that ate provided with pension
through the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2019, 2018, 2017,
2016, 2015, and 2014 is 8.04, 8.29, 8.30, 8.30, 8.30, and 8.50 years, respectively.
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Plan description and benefits provided

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay other post-
employment (health benefits) for State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan,
The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-employer defined
benefit OPEB plan that is administered on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are
accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for the Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. The
State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription drug,
and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents of local education
employers, The State Health Benefits Program Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated,
Title 52, Article 17.25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are
found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey
Division of Pension and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for SHBP. That report may be obtained by
writing to Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to
be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. According to
N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire from a
board of education or county college with 25 years or more of service credit in or retires in a
disability pension from one or more of the following plans: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) or the Alternate Benefit Program
(ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical
coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay
a percentage of the cost of health care coverage in retirement provided that they retire with 25 or
more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be
responsible will be determined based on the retiree’s annual retirement coverage.

Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement medical coverage to their
employees. Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement can
continue in the program if their employer partticipates in this program or if they are participating in
the health benefits plan of their former employer and are enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B by
paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and their covered dependents. In Fiscal Year 2019,
the State paid PRM benefits for 153,893 State and local retirees. The total nonemployer OPEB
liability does not include certain other postemployment obligations that are provided by the local
education employers.
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The State’s contributions to the Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the
District for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 were $2,374,906, $2,548,185 and $2,831,664
respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year.,

The State funds post-retirement medical benefits on a “pay-as-you-go” basis, which means that the
State does not pre-fund, or otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of assets against the PRM
expenses that the State may incur in future years. For Fiscal Year 2019, the State coniributed
$1,908 billion to pay for pay-as-you-go PRM benefit costs incurred by covered retirees. The State’s
“pay-as-you-go” contributions have remained consistent with Fiscal Year 2018 amounts. The State
has appropriated $1.612 billion in Fiscal Year 2020 as the State’s coniribution to fund pay-as-you-
go PRM costs.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the State is required to quantify and disclose its
obligations to pay Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to retired plan members. This new
standard supersedes the previously issued guidance, GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployiment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for Fiscal Year
2018. The State is now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory language
names the State as the legal obligor for benefit payments. The Fiscal Year 2019 total State OPEB
liability to provide these benefits is $76.0 billion, a decrease of $14.5 billion or 16 percent from the
$90.5 billion liability recorded in Fiscal Year 2018.

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes
Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et. seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the
program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. No assets are
accumulated in a trust that meets the criferia in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75.

Total OPEB Liability

The total non-employer (State) OPEB liability from New Jersey’s plan is $41,729,081,045,

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Below represents the changes in the State’s portion of the OPEB liability associated with the
District for the year ended June 30, 2020:
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Total OPEB Liability

Begiming Total OPEB Liability, June 30,2018  § 134,648,644
Changes for the yeat:
Service cost 5,530,680
interest 5,354,664
Difference between expected and actual (20,607,574)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 1,835,359
Member contributions 112,010
Benefit payments (3,778,653)
Net changes (11,553,514
Ending Total OPEB Liability, June 30, 2019 3 123,095,130

Employees covered by benefit terms

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Local Education Group June 30, 2019
Active Plan Members 216,892
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 148,051
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but Not Yet Receiving Benefits -

Total Plan Members 364,943

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make
employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The LEA’s
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS
No. 75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the LEA did not recognize any portion of the coliective total
OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position. The State’s proportionate share of the total OPEB
liability associated with the District as of June 30, 2020 was $123,095,130. Additional information
can be obtained from the State of New Jersey’s comprehensive annual financial report.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs
The total nonemployer OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation reporled by the State

in the State’s most recently issued CAFR was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
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TPAF PERS
Inflation rate: 2.50% 2.50%
Salary increases:
Through 2026 1.55-3.05% 2.00-6.00%
based on years of service based on years of service
Thereafter 1.55-3.05% 3.00-7.00%
based on years of service based on years of service

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. The actuarial assumptions used in
the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of the actual experience studies for the
periods July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018 for TPAF and PERS,
respectively.

Mortality Rates

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) and
"General" (PERS) classification headcouni-weighted mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019. Postretirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2019, Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-
weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from
the central year using Scale MP-2019,

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 3.50% and 3.87%, respectively. This represents
the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-
Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with
an average rating of AA/Aa or higher, As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal
bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at
the municipal bond rate.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.7% and decreases to a 4.5% long-
term trend rate after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare
Advantage trend rate for fiscal year 2020 ave reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5%
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for all future years, For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.5% and decreases to a
4,5% long-term trend rate after eight years, For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is

5.0%.

The following represents sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB liability associated with ithe
Disirict to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rafe

The following presents the non-employer OPEB liability associated with the District as of June 30,
2019 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total non-employer
OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(2.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50%) than the current rate:

At 1% At current At 1%
decrease discount rate increase
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
Total OPEB Liability (Allocable to the
District and the responsibility of the
State) $ 145423992 $ 123,095,130 $ 105,358,306

The following presents the non-cmployer OPEB liability associated with the District as of June 30,
2019 calculated using the healthcare cost trend rate as disclosed above as well as what the total non-
employer OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

At
At Healthcare Cost At
1% decrease Trend Rates 1% increase
Total OPEB Liability (Allocable to the
District and the responsibility of the |
State) $ 101,424,900 § 123,095,130 $ 151,782,064 |

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized on-behalf OPEB expense and revenue in
the government-wide financial statements of $3,536,725 for OPEB expenses incurred by the State.
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Collective balances of the Local Education Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources $ 1,921,145,183
Deferred inflows of resources  $ 20,887,639,826
Collective OPEB Expense $ 1,015,664,874
District's Proportion 0.29%

Special Funding Situation

The employer contributions for local patticipating employers are legally required to be funded by
the State, therefore, the District records an expense and corresponding revenue for its respective
share of total OPEB expense and revenue attributable to the State of New Jersey.

8. Interfund Receivables and Payables
The total interfund accounts receivable and payable balances for the District amounted to the

following as of June 30, 2020:
Interfund Interfund

Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 840,901 $ 10,714
Special Revenue Fund 695,901
Aquatic Center Enterprise Fund 145,000
Payroll Agency Fund 10,714

$ 851,615 $ 851,615

The interfund payable in the special revenue fund represents a cash loan from the general fund not
returned at June 30, 2020. The interfund payable in the aquatic center enterprise fund represents the
balance due to refund the general fund for capital expenditures paid on behalf of the aquatic center by
the general fund, The interfund receivable in the payroll agency fund represents a net receivable from
the general fund for the June payroll that was paid but cash was not transferred prior to year-end, offsct
by refunds due to the general fund for cobra payments made out of the general fund. All interfunds ate
expected to be repaid within one year.

9, Economic Dependency

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state governments. A
significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, could have an effect on the
District’s programs and activities,
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10. Deferred Compensation

The District offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457(b). The plans, which are administered by Equitable, Fidelity
and the Seely Agency, permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years,

Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement,
death or an unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, ail
property and rights purchased with the amounts, and all income attributable to these amounts are
held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participating employees and their beneficiaries.

11. Centingent Liabilities

The District participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are governed by various
rules and regulations of the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied
with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and
the collectability of any related receivable at June 30, 2020 may be impaired. In the opinion of the
District, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and
regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provisions have been recorded in the
accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies. The District is also involved in
several other claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations, In the opinion of the administration
and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a materially adverse effect
on the financial position of the District,

12, Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance

The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability, student accident and
surety bonds and does not retain risk of loss. A complete schedule of insurance can be found in the
statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and no settlements have exceeded insurance
coverage over the past three years,

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the
“Benefit Reimbursement Method.” Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New
Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its
account with the State, The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. There are
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sufficient funds maintained in the separate unemployment compensation trust fund account to pay
current billings.

Self-Insurance

The District is self-insured for prescription benefits, and has established an internal service fund to
account for its self-insurance activities.

13, Transfers
The following presents a reconciliation of transfers made during the 2020 fiscal year:

Transfers Transfers

Fund In Quit
General Fund $1,862,708 $ 185,100
Special Revenue Fund 185,100 1,862,708

$2,047,808  $2,047,808

The transfer into the General Fund represents the Special Revenue Fund contribution to school-
based budgets, The transfer into the Special Revenue Fund represents the General Fund
Contribution to the Pre-School Education Aid Program.

14. Commitments-General Fund

The District has contractual commitments of $789,229 at June 30, 2020 to various vendors, which
are recorded in the general fund as a component of the unassigned deficit.

15, Deficit Fund Balance

The District has an unassigned deficit fund balance of $96,981 in the general fund and $571,899 in
the special revenue fund at June 30, 2020 as reported in the fund financial statements (modified
accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not
made available until the following budget year, districts must record the last state aid payments as
revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The bill provides the legal
authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For
intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue,
expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry (i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the
other government recognizes a liability). '
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Since the State is recording the last state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school
district cannot recognize the last state aid payments on the GAAP financial statements until the year
the State records the payable. The deficit amounts listed above in the general fund and special
revenuefund represents deficits that were incurred as a direct result of the State of New Jersey’s deferral
of the District’s final two state aid payments.

16. Capital Reserve Account

A capital reserve account was established by the District in June 2008 and issued for the
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years, The capital
resetve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund
annual budget. Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the
District’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LREP to the
Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the
annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end (June 1
to June 30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line — item appropriation amounts, or both.
A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been
obtained either by a scparate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four
special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g), the
balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects
in its approved LRFP,

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2019 $ 6,745,704
Increased By:
Deposit approved at the June 2020
Board meeting 3,999,461
Interest 12,000
Decreased By: Budget withdrawal (2,000,000)
Ending balance, June 30, 2020 $ 8,757,165

Of the balance in reserve at June 30, 2020, $1,700,000 is included to be utilized in the 2020-21
approved budget. The withdrawal from the capital reserve was for use in DOE approved facilities
projects, consistent with the District’s LRFP. The June 30, 2020 LRFP balance of local support
costs of uncompleted projects exceeds the amount set aside in capital reserve,
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Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

17. Maintenance Reserve Account

A maintenance reserve account was established by the District in June 2010 to be used to
accumulate funds for the required maintenance of facilities, and in accordance with N.J.S.A.
18A:7G-9, as amended by P.L. 2004, ¢, 73 (S1701), passed a board resolution authorizing the
establishment of a maintenance reserve account in the District’s General Fund. As allowed by
N.I.S.A., 18A:F-41 and N.JLA.C. 6A:23A-14.3 the District can pass a board resolution to deposit
funds into a maintenance reserve account between June 1 and June 30 of each budget year.

The activity of the mainienance reserve for the July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2019 $ 1,350,000
Increased by:
Deposit approved at the June 2020

Board meeting 850,000
Interest 1,000
Decreased by:
Budget withdrawal (451,000)
Ending balance, June 30, 2020 $ 1,750,000

Of the balance in reserve at June 30, 2020, $821,000 is included to be utilized in the 2020-2021
approved budget.

18. Restricted Assets

The funds set aside for capital reserve and maintenance reserve are classified as restricted assets
(cash and cash equivalents) as they are restricted for future capital projects and maintenance
requirements, respectively.

19. Rental Agreements

Effective September 1, 2017, the District entered into a new lease with Brookdale Community
College to rent the first floor of the building, for the period from September 1, 2017 through June
30, 2020. Payments made from the College to the District during fiscal year 2020 totaled $146,457.

20. GASB 77 Tax Abatements

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an
agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to
forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that
contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens.
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Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

20. GASB 77 Tax Abatements (continued)

However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into
tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the
county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly
affect the school district’s local tax revenue because N,J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require
that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the
school district.

Yor a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise
their minimum tax levy using the required local share provision at N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-5(b), the loss of
revenue resulting from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is
indeterminate due to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the
New Jersey Department of Education based upon district property value and wealth,

The Township of Neptune provides for long-term tax exemptions, as authorized by New lersey
State Statutes. N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. sets forth the criteria and mechanism by which property
taxes can and are abated. The exemptions provided by the Township of Neptune are for affordable
housing projects. Taxes abated include municipal, local school and county taxes,

The Township of Neptune recognized revenue of $321,581 from the annual service charge in lieu
of payment of taxes in 2019 and taxes in 2019 that otherwise would have been due on these long-
term tax exemptions amounted to $1,035,448, based upon the assessed valuations of the long-term
tax exemptions properties. A portion of the $713,867 abatement would have been allocated to the
District.

21, Lease Commitments - Operating Lease

The District leases copiers from Municipal Capital Lease (Lessor) under a fifieen-year lease. The
initial five-year period commenced on July 1, 2016, The Lease expense, excluding additional
operating expenses, amounted to $56,403 for fiscal year 2020. The future minimum lease payments
under the lease agreement over the remaining life of the lease is $63,513.

22, Liquidity, Management Plans and Intentions

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the District closed its schools on March 16, 2020 and continued to
provide online instruction to its students through the end of the school year. The Pandemic did not
have a significant impact on the financial statements of the District for the year ended June 30,
2020. However, the Pandemic did result in the State of New Jersey taking steps to reduce the
amount of state aid to be provided to the District in the 2020-21 fiscal year subsequent to the
District’s adoption of its budget. Management has taken steps to reduce certain expenses related to
operating the District and also plans to utilize existing funds to balance its budget for the 2020-21
fiscal year, if needed. Management believes that the unassigned fund balance available as of June
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Neptune Township School District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

22. Liquidity, Management Plans and Intentions (continued)

30, 2020 and the anticipated revenues from state aid, taxes and other revenues will be sufficient to
meet the District’s financial needs for one year from the date of the issuance of this report.
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Neptune Township Schoot Disteict
Schedule of the State's Propertionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Assoctated With the Distrct
Teachers' Pension and Anwity Fund :
Regiured Supplenentary Tnformation ;

Last Ten Fiscal Years®

Year Ended Jung 30,
2020 2019 2018 2017 2086 2018

Siate's proportion of the net pension

liability (asset) associated with the District -

Local Growp 0.2797166169% 0.2906555742% 0.29691 1B423% 0.2988636375% 0.2042601365%  0.3018486894%
Distsict's preportionats share of the aet

pension lability (asset) $ - % - % - 8 - % - 5 -
State's proportionate share of the net

pension liabilily (asset) associated

H 17,701,847 8 184,908,833 § 200,188,670 § 235,105,166 § 1859814972 & 161,328,300

with the Disirict

Tota) proporiionate share of the nel pension liability {asse)
associated with the Distriet 5 171,701,547 % 184,008 833 § 200,138,6%0 8 235,103,166 § 185984972 % 161,328,300
Plan Hduciary nel position as a
26.95% 26.4%% 2341% 2233% 287% 33.64%

pereentage of the total pension liability

* ‘The antounts presented for each fiscal year wezo determined as of the previeus fiscal year-end,

“This scheduic is presented (o #lustrate the requirement to show information for tea years, However, untit a full ten-year wrend
is compiled, govermenls should present information for those years for uiich information is available.

Covered paytoll informatien s rot presented since the Teachers' Pension snd Anawity Fund is a special funding sitvation in
which the District does ot make a contribution to this plan.

See @qeeoNipanying notes lo required snpplententary information. 76
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Neptutie Township School District
Schedule of the State’s Proportionate Share of the Nel OPEB Liability Associated with the District
and Changes in {lie Total OPEB Liability and Related Rafios
Public Employce's Retirement Systens and Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
Reqiured Supplementary [nformation

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Year Ended June 30,
2020 2019 2018 2017

Siate's proportion of the net OPEBR

liability (asset) associated with the District 0.29% 0.25% 0.29% 0.29%
District's proportionate share of the wet OPEB liability $ - $ B $ - $ -
S$tate's proportionate share of the net OPEB Jiability
associated with the Districl 3 123,095,130 §$ 134,648,644 & 157,359,812 % 169,479,950
Total proportionate sitare of the net GPEB liability (asset)

associated with the Disirict 5 123,095,130 § 134,648,644 S 157,359,832 § 169,479,950
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total OPEB liability 0,00% (.00% 0.00% 0.06%

2020 2019 2018 20174

Tota! OPEB Liabitity

Service cost $ 5,530,680 $ 6,169,210 3 7,424,322

Interest cost 5,354,664 5,792,666 4,992,097

Differences between expested and actual (20,607,574) (15,745,439) -

Changes of assumptions 1,835,359 (15,451,606} {21,025,959)

Member contributions 112,010 124,438 134,210

Gross benefif payments (3,778,653} (3,600,457} (3,644,788)

Net change in {otal OPEB liability (11,553,514) (22,711,188} (12,120,118}

Total OPEB liability - beginning 134,648,644 157,359,832 169,479,950
Tolal OPEB liability - endizg $ 123,095,130 8§ 134,648,644 § 157,359,832
Covered-enmployee payroll 5 39,198,925 8§ 3R,317.627 & 36,673,887
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payrall 314.03% 351.40% 429.08%

“The amounts presented for each fseal year were detennined as of the previous fiscal year-end.

* This sehedule is presented to iflustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the
District shoutd present information for these years for which information is available.

*# information nol available

Seg cccompanying notes fo required supplementary information. 7




Neptune Township School District
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Year ended June 30, 2020

PENSION - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Benefit Changes

There were none,

Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 5.66% as of June 30, 2018 to 6.28% as of June 30, 2019.

TEACHERS’ PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND-PENSION

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 4.86% as of June 30, 2018 to 5.60% as of June 30, 2019,

OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES® RETIREMENT SYSTEM
AND TEACHERS’ PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND

Benefit Changes

There were none,

Changos of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 3.87% as of June 30, 2018 to 3,50% as of June 30, 2019,
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Required Supplementary Information
Part III
Budgetary Comparison Schedules

Budgetary Comparison Schedules provide a one-year comparison of original budget,
budget transfers, final budget and actual information for the General Fund and Special
Revenue Fund.




Exhibit C-f
Page 1
Meptune Township Schoof District
Geaneral Fund
Budgelary Comparison Schedule
{Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Varinnce
Crrelginnk Budget Final Final to
Budget Trausfers Budgel Actual Actusl
REVENUES:
Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy $ 39,540,272 $ 39,540,272 § 39,540,272

Tuition from other LEAs within the State 5,235,000 5,235,000 6,409,828 % 1,174,828

Trausportation fees from other LEAs within the State 525,000 535,000 448,169 (76,831)

Interest Barned on Innvesiments 78,000 78,000 80,976 2,97

Miscellaneous 450,000 450,000 617,307 167,307
Total - Local Seurces 45,828,272 45,828,272 47,096,552 1,268,280
State Sources:

Equalization Aid 24,633,298 . 24,633,298 24,633,298

Special Education Aid 2,404,326 2,404,326 2,404,326

Transportation Aid 1,589,446 1,589,446 1,589,446

Security Aid 1,222,886 1,222,886 1,222,886

Additional Non-Public Transportation Aid 23,020 23,020

Extraordinary Aid 500,000 500,600 1,627,619 527,619

TPAF Pension {On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted) 6,401,680 6,401,680

TPAF Pension Contribulions - Post-Retirement Medical (On-Belalf -

Non-Budgeted) 2,374,906 2,374,906

TPAF Pension Contzibutions - Long-Tenu Disability Insurance (On-Belialf -

Non-Budgetad) 4,018 4,918

TPAF Sociat Security (Reimbursed - Non-Budgsted) 2,305,602 2,303,602
Totel Stale Sources 30,349,956 383,349,956 41,987,701 £1,637,745
Federal Sources:

Medical Assistance Progzant 145,772 145,772 135,996 {9,776)
Total - Federal Sources 145,772 145,772 135,996 {9,776
Tota! Revenues 76,324,000 76,324,000 89,220,240 12,896,249

EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:
Itegular Prograws - Instruction
Kindergartes - Salares of Teachers 870,245 § 1,408 872,653 872,653
Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers 6,007,545 {65,009) 5,942,536 5,714,127 228,409
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers 4,045,429 (550,147) 3,495,282 3,396,466 98,316
Grades 9-12 - Salaries of Teachers 5,745,191 163,464 5,908,655 5,414,311 464,344
Regulnr Programs - Honte Instruction
Salaries of Teachers 200,000 (23,500) 176,400 £34,429 41,971
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 60,006 60,000 31,554 28,446
Regular Programs - Undlsiributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction 447,775 (6,689) 441,086 419,030 22,056
Purchased Professionai-Educational Services 234,000 (37,196) 196,204 134,988 11,216
Purchased Techmical Services 140,300 (4,154) 296,146 259,508 36,638
Other Purchased Services 488,000 153,968 641,968 361,610 280,358
General Supplies 591,060 166,523 757,523 138,125 18,798
Textbooks 154,500 {76,587) 71513 77,912 ¥
Other Objects 49,113 (i3,009) 36,106 31,506 4,600
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION 19,194,100 (291,628) 18,902,472 17,636,812 1,265,653
SPECIAL EDUCATION « INSTRUCTION
Lenrning andfor Langunge Disshiktles
Salaries of Teachers 743,974 (30,474) 713,500 6,203 1,297
Other Salaties for Instruction 351,445 (34,406) 317,039 315,812 1,227
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 43,100 40,000 83,100 73,476 9,624
Ciher Purchased Services 2,250 2,250 280G 1,450
General Supplies 20,560 {2,500% 18,000 17,656 344
Totat Learning nad/or Langunge Disabllitles 1,161,269 (27,380) 1,133,880 1,183,947 19,942
Auditory Tmpatrments
Salnries of Teachers 726,708 (58,448) 668,260 651,168 17,092
Other Salaries for Instruction 447,492 1,807 449,299 442,339 6,966
Purchased Professional-Bducational Services 6,900 {5,000) £,900 1,900
Other Purchnsed Services 26,900 13,350 40,250 29,527 10,723
General Supplies 10,600 (35) 9,965 5,748 4,217
Total Auditory Impairments 1,218,600 {48,326} 1,169,674 1,128,782 40,892
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Behnvioral Disabiilties
Salaries of Teaclers
Other Safaries for Instruction
Purchased Professional-Educational Services
General Supplies
‘Total Behavloral Pisabilliles

Mukilple DisabHities
Salaries of Teachers
Giher Salades for Instruction
Purchased Professional-Educational Services
General Supplies
Total Multipte Disabliies

Resource Room/Resource Center
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaties for Instruction
Purchased Peofessional-Educational Services
General Supplies
Total Resource Room/Resource Center

Preschoo! Disabiilties - Full-Time
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased Professicual-Educational Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplics
"Total Preschool Disabilities - Full-Tinte
TOTAL SPECTAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION

Bilingual Education « Instruction
Salaries of Teaclers
General Supplies

Total Bilingual Education « Instruction

Schonl-Spen. Cocursicular Actves., - Inst,
Sataries
Purchased Services
Other Objects

Tetal School-Spon Cocurricular Actvts, - Inst,

School-Spon. Athileties
Salories
Purchased Services
Suppiies and Materinls
Total Schooi-Span, Athietics

Other Supplementnry/At-Risk Program- Instruction
Salaties of Reading Specialists
TFoial Other Supplementary/At-Risk Program- fnstruction

Cormmunlty Services Programs/Operations
Supplics and Meterisls
Other Objects

Total Consmunity Services Programs/Operations

TOTAL INSTRUCTION

Undistributed Expenditures - Instruclion
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State - Regular
Tuition to Otler LEAs Within the State « Speeial
Tuition to County Vos. School Dist, - Regular
Tuition to Coundy Voe. School Dist. - Special
Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabled - Within State
Tuition - State Facilities

Tetal Undistfibided Expenditures - Instructlon

Exhibit C-1

Page 2
Neptune Township Schood Distriet
Genreral Fund
Budgelary Compatison Schedule
{Budpetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Varlance
Original DBudget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actun]
§ 171,505 § (35,002} § 136,503 § 136,503
48,817 694 49,511 49,511
80O {800}y
1,000 [€])] 969 268 1
222,122 {35,139 186,983 186,982 [
418,462 {807} 417,655 417,655
334,309 {24,743} 309,566 309,566
120,000 102,000 222,000 185,782 36,28
5,000 (13) 4,987 4,213 774
877,171 76,437 954,208 917,216 36,992
3,539,697 267,910 3,807,607 3,807,606 1
262,572 901 263,473 252,250 14,223
120,000 19,015 139,015 54,045 34,970
13,400 [46) 13,354 12,338 996
3,935,669 287,780 4,223,449 4,126,259 97,190
384,815 73,239 458,084 456,584 1,508
102,023 24,818 126,841 115,643 11,198
5,000 159,500 164,500 151,545 12,955
400 400 490
5,000 7,150 13,150 13,149 1
458,268 264,707 762,975 736,921 26,054
1,913,099 518,079 8,431,178 8,210,107 221,071
374,082 (612} 33470 373,470
1,500 (% 1491 1,491
375,582 (627) 374,961 374,961
229,350 (10,862) 218,488 218,487 1
12,300 (8,584) 3,716 3,716
1,500 1,500 1,134 3566
243,150 (19,446} 223,704 323,337 357
1,016,949 {37,012} 979,937 973,250 6,687
210,165 (50,678} 159,487 155,474 4,013
79,000 {4,491} 74,509 71,638 2,871
1,306,114 (92,181} 1,213,933 1,200,362 13,571
971,895 79,643 1,051,538 1,033,012 18,526
971,395 79,643 1,051,538 1,033,012 18,526
1,060 1,000 1,000
1,000 7,000 1,798 5,202
8,000 8,000 1,798 6,202
30,011,940 193,846 30,205,786 18,680,396 1,525,390
90,474 36,469 126,943 £20,362 6,581
122,020 46,200 168,220 168,220
194,385 27,945 222,330 120,844 1,486
263,350 {31,487) 231,863 231,863
6,445,347 (198,331) 6,247,016 5,549,109 697,907
240,718 240,718 240,718
7,356,204 {119,204) 7,231,090 6,531,116 705,974
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Undistributed Expend. - Attendance and Soctal Work
Salaries
Salavies of Drop-Out Preventicn Officer/Coordinator
Other Purchased Services

Tolal Undistributed Expend. - Attendance and Soclal Work

Undlst, Expend, - Health Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technicai Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplics and Materials
Total Undistributed Expenditires - Health Services

Undist, Expend. - Other Supp, Serv, Sludeats - Related Serv.
Sataries
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Undlst, Expend. - Other Supp, Serv, Stutenis - Refated Serv,

Undist. Expend, - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff’
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistanis
Purclnsed Professional - Bducational Services
Other Purchased Services
Suppties and Materinls

Totat Undist, Expend. - Guldance

Unidist, Expend, - Child Study Team
Salaries of Other Professional Stoff
Salaries of Sceretarial and Cleriend Assistants
Other Purchased Services
Misceltaneous Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
rher Objects
Totat Undist, Expend. - Chitd Study Team

Undist. Expend, - Improvement of Inst. Serv,
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction
Salasies of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Sceretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Prof, - Bducational Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Maderfals
Other Objects
Tota! Undlst, Expend, - Improvement of Inst, Serv.

Undist. Expend. - Edu. Medin Serv./Sch, Library
Salaries
Supplies and Materials

Totaf Undlst, Expend, - Edu, Media Serv./Sch. Library

Undist, Expend. - Supg. Serv, - General Admin.
Saisries
Legal Services
Audit Fees
Architectural/Engineering Services
Purcliased Technical Services
Conununications/Telephene
Board of BEducation Other Purchased Services
Cther Purchased Services
General Supplies
Board of Education In-House Training/Meeting Supplies
MisceHaneous Expenditures
Board of Education Dues and Fees
Total Undist, Expend. - Supp. Sers. - General Admin,

Exhibif C-1

Pape 3
Neptune Township Schoot Dlstriet
General Fund
Budgelnry Comparlsen Schedule
{Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Variance
Griginal Budget Fiagl Finnl to
Budget Transfers Budpet Actual Actual
H 283,126 § 6,370 § 289,496 288,258 § 1,238
45,515 (45) 45,470 45,470
900 {900)
329,54 5,425 334,966 333,728 1,238
710,906 {59,203) 651,703 625,320 26,383
1,800 1,600 3,400 2,570 830
6,000 {1,000) 5,000 4,322 678
27,100 132,031 159,131 151,687 7444
745,806 73,428 519,234 783,899 35,333
322,895 55,425 378,320 371,308 7912
1,079,000 22,529 1,101,529 1,046,908 54,621
1,000 1,000 959 31
1,402,895 77,954 1,480,849 1,419,085 61,664
1,131,111 (5,147) 1,125,964 1,107,846 18,118
140,817 2,178 142,995 142,993
28,000 4,351 32,351 32,350 1
107,650 (5,172) 102,478 97,766 4,712
34,708 {1,518) 33,162 25,170 3,992
1,442,278 (5,328) 1,436,950 1,410,127 26,823
1,093,902 1,613 1,095,515 1,095,235 280
145,233 3,376 148,609 140,089 8,520
3,750 3,730 2,790 950
13,000 (3,275) 19,725 17,675 2,050
7,850 3,025 10,875 10,320 555
800 {200) 600 277 323
1,274,535 4,539 1,279,074 1,266,386 12,688
589,323 (20,338) 568,485 558,385 9,600
296,800 (19,043) 271,757 187,954 89,803
47,421 230 47,651 47,651
139,000 {52,443) 86,555 50,819 35,736
1,500 {300) 1,200 147 1,053
7,060 (500) 6,500 163 6,335
23,000 23,000 14,557 8443
1,104,044 (92,896) 1,011,148 860,178 150,970
834,535 338 834,873 811,292 23,581
27,000 (4,393} 22,607 21,539 1,068
851,535 (4,055) 857,480 832,831 24,649
627,183 4,395 631,488 629,401 2,087
150,000 24,000 174,060 103,214 70,786
74,460 1,340 75,800 15,800
10,000 20,000 30,000 15,161 14,839
43,000 20 43,220 42,791 429
148,800 9,050 157,850 151,451 6,39
7,760 7,100 1,706 5,994
148,150 {5,154) 142,995 133,274 9,742
27,900 {800) 27,100 8,520 8,580
4,300 4,300 3,346 954
6,000 6,000 4,537 1,463
39,000 39,600 34,986 4,014
1,286,493 52,961 1,339,454 £,214,187 125,267
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Exhibit C-1

Page 4
Neptune Township Schoo! Distrlel
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
{Budgetary Basls)
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Varlance
Ovrighial Budgef Final Elunl to
Budget Transfers Budgel Actual Actual

Undist, Expend. - Supperi Serv, - Scliool Adnvin,

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals 8 1,740,076 % ) 8 1,740,074 § 10073 8 1

Sataries - Other Professional Staff 482,316 (796) 481,520 380,437 101,083

Salaries of Secretarial mnd Clerical Assistants 691,283 (7,026) 684,257 662,424 21,833

Other Purchased Services 60,400 (7,908) 52,492 45,840 6,652

Suppiles and Materials 39,600 (720) 38,880 35,561 3,319

Cther Objeets 1,160 (764) 336 235 10
Total Undlst, Expend, - Support Serv. - Scheol Admin, 3,004,775 (£7,216) 2,997,559 2,864,570 132,989
Unidlst, Expend, - Central Servlces

Salaries 137,206 (1,721} 729,485 720,476 9,009

Purchased Technicn! Services 36,000 10,091 46,0691 45,118 973

Misc Purchased Services 28,000 28,000 13,894 14,106

Supplies and Materials 4,993 1,007 6,000 5,712 288
Total Undisl, Expend. - Centrnl Servlces 806,199 3377 869,576 785,200 24,376
Undist, Expend, - Technology Admin,

Salaries 403,573 (772) 402,801 402,801

Purchased Technical Services 55,000 {9,972} 45,028 31,695 13,333

Other Purchased Services 4,000 4,000 1,794 2,206

Supplies and Materials 22,000 22,000 13,334 8,666
‘Total Undist,Expend, - Technotogy Admin, 484,573 (10,744} 473,829 449,624 24,205
Undist, Expend, - Regnired Malnt, for Sch. Facll,

Salaries 465,539 2,120 467,659 442,247 25,442

Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 2,015,000 191,796 2,206,796 2,170,700 36,096

General Supplies 160,000 160,060 116,219 43,781

(her Objects 30,000 4,000 34,000 33,919 8l
Telal Undist, Expend, - Reqitfved Maint. for Sch, Facil, 2,670,539 197916 2,868,455 2,763,085 185,370
Undist. Expend, - Custodini Services

Snlaries 2,867,642 (33,468} 2,834,174 2,702,530 131,644

Cleahing, Repair and Maintenance Services 85,000 7,034 92,034 55,462 36,572

Other Purchased Property Services 122,600 450 124,050 115,211 12,839

Insurance 334,600 939 335,539 335,538 1

General Supplies 192,000 (3,800) 188,260 170,54 17,6256

Natural Gas 293,000 (2,500) 290,560 240,956 49,544

Bleetricity 1,484,000 (7,039) 1,476,961 1,415,867 61,094
Total Undist, Expend, - Custodial Services 5,378,842 (37,384) 5,341,458 5,032,138 309,320
Undist, Expend. - Care and Upkeep of Grounds

Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Serviees 713,000 87,000 §00,000 789,725 10,275

Geneeat Supplics 23,000 23,000 15931 7.069
Total Undisi. Expend, - Care and Upkeep of Grounds 736,000 87,000 323,600 805,656 17,344
Undist, Expend. « Security

Saiaries 502,390 (179 s62,211 508,769 442

Purchased Professional and Technicai Services 75,000 10,000 85,000 49,160 15,840

General Supplies 28,000 {11,782) 16,218 13,906 2,312
Total Undist. Expend, - Security 605,390 {1,961} 603,429 584,835 18,594
Undist, Expend. - Studesntt Transportation Serv.

Salaries for Pupil Trans, (Between Home & School) - Regular 135,760 (625) 135,135 135,035 106

Other Purcltased Professional and Technical Services 4,800 (300) 4,500 4,500

Contracted Services Aid In Lieu of Payment for Nen-publie School Studeats 17,000 {6,000} 11,000 6,598 4,402

Contrscted Services {Between Home and School) - Vendors 1,295,000 {1,540} 1,287,460 1,2£2,472 74,988

Contracled Services (Other than Between Home and School) - Vendors 246,200 (63,753} 176,447 129,996 46,451

Contracted Services (Sp. Ed.) - Vendors 1,575,000 72,911 1,647,911 1,518,873 129,038

General Supplies 5,600 {1,100} 3,900 1,762 2,138
Total Undist. Expeitd. - Student Transportation Serv. 3,272,760 (6,407) 3,266,353 3,609,236 257,117
Unalloeated Benefits

Social Security Contributions 1,141,803 115,460 1,217,263 1,119,899 97,364

Other Retirenent Contributions - PERS 1,079,505 {38,650) 1,040,855 1,027,606 13,249

Workmen's Compensation 532,255 24,787 557,042 557,042

Heallls Benefits 11,728,275 (533,618) 11,194,657 10,154,663 1,009,994

Tuition Reimbursensent 10,060 1,250 £1,250 11,250

Oihier Employee Benefils 515,000 515,000 345,242 169,758
Total Unaifocated Beneflis 14,966,838 {430,771) 14,536,067 13,215,702 1,320,365
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On-behalf Contribniions
TPAF Pension {On-Behatl - Non-Dudpeted)
TPAF Pension Conteibutions - Post-Retirement Medical (On-Behalf -
Non-Budgeted)

TPAF Pension Contributions - Long-Term Disabifity Insurance (On-Behalf -

MNon-Budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Conteibutions {non-budgeted)
Total On-behall Contributions
TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE

CAPITAL OUTEAY
Equipnient
Regular Programs-Tustruction:
Grades 6-8
Total Equipment

Facitities Acquisition and Construetion Services
Architechural/Engineering Services
Construction Services
Total Fachilties Acqulsition and Construction Services
TOTAL CAPITAL DUTLAY

Coniribution to Charter Schools
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
{Deficiency) Excess of Revenues (Under) Over Expendilures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)t
Transfer in - Congribution to school based budgets- GT
Transfer in - Comdribution to school based budgets- SRT
Transfer out - Contribution to school based budgets
Transfer out - Contribution e preschool education
Total Other Finnncing Sources (Uses)

{Deficlency} Excess of eveaues
(Under) Over Expendilures and Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balance, July |
Fund Balance, June 30

Recapklulation of Fund Balance:

Restricted Fund Batance:
Excess Surplus-current year
Excess Surplus-prior year designated for subsequent year's expenditures
Capital Reserve
Maintenance Reserve

Assigned lo:
Yenr End Encumbrances

Unassigned Fund Balance

Reconcliiation of Budgetary Fund Balance to GAAP Fund Balance:
Final State Aid Payments Not Realized o1t GAAP Basis
Fund balance per Governmental Funds (GAAP)

Exhibit C-1

Page §
Neplune Towaship School Distriet
General Fund
Budgelary Comparison Schedule
{Budgelary Basks)
Yenr Ended June 30, 2020
Varlance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budgel Translers Budget Aciual Acluat
$ 6,401,680 (6,401,680}
2,374,906 {2,374,906)
4,918 (4,918}
2,305,602 {2,305,602)
11,087,106 (11,087,106)
3 47,739,337 % {223,366) § 47,315,971 55,248,789 {1,732,818)
77,754,277 (29,520 77,721,757 81,929,185 (6,207,428)
29,520 29,520 29,520
29,520 29,520 29,520
210,00¢ {117,966} 92,034 92,034
1,790,000 408,681 1,698,681 2,091,644 607,037
2,000,000 790,715 2,790,715 2,183,678 607,037
2,000,000 120,235 2,820,235 2,213,198 607,037
2,731,921 2,731,923 2,422,060 309,863
82,483,200 750,715 83,273,915 88,564,443 (5,290,528)
(6,159,200 (790,715) {6,944,215} 655,806 7,605,721
44,800,000 44,800,000 43,560,822 (£,239,178)
1,915,000 1,915,000 1,862,708 (52,292}
(44,800,000) {44,800,000) (43,560,822} 1,239,178
(193,800) {193,200) (185,100} 8,700
1,721,200 1,721,200 1,677,608 {43,592}
{4,438,000) (790,715) {5,228,75) 2,333,414 7,562,129
14,934,614 14,934,614 14,934,614
& 10496614 % {790,715) § 9,705,802 § 17,268,028 1,562,129
$ 1,910,000
1,995,000
8,757,163
1,750,000
789,229
2,066,634
17,268,028
2,952,848
H 14,313,184
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Neptune Township School District
Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
{Budgetary Basis)

Year ended June 30, 2020
Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
Revenues:
State Sources ' § 5,718,945 $ 5718945 % 5766795 % 47,850
Federal Sources 2,350,000 % 1,103,542 3,453,542 2678 865 (774.677)
Total revenues 8,068,945 1,103,542 9,172,487 8 445660 {726,821
Expenditures:
Instruction:
Salaries of teachers 2,603,953 153,421 2,157,374 2,031,743 125,631
Other sslaries for instruction 781,700 {23,710} 757,990 757,990
Purchased professional and technical servies 129,585 129,585 94,285 35,300
Other purchased services 35,000 4,319 39,319 39,319
General supplies 82,050 376,468 458,524 175,461 287,063
Other objects 2,700 638 3,338 2,138 1,200
Totat instruction 2,905,409 640,721 3,546,130 1,096,936 449,194
Support services:
Personne! services - salaries 19,136 19,136 6,687 12,449
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 114,639 {557) 114,082 114,082
Salaries of program directors 141,344 {686) 140,658 140,658
Salaries of other professional staff 116,375 {1,687) 114,688 i14,688
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 45,310 (548) 44,762 44,762
Salaries of master teachers 170,112 2,891 173,003 173,003
Cther salaries 4,136 4,136 4,136
Personal services—employee berefits 2,237,599 65,219 2,302,818 2,292,592 10,226
Other purchase professional - technical services 225,000 177,242 402,242 332,907 69,535
Other purchased professional services 7,500 6,580 14,680 14,080
Contr Serv -~ Trans {bef home & school) 276,000 {1,000} 275,000 275,600
Other purchased services 101,873 101,873 53272 48,661
Travel 6,500 {4,035) 2,465 2.465
Supplies and materials 101,957 80,432 182,389 97,859 84,530
Todal support services 3,442,336 448,996 3,891,332 3,665,991 225,341
Capitai Outlay:
Facilities acquisition and consiruction services; |
Noninstructional equipment 5,125 5,125 5,125 |
Total capital outlay 5,125 5,128 5,125 ‘
|
Total expenditures ~ 6,347,745 1,094,842 7.442 587 6,768,052 674,535
Other financing (uses) sources:
Contribution to school based budgets (1,915,000} (1,915,000} (1,862,708} 52,292
General Fund Contribution to Preschool Education 193,800 (8,700) 185,160 185,100
Totat other financing (uses) sources (1,721,200) (8,700) 1,729,900y {1,677,608) 52,292
Total expenditures and other financing {uses) sources 8.008.945 1,103,542 G.172,487 8,445,660 7263827

Excess [deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenditures and other financing uses 3 - Y - 3 - $ - $ -
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C-3

Neptune Township School District
Note to Required Supplementary Information

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation
Year ended June 30, 2020

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts {(budgetary basis) "revenue" from the
budgetary comparison schedule (C-1, C-2) ¥ 89,220,249 § 8,445,660
Differences - Budgetary to GAAP:
State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements.
Prior year 3,095,318 529,720
Current year (2,952,844) (571,899)
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds (B-2) $ 89362723 § 8,403,481
Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule (C-1, C-2) $ 88,564,443 $ 8,630,760
Differences - Budgetary to GAAP:
Transfers to other funds are presented as outflows of
budgetary resources but are not expenditures
for financial reporting purposes. (1,862,708)
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds (B-2) $ 88564443 § 6,768,052
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Neptune Township School District
General Fund

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2020

Operating
Fund
Fund 11-13

D-1

Blended Total
Resource General
Fund 15 Fund

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 637,286 % 434,414 $ 1,071,700
Interfund receivable 840,901 840,901
Intergovernmental accounts receivable—federal 6,217 6,217
Intergovernmental accounts receivable—state 4,119,863 4,119,863
Other accounts receivable 1,557,339 1,557,339
Restricted assets:

* Cash and cash equivalents 10,507,165 10,507,165
Total assets $ 17,668,771 $ 434414 § 18,103,185

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 566,813 $ 257,630 $ 824,443
Interfund payable 10,714 10,714
Total liabilities 577,527 257,630 835,157
Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Excess surplus current year 1,910,000 1,910,000
Excess surplus prior year 1,995,000 1,995,000
Maintenance reserve 1,750,000 1,750,000
Capital reserve 8,757,165 8,757,165
Assigned to:
Other purposes - year-end encumbrances 612,445 176,784 789,229
Unassigned 2,066,634 2,066,634
Total fund balances 17,091,244 176,784 17,268,028
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 17,668,771 $ 434414 § 18,103,185
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual

Bistrict-wide

Resources
General Fund Contribution to School Based Budget
General Fund Contribution

Restricted Federal Resources:
Title I, Part A; NCLB

Title II, Part A: NCLB

IDEA, Part B
Restricted Federal Resources Total

Total

Year ended June 30, 2020

Total
District-wide Expenditures
Resource Blended % Allocated as Total

Amount of Totai % of Total Surplus/
(Final Budget) Resources Resources Carryover
$ 44,860,000 $ 43,384,038 5 1,415,962
44,800,000 95.90% 43,384,038 1,415,962
800,000 1.71 778,128 21,872
115,000 0.25 112,065 2,933
1,000,000 2.14 972,513 27,485
1,915,000 4.10 1,862,708 52,292
$ 46,715,000 100.60% $ 45,246,746 $ 1,468,254
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual

Year ended June 30, 2020

Midtown Community Elementary School

D-2a

Total
Expenditures
Resource Blended % Allocated as a Total
Amount of Total % of Total Surplus/
Resources {Final Budget) Resources Resources Carryover
General Fund Conlribulion to School Based Budget $ 4,791,265 $ 4,706,268 $ 84,997
General Fund Contribution 4,791,265 93.04% 4,706,268 84,957
Restricted Federal Resources:
Title 1, Part A: NCLB 196,835 3.82 193,343 3,492
Title 11, Part A: NCLB 19,100 0.37 18,761 339
IDEA, Part B 142,800 2.77 140,267 2,333
Restricted Federal Resources Total 358,735 6.96 352,371 6,364
Totat $ 5,150,000 100.00% $ 5,058,639 $ 91,361
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Neptune Township School District -
Blended Resource Fund 15

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual

Year ended June 30, 2020

Gables Elementary School

Total
Expenditures :
Resource Blended % Allocated as a Total
Amount of Total % of Total Surplus/
Resources (Final Budget) Resources Resources Carryover
General Fund Contribution to School Based Budget $ 3,066,265 $ 3,005,632 $ 60,633
General Fund Contribution 3,066,265 92.22% 3,005,632 60,633
Restricted Federal Resources:
Title 1, Part A: NCLB 96,835 2.92 94,920 1,915
Title 1, Part A: NCLB 19,100 0.57 18,722 378
IDEA, Part B 142,800 4.29 139,976 2,824
Restricted Federal Resources Total 258,733 7.78 253,618 3,117
Total $ 3,325,600 100.00% $  3,259.250 $ 65,750
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual

Year ended June 30, 2020

Green Grove Elementary School

D-2¢

Total
Expenditures
Resource Blended % Allocated as a Total
Amount of Total % of Total Surplus/
Resources {Final Budget) Resourees Resources Carryover
General Fund Coniribution to School Based Budget $ 3,601,138 $ 3,49{),134 $ 111,004
Gengral Fund Contribution 3,601,138 93.05% 3,490,134 111,004
Resiricted Federal Resources:
Title 1, Part A; NCLB 1(:6,962 2.76 103,663 3,297
Title 11, Part A; NCLB 19,100 0.49 18,511 589
IDEA, Part B 142,800 1,70 138,398 4,402
Restricled Federal Resources Total 268,862 6.95 260,574 8,288
Total $ 3,870,000 100.00% $ 3,750,708 5 119,292
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual

Year ended June 30, 2020

Shark River Hills Elemientary School

Total
Expenditures

D-2d

Resource Blended % Allocated as a Total
Amount of Total % of Total Surplus/
Resources {Fingal Budget) Resources Resources Carryover
General Fund Contribution to School Based Budget $ 3,078,100 $ 3,015,993 $ 62,107
General Fund Contribution 3,078,100 95.00% 3,015,993 62,107
Restricted Federal Resources:
Title 11, Part A: NCLB 19,100 0.59 18,715 385
IDEBA, Part B 142,800 4.41 139,919 2,881
Restricted Federal Resources Total 161,900 5.00 158,634 3,266
Total $ 3,240,000 100.00% $ 3,174,627 3 65,373
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual

Year ended June 30, 2020

Summerfield Elementary School

Total
Expenditures
Resource Blended % Allocated as a Total
Amount of Total % of Total Surplus/
Resources {Fina! Budget) Resources Resources Carryover
General Fund Coniribution to School Based Budgst $ 4,785,948 $ 4,641,413 $ 144,535
General Fund Contribution 4,785,948 94.40% 4,041,413 144,535
Restricted Federal Resources:
Titie I, Part A: NCLB 122,152 2.40 118,463 1,689
Title IT, Part A; NCLB 19,100 0.38 18,523 577
IDEA, Part B 142,800 2.82 138,487 4,313
Restricied Federal Resoutces Total 284,052 5,60 275,473 8,579
Total $ 5,070,000 100.00% § 4,916,886 3 153,114
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual

Year ended June 30, 2020

Neptune Middle School

Total
Expenditures

D-2f

Resource Blended % Allocated as a Total
Amount of Total % of Total Surplus/
Resources (Final Budget) Resources Resources Carryover
General Fund Contribution to Schoo! Based Budget $ 9,960,484 $  9.619.901 $ 340,583
General Fund Contribution 9,960,484 95.77% 9,619,901 340,583
Restricted Federal Resources:
Title 1, Part A: NCLB 277.216 2.67 267,737 9,479
Title 11, Part A: NCLB 19,500 0.19 18,833 667
IDEA, Part B 142,800 1,37 137,917 4,883
Restricted Federal Resources Total 439,516 4,23 424 487 15,029
Total $ 10,400,000 100.00% $ 10,044,388 $ 355,612

98



Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual

Neptune High School

Resources
General Fund Contribution to School Based Budget
General Fund Contribution
Restricted Federarl Resources:
IDEA, Part B

Restricted Federal Resources Total

Total

Year ended June 30, 2020

D-2g

Fotal
Expenditures
Resource Blended % Allocated as a Total

Amount of Total % of Total Surplus/
{F'inal Budget) Resources Resources Carryover
$ 15,516,800 § 14,904,697 3 612,103
15,516,800 99.09% 14,904,697 612,103
143,200 0.91 137,551 5,649
143,200 0.9% 137,551 5,649
$ 15,660,000 100.00% $ 15,042,248 $ 617,752
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Distriet-Wlde
Expendifures
Current:
Instruction « Regular Programs:
Sataries of Teachers:
Rindesgarten
Grades 1- 5
Grades 6-3
Grades 9-12
Undistribated Instruction:
Ot Sataries of Insiruction
Purchased P ional & Educational Services
Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Serviees
General Supplies
Teutbooks
Other Qbjects
Todal Regular Programs

Learning andfor Language Disabilitics:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Inssruction
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Other Purchascd Services
General Supplics
Totat Leaming and/or Langwage Disabilities

Auditory Impairments:
Satarics of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
Porchased Professional & Educational Sezvices
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Total Auditory Impairments

Behavioral Disabilities:
Salarics of Teachers
Other Salaries of Tustouetion
Purchased Professional & Educational Senvices
General Supplics
Tota) Behavioral Disabilities

Muliple Disabiitics:
Sakaries of Teachers
Other Salarics of Instruction
Purchased Professional & Educationat Services
General Supplies
Total Muliiple Disabilities

Resource RoonvResource Centes;
Salaries of Teachers
Qther Salaries of [nstruction
Purchased Frofessional & Educational Services
General Supplies
Total Resource RoonvResoures Conter
“Fotal Speciat Education

Bitingat Edugation:
Salaries of Teachers
Geera) Supplivs

Tetal Biliagnal Education

D-3

p-1
Neptune Township School Distriel
Blended Resource Fund 13
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actual
Yenr ended June 30, 2020
Original Finat
Budpet Transfers Budget Expenditures Varignce
871,245 § 1408 § 872,653 § 872,653
5,701,545 (46,009) 5,661,536 5,554,142 § 107,394
3,895,429 (529,547) 3,365,882 3,340,665 25,217
5,342,681 254,605 5,597,296 5,269,247 328,049
382,775 (7,454} 373,324 370,270 5,051
234,000 (37,796) 196,204 184,988 14,216
300,300 4,154 296,146 259,508 36,638
488,000 153,968 641,968 361,610 280,358
591,000 166,523 757,523 738,725 18,798
154,500 (76,587) 77,913 71,912 !
49,115 (13,009) 36,106 31,506 4,600
18,010,600 {132,052} 17,878,548 17,061,226 817,322
743,974 (30,474) 713,500 706,203 7,297
3514435 (34,406) 317,039 315812 1,227
43,100 40,000 83,1060 73,476 5,624
2,250 2,250 800 1,450
20,590 {2,300} 18,000 17,656 344
1,161,269 {27,380) £,133,889 1,113,947 19,942
726,708 (58,448} 668,260 651,168 17,092
447,492 1,807 449,269 442,339 6,960
6,900 {5,000) 1,900 1,900
26,900 13,330 40,250 29,537 19,723
0,000 (35} 9,963 5,748 4,217
1,218,000 {48,320) 1,069,674 1,128,782 40,892
171,565 {35,002) 136,503 136,503
48,817 694 49,511 49,511
800 (300)

1,000 (3 959 968 i
322,122 (35,139 126,983 186,982 H
418,462 (807) 417,655 417,655
334,309 (24,743) 309,566 309,566
120,000 102,000 222,000 185,782 36,218

5,000 (i3) 4,987 4,213 17
877,771 76,437 954,208 917,216 36,992

3,539,697 267910 3,807,607 3,807,606 1
262,572 201 263,473 252,25G 11,223
120,000 19,0£5 139,015 54,045 84,970

13,400 {16} 13,354 12,358 996

3,935,669 287,780 4,223,449 4,126,259 97,190

7,414,831 253,372 7,668,203 7.413,186 195,017
374,082 (612) 373470 373,470
~ 1,500 9} 1,491 1,491
373,582 (621} 374,961 374,961
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p.2

Neptune Township Schoo! District

Blended Resource Fund 13
Schedule of Blended Expeidditures

Budget and Actual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Original Fina}
District-Wide Budget Transfers Bulpet Expendifures Variance
Schoot Sponsored Co-curricular Activities:

Salacies $ 219,356 8 (10,862} § 218,488 & 218487 % i

Parchased Services §2,300 {8,584) 3,716 3,716

Other Objects 1,500 1,500 1,134 366
Total School Sponsored Co-curricular Activitics 243,150 £19,446) 223,704 223,337 367
School Sponsored Athlelics:

Salaries 1,616,949 {37,012) 979,937 973,250 6,687

Purchased Services {30D-500 series) 210,165 (50,678) 159,487 155,474 4,013

Suppli¢s and Materials 79,000 {4,491) 74,509 71,638 2,871
Totat School Spansored Athletics 1,306,114 (92,181) 1,213,933 1,290,362 13,571
Qikier Supplemental/Ar-Risk Programs « Instruction:

Sataries of Reading Specialists 971,895 79,643 1,051,538 1,033,012 18,526
Totat Other Supplemental/As-Risk Progsaais - Instruction 971,895 79,643 1,051,538 1,033,012 18,526
Total Tnsinuction 28,322,172 88,715 28,410,887 27,366,084 1,044,803

Attendance and Social Work Services:

Salaries 280,326 4,470 284,796 283,561 1,229
Satarics of Drop Qut Prevention Officer Coondinator 45,513 (45) 45,470 45,470
Ohhier Purchased Services 900 (500)

Total Attendance and Social Work Services 326,741 3,525 330,266 329,037 1,229

Health Services:

Salaries 660,406 {56,578) 603,828 603,825 3
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 1,800 (400) 1,400 570 836
Supplics and Materials 21,108 3,115 24,219 22,653 £,566

Total Health Services 683,306 (53,859) 629,447 627,048 2,399

Guidance:

Salaries of Ciher Professional Staff 1,131,111 (5,147) 1,125,964 i,107,846 18,118
Salaries of Scczelarial and Clerical Assistants 140,817 2,178 142,995 142,095

Purchasad Professional « Sducational Services 28,000 4,351 32,351 32,350 ]
Other Purchased Services 107,650 {5,172) 102,478 97,766 4,712
Supplies and Materials 34,700 (1,538) 33,162 29,170 3,592

Total Guidance 1,442,278 (5,328) 1,436,950 1,410,i27 26,823

Improvement of Instouction Services:

Sataries of Other Professionsl Stalt’ 296,800 {19,043) 271,757 187,954 89,863
Purchased Professional —Bducation Services 138,000 (52,443) 86,555 50,819 35,736

Total Improverent of Instraction Services 435,800 (71,488) 364,312 238,773 25,539

Educational Mediad.ibrary Services:

Salaries 834,535 338 834,873 811,292 23,581
Supplies and Materials 27,000 (4,393) 22,607 21,539 1,068

“Fotal Bducationad Medis/Library Serviees 861,535 (4,055) 857,480 832,831 24,649

Support Sevices ~ Schoot Administration: .

Salarics of Principals/Assistant Principats/Program Directors 1,740,076 {2} 1,740,074 1,740,073 {
Salatics of Other Professional Staff 482,316 (796) 481,520 380,437 101,083
Salarics of Secratarial and Clericat Assistants 669,283 (5,026) 664,257 650,264 13,993
Othier Purchased Services (100-500 serics) 60,400 {7,908) 52,492 45,849 6,652
Supptics and Materials 358,600 {710} 38,880 35,561 3,319
Other Objects 1,100 (764} 336 235 10t

Total Support Services — School Administeation 2,992,775 (15,216) 2,977,559 2,852,410 125,149
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District-Wide
Security:
Satarigs
Purchased Professional and Techaical Services
General Supplies
Total Security

Student Transportation Serviees:
Contracted Serviess ~Transportation (Other than
Between Home and School) — Yendors
Toial Student Fransportation Senvices

Usallocated Benefits:
Social Security Contributions
Health Benefits
Total Unaflocated Benefils
Totat Undistripated Expenditures
‘Total Bxpenditures - Current

Capita! Outlay
Equipmenl:
Regular Progrants - Instruction:
Grades 6-3
Total Equipment

Tolal Capital Gutlay
Total Expenditures - School Based

Other Financing Sources:
Tramséers In
Total Other Financing Sources

Excess {Deficiency) of Other Finanging Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Finaneing (Uses)

Fund Balanees, July ¢
Fund Balances, June 30

D-3

p.3
Neptune ‘Township Schook District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actual
Year ended June 20, 2029
Originnl Final
Budget Translers Budgct Expenditures Varlance
501,390 § {179} § 501,211 § 501,211
25,000 25,000 25,000
8,000 (1,782) 6,218 5816 § 402
534,390 (1,961) 532,429 532,027 402
238,200 {62,629 175,571 129,120 46,451
238,200 (62,629) 175,571 129,120 46,451
371,803 16,530 388,333 355,819 36,514
10,506,000 76,246 10,582,246 10,547,950 34,296
10,877,803 92,176 10,970,579 10,899,769 70,810
18,392,828 (118,235) 18,274,593 17,851,142 423,451
46,715,000 (29,520) 46,685,480 45,211,226 1,468,254
29,520 29,520 29,520
- 29,520 29,520 39,520 -
- 29,520 29,520 29,520 -
46,715,008 - 46,715,000 43,246,746 1,468,254
46,715,000 46,715,008 45,423,530 (1,291,470}
46,715,000 46,715,000 45,423,530 (1,291,470}
- - - 176,784 176,784
- 8 8 - 8§ 176,784 § 176,784
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p. 1
Neptune Township School Distried
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budpet and Actual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Ovlginal Finad
School: Aldtown Conumunity Elementary School Budget Transfers Budget Expendifures Varlapee
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction - Regular Programs:
Salacles of Teachers:
Kindergarten $ 183,388 % (506) $ 182,482 % 182,482
Grades 1- 8 £,335,545 (2,877) 1,332,068 £,332,068
Usdistributed Eastrugtion:
Otier Salaries of Instruction 124,877 (6,390) 1§8,487 118,238 249
Purchased Professional & Educational Senvices 17,800 2,299 20,089 19,549 550
Purchased Technical Services 42,900 (2,260 40,640 35,867 4,713
Other Purchased Services 70,000 (13,275) 56,725 42,359 14,366
Generat Supplies 62,000 21,7128 83,728 83,193 535
Textbooks 500 {500)
Other Objects 1,545 {1,207y 338 338
Total Regwtar Programs 1,838,555 (3,388) 1,835,167 1,814,694 20473
Leaming aadfor Langwage Disabilities:
Sataries of Teachers 263,023 (8,636} 254,387 247,090 7,297
Other Salarigs of Instouction 124,508 {34,208) 96,700 90,700
PBurchased Profissional & Educational Services 600 600 530 70
Other Purchased Serviees 800 800 800
General Supplics 5,000 5,000 4,999 1
Total Leaming andfor Language Disabilitics 394,331 (42,844} 351,487 344,119 7,368
Kuliiple Disabifities:
Salaries of Teachers 161,772 {4,634) 157,138 §57,138
Other Saaries of Instraetion 129,736 (25,081) 104,645 104,645
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 80,000 40,000 120,000 85,601 34,399
General Suppliss 1,000 1,000 671 320
Totat Multiple Disabilities 372,508 10,275 382,783 348,055 34,728
Resource RoonvResource Center:
Salarics of Teachers 186,433 56,803 243,236 243,236
Other Salarics of Insiruction 24,615 24,615 24,615
General Supplics 1,000 1,000 G993 i
“Total Resource RoonvResource Center 187,433 31,418 268,851 268,844 7
Tolal Special Education 954,272 48,849 1,003,121 961,018 42,503
Bilingual Education:
Salaries of Teachers 195,442 841 196,283 196,283
General Supplies 1,500 [€)) 1491 14401
Total Bilingual Fducation 196,942 832 197,774 107,714 -
Other Supplemenlal/At-Risk Programs - bnstruction:
Salarics of Reading Specialisis 208,108 1,484 201,592 200,891 701
Tetal Other Suppiemental/At-Risk Programs - Instruciion 200,108 1,484 201,592 200,891 701
Total Instruction 3,189,877 47,977 3,237,654 3,174,377 63,277
Altendance and Social Work Services:
Salaries 6,328 59 6,387 6,386 !
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 6,328 59 6,387 6,286 1
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School: Midtown Contmunity Elementary School

Heallh Sgzvices:

Satares

Supplics and Materials
Total Health Senvices

Guidance:
Salaries of Other Professionat Staft’
Other Parchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Guidance

Improvement of Tastraction Services:
Sataries of Other Professional Staff

Purchased P <onal ~Fd,

Services
“Total Tmprovenient of Instruciion Services

Bducalionat Media/Library Sesvices:
Salaries
Supplies and Materials

Total Edneational Media/Library Scrvices

Suppord Services ~ School Admindstration:

Salasies of PrincipalsfAssistant Princlpals/Program Directors

Salazics of Other Professional Staft
Sataries of Sceretazial and Clercal Assistants
Qther Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies and Matesials
Other Objects

Tolal Support Services — School Administeation

Security:

Safacics

General Supplies
Total Security

Studenl Transpostation Serviess:
Co 4 Services ~Transp {QOther than
Bejween Honte and School} — Yendors
‘Tolai Student Transporiation Services

Unailocated Benefits:
Soctal Security Contributions
Health Banefits
Total Unallecated Benefits
Total Undisiributed Expeaditures
Total Expenditures - Current

Total Expenditures - School Based
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In

Tolal Other Financing Sourees

Extess {Deficiency) of Other Financlag Soucces
Over {Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses)

Fund Balances, July 1
Fund Balances, Junz 30
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P2
Neptune Towaship School District
Blended Resowrce Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budges and Actual
Year ended Juse 39, 2620
Crrlginal Final
Budget Transfers Budpet Expendifures Varlance

$ 100,927 & (14,819) § 86,108 $ 86,107 1
4,300 619 4,915 4,744 175
105,227 {14,200 91,027 90,851 176
58,232 (1,138) 57,094 40,045 17,049
12,300 (582) H,718 11,717 i
3,000 250 3,250 3,240 10
73,532 (1,470) 72,062 55,002 17,060
20,000 ) 20,000 . 17,022 2,978
26,000 {12,100} 7,900 5,124 2,776
44,000 {12,100% 27,900 22,146 5,754
104,180 (81) 104,099 104,008 1
3,000 (528} 2,472 2427 45
107,180 {699) 106,571 106,525 46

172,359 172,359 172,359
13,276 3,276 13,270 &

56,628 (6} 56,612 56,612
3,550 17¢ 3,720 3,004 716

4,000 768 4,768 4,768
100 24 76 75 1
249,913 898 250,811 250,088 723

38,332 (4) 38,328 38,328

1,000 1,000 1,000
19,332 ) 39,328 39,328 -
2,150 3,440 5,590 2,i43 3,447
2,150 3,440 5,590 2,143 3447
42,461 42,461 41,584 877

1,294,000 {23,790 1,270,209 1,270,209
1,336,461 {23,791) 1,312,670 1,311,793 877
1,960,123 “7,777) 1,912,346 1,884,262 28,084
5,150,000 - 5,150,000 5,058,639 91,361
5,150,000 - 5,150,000 5,058,639 91,361
5,150,000 5,150,000 5,058,634 91,361
5,050,000 - 5,150,000 5,058,632 91,361
8 - 8 - 8 - § - -
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School; Gables Elementary School

Expenditures
Current:
Instruetion - Regular Programs;
Sataries of Teachers:
Kindergarten
Grades 1-5
Undistributed Insiruction:
Other Salaries of Instauction
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects
‘Total Regular Programs

Tnstruction - Special Education:

1eaming andfor Language Disabilities:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Tnstriction
Purchased Professional & Bducational Services
Cther Purchased Services
General Supplies

Totat Leaming and/or Laogunge Disabilities

Resource RoonvResource Center:
Balaries of Teachers
General Supplies
‘T'otal Resource RoonyResouzee Center
Tolal Special Education

Other Supplementalf/At-Risk Programs - Instruction:
Salaries of Reading Specialists

Total Gther Supplementa/At-Risk Programs - Instruction

Total Instruction

Attendance and Socinl Work Services:
Sqlaries
Total Attendance and Social Work Services

Health Services:

Salaries

Supplies and Materials
Total Health Services

Guidance:
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Guidance

D-3b

p
Neplune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Qriginal Final
Budget Fransfers Budget Expenditures Yarinnce
$ 160,101 $ 3,002 § 163,103 § 163,103
879,656 (4,636) 875,020 870,254 § 4,766
51,953 17 51,970 51,970
17,800 1,867 19,667 15,123 4,544
42,900 (300) 42,600 35,791 6,809
70,000 (14,701) 55,209 39,643 15,656
55,000 27,709 82,709 79,704 3,005
500 (500)
3,000 {2,000} 1,000 400 600
1,280,910 10,458 1,291,368 1,255,988 35,380
152,051 237 152,288 152,288
75,692 (49,478) 26,214 26,214
500 80,000 80,500 72,946 7,554
350 350 350
3,500 (1,000} 2,500 2,169 331
232,093 29,759 261,852 253,617 8,235
180,870 27,917 208,787 208,787
800 800 743 57
181,670 27,917 209,587 209,530 57
413,763 57,676 471,439 463,147 8,292
200,674 2,248 202,922 202,922
200,674 2,248 202,922 202,922 -
1,895,347 70,382 1,965,729 1,922,057 43,672
6,328 59 6,387 6,386 §
6,328 59 6,387 6,386 1
82,146 (9,018) 73,128 73,128
2,500 2,500 2,405 95
84,646 (9,018) 75,628 75,533 95
80,163 1,396 81,559 81,559
12,500 (2,455) 10,045 10,039 6
2,600 {600) 2,000 §,121 879
95,203 (1,659) 93,604 92,719 885

105




D-3b

p.2
Neptune Township Schoel District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Original Finsl
School: Gables Elementary School Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Varianee
Improvement of Instouction Serviees:
Salaries of Other Professional Staft § 20,000 $ 20,000 % 10,042 § 9,958
Purchased Professional ~Bducation Services 20000 §  (1L,300) 8,700 5,204 3,496
Total Inprovement of Instruction Services 40,000 {11,300} 28,700 15,246 13,454
Bducational Media/Library Services:
Salaries 97,422 (L1119 96,303 95,733 570
Supplies and Materials 3,000 (300} 2,700 2,512 188
Total Educationa) Media/Library Services 100,422 (1,419) §9,003 98,245 758
Support Services — Schoal Administration; '
Salaries of PrincipalsfAssistant Principals/Program Directors 129,423 (£)) 129,422 129,422
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 13,276 13,2776 13,270 6
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 48,633 )] 48,630 48,630
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 3,500 170 3,670 1,803 1,867
Supplies and Materials 4,000 4,000 3272 728
Other Objects 100 (100}
Totat Support Services — Sehool Administration 198,932 66 198,998 196,397 2,601
Security:
Generat Supplies 1,000 {400} 600 600
Total Security 1,060 {400} 600 600 -
Student Transportation Services:
Contracted Services ~Transportation (Other than
Between Home and School) — Vendors 3,000 3,000 1,774 1,226 :
Total Student Transportation Services 3,000 R 3,000 1,774 1,226 |
Unaliocated Benefits:
Social Security Contributions 14,062 14,062 11,004 3,058
Health Benefis 886,000 (46,711) 839,289 §39,289
Fotal Unaliocated Benefits 900,062 {46,711) 853,351 850,293 3,058
Total Undistributed Expendilures 1,429,653 (70,382) 1,359,271 1,337,193 22,078 |
Totat Expenditures - Current 3,325,000 - 3,325,000 3,259,250 65,750
Total Expenditures - School Based 3,325,000 - 3,325,000 3,259,250 65,750 |
Other Finaneing Scurces:
Transfers In 3,325,000 3,325,000 3,259,250
Total Gther Finanging Sousces 3,325,000 - 3,325,000 3,259,250 119,292
Excess {Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) - - - - {53,542)
Fund Balances, suly | - - - - -
Fund Balances, June 30 $ - 3 - 3 - % - 3 (53,542)
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School: Green Grove Elementary School

Expendifures
Current;
Instruction - Regular Programs:
Salazies of Teachers:
Kindergarten
Grades 1-5
Undistributed Instruction:
Other Salaries of Tnstruction
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Purchased Technical Services
Othes Purchased Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects
Total Regular Programs

Tnstruction - Special Education:

Learning and/or Language Disabilities:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
Purehased Professional & Edueational Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies

Total Learning sndfor Language Pisabilities

Resource Room/Resource Center:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
General Supplies
Total Resource RoonvResource Center
Total Special Education

Other Supplementat/At-Risk Programs - Instruction:
Snlaries of Reading Specialists

Folal Olher Supplemental/At-Risk Programs - Instruction

Total Instruction

Attendance and Social Work Services:
Selaries
Total Attendanes and Social Work Services

Health Services:

Salaries

Supplies and Materials
Total Health Services

Guidance:
Snlaries of Other Professional Staff
Olher Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Guidance

D-3¢

pl
Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Aclual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Orlginal Fina}
Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Variance
$ 190,716 § {2,303) § 188,413 § 188,413
1,012,440 1,908 1,014,348 989,748 % 24,600
75,401 (49%) 74,902 74,902
17,800 4,907 22,707 21,138 1,569
42,900 (300} 42,600 35,867 6,733
70,000 (11,356} 58,644 40,875 17,769
62,000 41,703 103,763 98,777 4,926
500 {250} 250 250
4,262 {4,262)
1,476,019 29,548 1,505,567 1,449,970 55,597
114,707 {1,769} {12,938 112,938
74,795 11,729 46,524 85,297 1,227
40,000 {40,000}
400 400 400
3,500 3,500 3,488 12
233,402 (30,040 203,362 201,723 1,639
217,740 1,077 218,847 218,817
98,714 (23,694) 75,020 72,519 2,501
1,600 1,000 729 271
317,454 {22,617) 294,837 292,065 2,712
550,856 {52,657) 498,199 493,788 4,41t
202,222 2,200 204,422 204,422
202,222 2,200 204,422 204,422 -
2,229,097 {20,909} 2,208,188 2,148,180 60,008
6,328 59 6,387 6,386 1
6,328 59 6,387 6,386 1
85,604 (8,726) 76,878 76,878
2,500 2,500 {1,885 615
88,104 (8,726) 79,378 78,763 615
37,716 (1,022) 56,694 56,694
12,250 {2,400} 9,850 9,636 244
3,000 (39} 2,961 2,952 9
72,966 {3,461) 69,505 69,282 223
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Aciual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Qriginai Final
School: Green Grove Elementary School Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Variance
Improvement of Instruetion Services:
Salaries of Other Professional Stafl $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 5024 % 4,976
Purchased Professionat ~Education Servives 20,000 % 1,283 21,283 8,551 12,732
Total Improvement of Instruction Services 40,000 1,283 41,283 23,575 17,708
Bducational Media/Library Services:
Salaries 130,653 (250} 130,403 167,394 23,009
Supplies and Materials 3,000 425 3,425 2,997 428 2
Total Bdueationai Media/Library Services 133,653 115 133,828 110,391 23,437 |
|
Support Services — School Administration:
Saisries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 151,73G ) 151,729 151,729
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 13,276 13,276 13,270 6
Salaries of Secretarinf and Clerical Assistants 48,461 (1) 48,460 48,469
Other Purchased Services {400-500 series} 3,550 {1,233) 2,317 2,165 152
Supplies and Materials 4,000 220 4,220 3,728 492
Oiler Objects 100 (10) 20 90
Tota} Support Services — School Administration 221,117 (1,025) 220,092 219,442 650
Security:
General Supplies 1,000 (400) 600 600
Fotal Security 1,000 (400} 600 600 -
Student Transporiation Services:
Contracted Services —Transportation (Other than
Between Home and School) - Vendors 3,040 3,040 2,292 748
"Fotal Student Transportation Services 3,040 B 3,040 2,292 748
Unaltocated Benedits:
Social Security Contributions 26,695 26,695 23,193 3,502
Health Benefits 1,048,000 33,004 1,081,004 1,068,604 12,400
Total Unaliceated Benefils 1,074,695 33,004 1,107,699 1,091,797 15,902

Total Undistributed Expendilures 1,640,903 20,909 1,661,812 1,602,528 59,284
Total Expenditures - Current 3,870,000 - 3,870,000 3,750,708 £19,292
Total Expenditures - School Based 3,870,000 - 3,870,000 3,750,708 119,292
Other Financing Sources:

Transfers lo 3,870,000 3,870,000 3,750,708 119,292
Total Other Financing Sources 3,870,000 - 3,870,000 3,750,708 119,292
Bxcess {Delieiency) of Other Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) - - - - -
Fund Balances, July ! - - - - -
Fund Balances, June 30 $ - § - 3 - 3 - 3 -
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School: Shark River Hills Elementary School

Lxpenditures
Current:
Instruction - Regular Programs:
Salaries of Teachers:
Kindergarten
Grades 1- 5
Undistributed Insteuction:
Other Salaries of Instruction
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Purchnsed Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects
Total Regular Programs

Instruction - Specint Bducation:
Resource Rocm/Resource Center;
Sslaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
General Supplies
Total Rescurce Room/Resource Center
Total Specinl Education

Other Supplemental/At-Risk Programs - Instruciion:
Salaries of Reading Specialists

Total Other Supplemental/At-Risk Programs - Instruction

Total Instroction

Attendance and Social Work Services:
Salarfes
Tota} Attendance and Socinl Work Services

Health Services:

Salaies

Supplies and Moterials
Total Health Services

Guidance:
Salorigs of Other Professional Stafi’
Other Muschased Services
Suppties-and Materials

Total Guidance

Improvement of Tastruction Services:
Salacies of Other Professional Staff’
Purchased Professional ~Education Services
Totak Improvement of Instruction Services

Educational Medin/Library Services:
Salaries
Supplies and Materials

Tetal Bducational Medis/Library Services

D-3d

p.l
Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Origingl Final
Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Variance
$ 154,735 § 1,893 §$ 156,628 § 156,628
964,493 (3,933) 960,560 939,202 % 21,268
49,909 368 50,277 50,090 187
17,800 2,362 20,162 17,618 2,544
42,900 (300} 42,600 35,867 6,733
70,060 (18,059 55,941 38,17t 13,770
55,000 22,408 77,408 72,388 5,020
500 {500}
100 (100}
1,355,437 4,139 1,359,576 1,310,054 49,522
170,333 (3,316} 167,017 167,017
50,821 (5) 50,816 50,816
1,000 1,000 723 277
222,154 (3,325 218,833 218,556 277
222,154 {3,321} 218,833 218,556 277
181,272 22,582 203,854 203,854
181,272 22 582 203,854 203,854 -
1,758,863 23,400 1,782,263 1,732,464 49,799
89,766 1,510 91,276 91,275 i
89,766 1,510 91,276 91,275 1
79,102 (9,299) 69,803 69,803
2,500 2,500 2,404 96
81,602 (9,299 72,303 72,207 96
92222 [,462 93,684 93,684
12,300 {743) 11,557 0,223 2,334
2,600 {307) 2,293 2,293
107,122 412 107,534 105,200 2,334
20,000 20,000 13,107 6,893
20,000 (11,608) 8,392 4,864 3,528
40,000 (11,608) 28,392 17,971 10,421
149,435 368 149,803 149,803
3,000 {2,9i4) 86 85 1
152,435 {2,546) 149,889 142,888 1
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Seliool: Shark River Hills Elementary Schoel

Support Services ~ Schoot Administration:

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors

Salaries of Other Professional Stafl’
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies and Materiais
Cther Objects

Total Support Services — School Administration

Security;
General Supplies
Total Security

Student Transportation Services:
Contracted Services ~Transportation {Other then
Between Home and School) — Yendors
Total $tudent Transportation Services

Unallocated Benefils:
Socia) Security Contributions
Health Benefits
Total Unallocated Benefits
Total Undistribuied Expenditures
Total Bxpenditures - Current
Tolal Expenditures - School Based

Onher Financing Sources;
Transfers In
Total O4her Financing Sources

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources
Cver {Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses)

Pund Balznces, July |
Fund Bafances, June 30

D-3d

p.2
Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actual
Year ended hune 30, 2020
Originnl Final
Budgel TFransfers Builget Expenditures Variangce

$ 139,359 139,359 § 139,359
13,276 13,276 13,270 § 6
46,115 (6,216) 39,899 39,468 431
3,500 169 3,669 3,668 !
4,000 (274) 3,726 3,403 323

100 (100}

206,350 (6,421) 199,929 199,168 761
1,000 (294) 706 705 i
1,000 (294) 706 705 i
3,200 3,200 1,628 1,572
3,200 . 3,200 1,624 1,572
12,662 12,662 12,275 387

787,000 4,846 791,846 791,846
799,662 4,846 804,508 804,121 387
1,481,137 {23,400) 1,451,737 1,442,163 15,574
3,240,000 - 3,240,000 3,174,627 65,373
3,240,000 - 3,240,000 3,174,627 65,373
3,240,000 3,240,000 3,174,627 65,373
3,240,000 - 3,240,000 3,174,627 65,373
$ - - - 8 - § -
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School: Semmerfield Elementary Schoal

Expenditures
Current:

Instruction - Regular Progranis:
Salaries of Teachers:
Kindergarten
Grades 1- 5
Usdisinbuted instection:
Otiher Salaries of Instruction

Purchased Professional & Fducational Services

Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Texthooks
Chher Objects

Total Reputar Peogeams

Instruction - Special Bducators:
Leaming and/or Language Disabilities:
Salaries of Teachers
Qiher Salasies of Instruction

Purchased Professional & Bducational Services

Other Purchased Services
Geaeral Supplies
Total Leaming and/or Language Disabilities

Auditory Tmpairments:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction

Purchased Professional & Fducational Secvices

Other Purchased Senvices
General Supplies
Tolal Auditory Impaimaents

Resource RoanyResource Center.
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
General Suppies
Total Resource RoosvResource Center
Total $pecial Education

Other Supplemental/At-Risk Progeams - Instruction!

Salarles of Reading Specialists

Totat Other Supplentental/At-Risk Programs - Instruction

Totat Instraction

Atendance and Sociat Work Services:
Salaries
TFolal Attendance and Social Work Services

Health Services:
Salaries

Purchased Mrofessional satd Techaical Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Heallh Services

D-3e
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actuai
Yeur ended June 3¢, 2020
Original Final
Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Variance
b3 182,305 & (218) $ 182,027 § 182,027
1,509,411 (30,471) 1,478,946 1,422,180 § 56,760
80,635 (950} 79,085 75,070 4,615
17,800 567 18,707 18,723 44
42,900 {300) 42,600 35,866 6,734
70,000 (18,884) 5§,116 39,014 12,102
62,000 23,942 85,942 85016 926
500 (500)
5,208 4,515 693 669 24
1,970,759 (30,989) 1,939,770 1,858,565 81,205
138,495 393 138,888 38,888
76,050 {12,419 63,571 63,571
1,000 1,000 1,000
400 400 400
4,500 {1,500) 3,000 3,000
220,445 (13,586) 206,859 205,459 1,400
408,063 (88,383) 119,680 362,588 17,092
141,831 395 142,226 136,991 2,235
5,000 (4,000} 1,000 1,006
10,450 13,990 24,350 16,098 8,252
6,500 6,500 4,044 2,456
571,844 {78,088} 493,756 462,721 31,035
247,864 (24,207 223,567 223,567
26,466 24,976 51,442 51,442
1,600 1,000 830 170
275,330 679 276,009 275,838 170
1,067,619 (90,995) 976,624 44,019 32,605
187,619 51,129 238,748 330,913 17,825
187,619 51,129 238,748 220,923 17,825
3225997 (70,855} 3,135,142 3,023,507 131,635
6,328 59 6,387 6,386 |
6,328 59 6,387 6,386 1
105,867 {8,914) 96,953 96,953
2,500 2,500 2,405 95
108,367 {8.014) §9.453 99,358 95




Schaol: Summerfield Elementary Sclool

Guidance:
Salaries of Oilier Professional Stail’
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Tolal Guidance

improvement of [usiruction Services:

Salaries of Other Professional Stall
Purchased P Services
Total Insprovement of Insteuclion Servicos

' T,

Educational Media/Library Senvices:
Salaries
Supplies and Matenials

‘Tolal Bducational Media/Library Services

Support Services ~ School Administration:
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Prncipals/Program Directors
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services (400500 series)
Supplies pnd Materials
Other Objects
Total Suppori Services - School Administration

Secnrity;
General Supplies
Total Secunity

Student Transporiation Servites:
Contragled Services —Transportation (Other than
Between Home and School} — Vendors
Total Student Transporlation Services

Unallocated Benefils:
Social Secusity Contributions
Health Benefits
Totel Unatiecated Denefits
Total Undistdbuted Bxpenditures
Tota} Bxpenditures - Current
Total Expenditures - School Based

Other Pinancing Sources:
Transfers n
Total Other Financing Sources

Hxeass (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources
Cver (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses)

Fund Balances, July |
Pund Balances, June 30

D-3e
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Sehedule of Blended Expenditures
Budpget and Actaal
Year ended Junie 30, 2020
Oviglnal Final
Budget Transfers Budget Expeaditures Varianee
§ 61,741 % {557 G184 3 61,184
12,300 2,813 15,113 15,059 54
3,000 1,101 4,101 4,098 3
77,041 3,357 80,398 80,341 57
20,000 20,000 9,919 10,081
20,000 (8,883) ELELT 5,461 5,656
40,000 (8,883) L 15,380 15,737
145,049 1,654 146,703 146,703
3,000 (95) 2,905 2,965
148,049 £,559 149,608 149,608 -
134,481 154,481 154,481
13,276 13,276 13,270 6
50,221 94 50,315 50,31¢ 4
3,550 N 3,543 2,857 686
4,000 [€25] 3,949 3,610 139
160 (30) 70 i)
225,628 6 225,634 224,59% [,035
1,000 {74) 926 926
1,000 (74} 926 926 -
4,810 4,810 1,036 3,714
4,810 - 4,810 1,836 3,714
32,78% 32,780 32,000 780
1,206,000 $1,745 1,283,745 1,283,145
1,232,780 83,745 1,316,525 1,315,745 780
1,844,003 70,855 1,914,858 1,893,379 21,479
5,070,000 . 5,070,000 4,916,386 153,114
5,070,000 - 5,070,000 4,916,886 153,114
5,070,000 5,070,000 4,916,886 133,114
5,070,600 - 5,070,000 4,916,886 153,114
$ - 3 - - 8 - -
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Scheol: Neptune Middle Sehaol

Expenditures
Cursrent:
instruclion - Repular Programs:
Salazies of Teachers:
Grades 6-8
Undistributed Instruction:
Purchased Professional & Bducationat Services
Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objecis
Total Regular Programs

Leaming andfor Languapge Disabilities:
Sataries of Teachers
Cther Sataries of Instruction
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Other Purchased Services
Generat Supplies
Total Leaming and/or Language Disabilities

Auditory Impaiments:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Qsher Purchased Services
General Supplies
Total Auditary Jmpaimients

Multiple Disabilities:
Sslaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
Genesal Supplies

Tetal Multiple Disabilities

Resource RoonyResource Center:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
Purehased Professional & Educational Services
General Suppties
Total Resource Room/Resource Center

Antism:
Totaj Special Education

Bilingual Education:
Salaries of Teachers
Total Bifingual Education

School Sponsored Co-curmicuiar Activities:
Salaries
Other Objects

Total School §ponsered Co-cumicular Activities

D-3F
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Neptune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund {5
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Buedget and Actual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Qriginal Final
Dudget ‘Transfers Budget Expenditures Varfunce
$ 3895429 3 (529,547) § 3,365,882 § 3,340,665 $ 25,217
25,000 3,006 28,00G 26,036 1,964
42,900 2,000 44,900 40,044 4,856
68,000 69,555 137,553 63,776 13,779
63,000 72,293 132,292 131,532 761
73,000 (34,600) 38,400 38,399 1
5,000 5,000 1,350 3,650
4,169,329 (417,299} 3,752,020 3,641,802 110,228
75,698 {20,659) 54,999 54,999
50,030 50,030 50,030
1,000 1,000 1,000
300 300 300
4,000 4,000 4,000
80,998 29,134 110,329 109,029 1,300
87,489 26,549 114,038 114,038
110,480 660 1,140 110,641 499
900 900 00
7,950 7,950 6,317 1,633
1,800 1,800 339 961
208,619 27,209 235,828 231,835 3,993
94,414 1,315 95,789 95,789
99,787 (22,523) 77,264 71,264
3,000 3,000 2,356 444
197,201 {Z1,148) 176,053 175,609 444
1,138,064 330,533 1,468,594 1,468,593 1
30,050 (19,480} 10,570 1,848 8,722
80,000 40,000 120,000 49,758 70,242
4,800 4,800 4,587 213
1,252,911 351,053 1,603,964 1,524,786 7,178
1,439,729 IB6,445 2,126,174 2,041,239 84,915
56,080 (1,090) 54,999 54,999
56,089 (1,090) 54,999 54,999 -
46,350 5771 52,121 52,120 H
1,500 1,500 1,134 366
47,850 5,771 53,621 53,254 367
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Negptune Township School District
Biended Resource Fund 15
Schiedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actual
Year ended June 36, 2020
Orlginal Final
School: Neptune Middle School Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Vartance
School Sponsosed Athletics:

Salaries $ 116,123 8 13,546 8 129,669 8 129,179 $ 490

Purchased Services (300-500 series) 22,190 {2,000) 20,190 17,178 3,012

Supplies and Materials 4,000 (2,000) 2,000 2,000
Total School Sponsored Athletics 142,313 9,546 151,859 146,357 5,502

Total Instruction 6,155,210 (16,627) 6,138,683 5,937,671 201,012
Allendance and Social Wosk Sesvices:

Salaries 86,412 1,439 87,851 86,628 1,223
Total Attendance and Social Werk Services 86,412 1,439 87,851 86,628 1,223
Health Services:

Salaries 107,405 {366) 107,039 107,038 |

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 800 {275} 525 50 475

Supplies and Materials 3,400 3,400 3,305 95
Total Health Services 111,605 {641) 110,964 110,393 571
Guidanco:

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 256,400 1,582 257,982 256,913 1,069

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistanls 48,394 481 48,875 48,875

Other Purchased Services 22,000 (4,450} 17,550 15,447 2,103

Supplies and Materials 8,000 8,000 5,341 2,659
Total Guidance 334,794 (2,387} 332,407 326,576 5,831
mprovement of Instruction Services:

Salaries of Other Professional Stafl’ 66,800 66,800 29,183 37,617

Purchased Professtonal ~Bducation Services 19,000 180G 20,800 13,253 7,547
“Total Improvement of Instruction Services } 85,800 1,800 87,600 42,436 45,164
Bducaticnal Media/Libracy Services:

Salaries 110,750 1,541 112,291 112,291

Supplies and Matesials 6,000 ' 6,000 5,594 406
Tolal Educational Media/Library Services 116,750 1,541 18,251 117,885 406
Support Services — School Administration:

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Prograns Directors 425002 () 425,001 425,001

Salaries of Olher Peofessional Staff . 207,968 (3%8) 207,570 157,025 50,545

Salaries of Secretasiat and Clerical Assistants 194,248 1,116 195,364 193,652 1,712

Other Purchased Services {400-500 series) 20,000 (3,000) 17,000 13,771 3,229

Supplies and Materials 7,500 T80 7,780 7,148 632

Qiher Objects 100 100 104
Total Support Services ~ School Adminisiration 854,818 {2,003} 832,815 796,597 56,218
Security:

Salaries 198,723 25) 198,698 198,698

Purchased Professional and Technical Sesvices 12,500 12,500 12,500

Generni Supplies 1,000 1,000 600 £00
Totat Security 212,223 25) 212,198 211,798 400

Student Transporiation Services:
Contrscted Services —'Transportation (Other than
Between Home and School) ~ Yendors 37,000 3,000 40,000 17,108 22,892

Total Student Transportalion Services 37,000 3,000 40,000 17,108 22,892



School: Neptune Middle School

Unallocated Benedils:
Social Security Contributions
Health Benefits
Totsl Unallocated Beasfils
Tola} Undistributed Expenditures
Total Expenditures - Current

Capital Qutlay
Bquipment:
Regulaz Programs - Instruction:
Grades 6-8
Total Fquipment

Talal Capital Qutlay
Totat Expenditures - School Based

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers n
Total Qther Financing Sources

Bxtess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Bxpenditures and Other Financing (Uses)

Fund Balances, July i
Fund Balances, June 30

D-3f

p3
Neplune Towaship School District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schiedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Orlginal Final
Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Varignce
$ 69,288 § 2,530 % 71818 § 71,818
2,336,000 (18,147} 2,317,853 2,295958 § 21,895
2,405,288 (15,617 2,389,611 2,367,776 21,895
4,244,690 {12,893} 4,231,797 4,077,197 154,600
10,400,600 {29,520 10,370,480 10,014,868 355,612
29,520 29,520 29,520
- 29,520 29,520 29,520 -
- 29,520 28,520 29,520 -
10,400,000 - 10,400,000 10,044,388 355,612
10,460,000 10,400,000 10,221,172 (178,828)
10,404,000 - 10,400,000 10,221,172 (178,828)
- - - 176,784 176,784
3 - 8 - 5 - 3 (76,784 § 176,784
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School; Neptune High School

Expenditures
Curent:
Insiruetion ~ Regulsr Prograins:
Salaries of Teachers:
Crades 9-12
Undistribuied Tnstruction:
Purchased Professional & Bducationsl Services
Purchased Technical Services
Cther Purchased Services
General Supplies
Texibooks
Other Objects
Totak Regular Programs

Auditory Impaitmenis:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Otlier Purchased Services
General Supplies
Total Auditory lmpainnents

Behavioral Disabilities:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
Purchased Professional & Educationa! Services
General Supplies
Total Behavioral Disabilities

Multiple Disabilities:
Safaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Ueneral Supplies
Total Multiple Disabilities

Resource Room/Rescurce Center:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaties of Instraction
Purchased Professional & Educationat Services
General Supplies
Total Resource Roon/Resource Center

Total 8pecial Education

Bilingual Education:
Salacies of Teachers
Total Bilingual Education

School Sponsored Co-curicular Activities!
Salaries
Purchpsed Services

T'otal Schoo! Sponsored Co-curricular Activities

D-3g

p1
Neplune Township School District
Blended Resource Fund 5
Schedule of Biended Expenditures
Budget and Actuai
Year ended June 30, 2020
Original Tinnl
Budget Transfors Budget Expenditures Variance
$ 5,342,691 & 254,605 & 5,597,296 % 5269247 § 328,049
120,000 {53,198) 66,302 66,801 !
42,900 (2,694} 40,206 40,206
70,000 160,688 230,688 97,772 132,916
235,000 (43,260) 191,740 (88,115 3,625
79,000 (39,737) 39,263 39,263
30,600 (925) 29,075 28,749 326
5,919,591 275479 6,195,070 5,730,153 464,917
231,156 3,386 234,542 234,542
195,181 752 195,933 191,707 4,226
1,060 {1,000}
8,500 {550} 7,950 7,112 838
1,700 (35} 1,665 865 800
437,537 2,553 440,090 434,226 5,864
{71,505 {35,002) 136,503 136,503
48,817 694 49,511 49,511
800 (800)
£,000 31) 969 968 |
222,122 (35,139} 186,983 186,982 |
162,276 2,452 164,728 164,728
104,786 22,871 127,657 127,657
40,000 62,000 102,000 100,18t 1,819
1,000 {13) G587 986 1
308,062 81,310 395,372 393,552 1,820
1,398,396 {120,807} 1,277,589 1,277,589
56,521 (5,511} 51,01¢ 51,010
40,000 (20,985) 19,0615 4,287 14,728
3,800 {d46) 3,754 3,753 1
1,498,717 (147,349} i,351,368 1,336,639 14,729
2,466,438 {92,625) 2,373,813 2,351,399 22,414
122,551 (363) 122,188 122,188
122,551 (363) 122,188 122,188 -
183,000 (16,633) 166,367 166,367
12,300 (8,584) 3,716 3,716
195,300 (25,217 170,083 170,083 -
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p.2
Neptune Township Schoot District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actual
Year ended June 30, 2020
Ovigluat Finat
Schoeol: Neptune High School Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Varlance
School Sponsored Athletics:
Salaries $ 900,826 % (50,558) § 850,268 % 844,071 § 6,197
Purchased Services (300-500 series) 187,975 {48,678) 139,297 138,296 £,001
Supplies and Materials 75,000 {2,491) 72,509 71,638 871
Total School Sponsored Athletics 1,163,801 (10£,727} 1,062,074 1,054,005 8,069
Total Instruction 9,867,681 55,547 9923228 9,427,828 495,400
Attendancs and Sogial Work Services:
Salaries 78,836 1,285 80,121 30,120 1
Salaries of Drop Out Prevention Officer Coordinator 45,513 (45) 45,470 45,470
Other Purchased Services 200 (900)
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 125,251 340 125,591 125,590 |
Heaith Services:
Salaries 99,355 {5,436) 93,919 93,918 1
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 1,000 (125) 875 520 355
Supplies and Malerials 3,400 2,500 5,900 5,505 395
Total Health Services (03,755 (3,061) 100,694 99,943 751
Guidange:
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 524,637 (6,870} 517,767 517,767
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 92,423 1,697 94,120 94,120
Purchased Professional - Bducationnl Services 28,000 4,351 32,351 32,350 ]
Ciher Purchased Services 24,600 2,645 26,645 26,645
Supplies and Materials 12,500 {1,943) 10,557 10,125 432
‘Total Guidatice 681,560 {120) 681,440 681,007 433
Timprovement of Instruction Sevvices:
Salaries of Gther Professionat Staff 130,000 {19,043} 116,957 93,657 17,300
Purchased Professional —Education Services 20,000 (11,637} 8,363 8,362 1
Totni Improvement of Insinuction Services 150,000 (30,680} 119,320 102,089 17,361
Fducational Media/Library Services:
Salaries 97,046 (1,775) 95,271 95,270 1
Supplies and Materials 6,000 {981) 5,019 5,019
Totat Educational Media/Library Services 103,046 (2,756) 100,290 100,289 H
Support Services — School Administration:
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 567,722 1 567,723 567,722 i
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 207,968 (398) 207,570 157,062 50,508
Salaries of Seeretarial and Clerical Assistants 224,977 224,977 213,131 11,846
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 22,750 4,177} 18,573 18,572 1
Supplics and Materials 12,100 {1,663) 10,437 9,632 805
Other Objects 500 (500)
Total Support Services — School Administration 1,036,017 (6,737} £,029,280 966,119 63,161
Security:
Salaries 264,335 (150} 264,185 264,185
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 12,500 12,500 12,500
General Supplies 2,000 {614} 1,386 1,385 1
Tolal Security 278,835 (704) 278,071 278,070 l
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School; Neptunc High School

Student Transportation Services:
Contracted Services ~Transportation (Other than
Between Home and School) - Vendors
Total Student Transporiation Services

Unallocated Benefits:
Social Security Contributions
Healih Benefits
Totel Unallocated Benefits
Total Undistributed Expenditures
Total Expenditures - Curent

Total Expenditures - School Based
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In

Total Otler Financing Sources

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources
Orver {Under) Expendituzes and Other Financing (Uses)

Fund Balances, July |
Fund Balances, June 30

D-3g

p3
Neptune Township Sehool District
Blended Resource Fund 15
Schedule of Blended Expenditures
Budget and Actuat
Year ended June 30, 2020
Original Finai
Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Varlance
$ 185000 §  (69,069) $ 115931 § 103,139 3 12,792
185,000 (69,069} 115,931 103,139 12,792
173,855 14,600 187,855 159,945 27910
2,955,000 43,300 2,998,300 2,998,209 1
3,128,855 57,300 3,186,155 3,158,244 2751l
5,792,319 {55,547 5,736,772 3,614,420 122,352
15,660,000 - 15,660,000 15,042,248 617,752
15,660,000 - 15,660,000 §5,042,248 617,752
15,660,000 15,660,000 15,042,248 617,752
15,660,000 - 15,660,000 15,042,248 617,752
§ - 3 - 8 - 3 - 3 -
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Revenues:
State sources
Federal sources
Tetal revenues

Expenditures:
Current expenditures:

Tustruction:

Salaries of teachers

Other salaries for insiruction

Purchased professional and technical services
Other purchased services

General supplies

Other objects

Total instnction

Support services:
Salaries of supervisors of instruction
Salaries of program directors
Salarics of other professionat statf
Salnries of secretarial and clerical assistants
Salaries of master teachers
Personnnel services snfaries
Other salaries
Personal services—employee benefits
Other purchased professional - technical services
Other purchased professional services
Conir Sery - Trans (bet home & school)
Other purchased services
Traves
Supplies and materials

Total support services

Fucilities acquisition arnd construction services:
Noninstructional equipment
Fotal facilities acquisition and construction services

Total expenditures
QOther Financing {Uses) Sources:
Contribution to school based budgets

Genaral Pund Congribution to Preschool Education
Total Other Financing (Vses) Sources

Total et changes in fund balance

Fund Balance, July 1, 2019
Fund Balance, June 30, 2020

pol
Neptune Township School District
Speciat Revenue Fund
Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures —
Budgetary Basis
Year ended June 30, 2020
Tifle 11 - A LD.E.A. Title 1 Title [ Title 1
Repular Itegular Preschool Repgular Reatlacation S1A

Program Program Program Program Program Program
3 146,448 1,192,870 § 39,319 § 919,582 3% 26252 % 305,695
5 145,448 11923870 § 39319 $ 910,382 8 26152 5 305,695
$ 79,465
$ 6,000 76,910

$ 39,319
74,560 8 26,252 39,888
39,319 80,561 76,252 166,263
2,976 3,711
284 6,644
$ 36,000 220,355 22,822 39,530
3,678 740 46,258
705 25,071 13,289
3,383 730,353 31,893 109,432
B 34,383 220355 % 3030 8 132454 3 76251 & 305,695
(112,065) (972,515) (778,128)
(112,863) ET2515) (778,128)
3 : -3 -3 TS - 3 -
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p.2
Neptune Township School District
Special Revenue Fund
Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budgetary Basis
Year ended June 30, 2020
Preschoel
Education
Title 11} Title HI Aid Wrapg Around
Regular Inmigrant Regular Services
Program Program Title 1V Progigan ~ Enhancenent Totals
Revenues:
State sources $ 5718945 % 47,850 8 5,166,795
Federal sources 3 17,915 $ 1,720 § 33,064 2,678,865
Total revenues 5 17,015 § 1,720 3 38064 0§ 5718945 § 47850 8 8,445,660
Expenditures:
Curreny expeaditures:
Instruction:
Salaries of teachers 8§ 1,952,278 % 2,031,743
Other salarigs for instruction 757,950 751,990
Purchased professionat and technical services $ 11,375 94,285
Other purchased services 39,319
Gengral supplics 3,843 $ 1488 3 6,086 18,7243 171,461
Other objects 2,138 2,138
Total instnclion 15,218 1,488 6,686 1,731,149 3,096,936
Support services:
Sakaries of supervizors of instruction 114,082 114,082
Sntaries of program directors 140,658 140,658
Salaries of other professional staff 114,688 114,688
Sajarles of secretarin! and vlerical assistants 44,762 44,762
Salaries of master teachers 173,003 173,003
Personnnel services salaries 6,687
Other salaries 4,136 4,136
Personal services—employes benefits 2,285,664 2,292,592
Other purchased professional - technical services 20,000 332,707
Other purchased professional services 14,080 £4,080
Conir Serv - Trans (bet home & school) 275,000 275,000
Other purchnsed services §00 2,496 53,272
Travet 2,465 2,465
Suppiies and materinls 2,597 232 3,157 4,358 § 47,850 97,859
Total support services 2,697 232 26,253 3,072,896 47,850 3,665,991
Facilities acquisition and construction services: ’
Noninstructional equipment 3,125 5,123
Total facilities scquisition and construction services 5,125 5,123
Tolal expenditures $ 17,015 3 1,720 $ 38064 & 5504045 3§ 47,850 § 6,768,052
Otler Financing (Uses) Sources:
Contribution to school based budgets (1,862,708)
General Fund Contribution to Preschool Education 185,100 185,100
Tatal Other Financing (Uses) Sources 185,100 £ 1,677,608}
Total et changes in fund balance - - - - - -
Fund Balance, July 1, 2019
Fund Balance, June 30, 2020 $ - $ - $ - ¥ - 3 - 3 -

120




E-2

Neptune Township School District
Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Preschool Education Aid Expenditures
Budgetary Basis

Year ended June 30, 2020

Original Budget Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Variance
Expenditures:
Current expenditures:

Instruction:

Salaries of teachers $ 2,003,953 § (51,675) $ 1,952,278 § 1,952,278

Other salaries for instruction 781,700 (23,710} 757,990 757,990

General supplies 7,056 11,687 18,743 18,743

Other objects 2,700 (562} 2,138 2,138

Total Instruction 2,795,409 (64,260 2,731,149 2,731,149 -
Support services:

Salaries of supervisors of instruction 114,639 (557) 114,082 114,082

Salaries of program directors 141,344 (686) 140,658 140,658

Safaries of other professional staff 116,375 {1,687) 114,688 {14,688

Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 45,310 (548) 44,762 44,762

Salaries of master teachers 170,112 2,891 173,003 173,003

Other salaries 4,136 4,136 4,136

Personal services—employee benefits 2,237,599 48,065 2,285,664 2,285,664

Other purchased professional services 7,500 6,580 14,080 14,080

Contr Setv - Trans (bet home & schoof) 276,000 (1,000) 275,000 275,000

Travel 6,500 (4,035) 2,465 2,465

Supplies and materials 1,957 2,401 4,358 4,358

Total Support Services 3,117,336 55,560 3,172,896 3,172,896 -
Total expenditures $ 5912745 & (8,700) $ 5,904,045 % 5,904,045 § -

Calculation of Budget and Carrvover

Total 2019-20 Preschool Education Aid allocation § 5,718,945
Add: Budgeted Transfer from General Fund 185,100
Totat Preschool Education Aid funds available for 2019-20 Budget 5,904,045

Less; 2019-20 budgeted Preschool Education Aid (including prior year budgeted carryover} 1529042045!
Available and unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid funds as of June 30, 2020

Add: June 30, 2020 unexpended Preschool Education Aid -
2019-2020 actual carryover - Preschool Education Aid g

2019-2020 Preschool Education Aid carryover budgeted in 2020-21 _§ -
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Neptune¢ Township School District

Fiduciary Funds

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalenls
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Due to Student Groups

Fiexible Spending Payable

Payroll Deductions and Withhaldings Payable

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Position-held in Trust for Employee Benefits

June 30, 2020

Frast Agency
Unemployment
Compensaticn Student Tatal
Frust Activity Payroll Agency
$ 1160942 $ 133,724 % 541,380 § 675,604
25,269 29456 29456
1,186,181 § 133724 $ 571,336 $ 705,060
53,962 5 44,011 $ 44,011
$ 0 133,724 133,724
23,335 23,335
503,990 503,990
53,962 $ 133,724 § 571,336 § 705,060
§ 1,132,219
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Middle School Accounts:
Neptune Middle School

High School Accounts:

Neptune High School
Athletic Fund

Total Liabilities

Neptune Township School District
Student Activity Agency Fund

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements

Year ended June 30, 2020

H-3

Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2019 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2020
$ 20,967 3 84,252 b 95,033 $ 10,186
$ 83,150 b 108,442 3 86,871 $ 104,721
2,287 66,407 49,877 18,817
85,437 174,849 136,748 123,538
h 106,404 $ 259,101 $ 231,781 3 133,724
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ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accousnts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll Deductions and
Withholdings Payable
Flexible Spending Payable
Accounts Payable

Total Liabilities

Neptune Township School District
Payroll Agency Fund

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

H-4

Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2019 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2020
$ 517,881 $ 59,911,677 $ 59,887,678 5 541,880
29,456 29,456
$ 517,881 $ 59,941,133 $ 59,887,678 $ 571,336
$ 452,407 £ 59,806,125 $ 59,754,542 $ 503,990
18,101 107,707 102,473 23,335
47,373 27,301 30,663 44,011
$ 517,881 $ 59,941,133 $ 59,887,678 $ 571,336
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Statistical Section
Unaudited

Contents

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the district’s financial performance and well being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
district's most significant local revenue source, the property tax,

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the district' s current levels of outstanding debt and
the district's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to
help the reader understand the environment within which the
district's financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the district's financial
report relates to the services the district provides and the activities
it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is
derived from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
relevant year.




s

“3A0QE TORISO4 13N #10Z “0€ 2BR 24 I PAIIOYI21 J0U SLITNOWE ST "G

T9¢,~LT§ JO WNOTmE o U uon1sod 150 Snmnndoq 30 MIWNEISHY S PIFMDIL YoM “TeaA [205Y $10% 9T STLP parwswmidun ser g9 GEVO

‘womised 321 0} HSST 190 5¢ patiods: A[su01421d SOTETE] JO TODESGISSE(IAL AR PATHAL YO T3k oSty €107 97 W PATSTIId Sem £9 GSYD

"SpI0991 301051 PUE [y AMP3YaS YAV 80mog

95T LcC 12T §

LPOEORLIT & 001692 & 6ISUSTIcL §  OIGG000SC & ELCi¥GLET § SIL1I6ESC & VEUCLELSC S _GOpblozs? § ATl OPELEC §
(€61°8T8°+CT) (p6€ ¥ +T) (8LLTEC LT} (#08'0ZE61) (Z8UTeo L) {pr9eov 0T 98T 1€8'%6C (966'61¢) {Zr3r66)
SOTTIFFI F0L060°TL SISTILL 210°€67°6 L99'FEL YL 020°sH1°51 9£0'TL'S 6E6°0ET'S Y9509 L9%°5v9
CLORITEIE §  OPSTSOCET §  SUSTI60LET §  SOCROTTHT §  IEK906BET B L69°SOT'CFT §  OTS'LIOWHE §  POTLEYOPT §  LSLLOLOYT § TOTULL'9PT §
SIIFi8 1 8  OSBLISL S PIL698L $ 00681 §  vELE9T 8 VIEOSCT & 50991 S GYROILT  §  EOUISTL  § | SEE966 3
SOTGIT'T FegsTll SOV TH0 L FSOSITL LESO0F L ATEAl 18T0ITT 66L6E0°L 96L7 05T T BLY 683
C10°55L $  90TSL $  5S0¢LZ8 $  opTvEL $  L6%99T $  L81°5¢1 $ 1488 §  0S0°LL §  9cc00l $  L¥8%901 $
TeIT6clc & OOPCIOGIL S ISIeOlSte § _GlLIsc 6 § CRLYECHEL §  GGCOBCSET § 990 CHOTSe S S8090l16c $  LOCEOTIST § TOREPTIST §
(867 L6 6C) (8TCoLEST) T98T°CLTTT) (3c875cv°0T) (808C061) (19v°589°12) {61£'88L) (896+bL) (2oL 0Ly T) (0ZEF38T)
$OTTIFFL POL0G0TE SISTITIT 810°C6L°6 L99%EL'FL 0TO'SHI'ST SE0'TLES 586°0£T°C 819'9¢0%9 L98°L5t%9
TOUCOYLTT §  OSE006TEC § CTSPITOST §  6E0MLYOMT & ¥ES'6EVYET § OVLOSTSPT §  GVSI9SPPT §  PISCTOONT §  lTHL699YE §  SST0SY'%T §
00T 610C $10C 10T 9102 =074 ¥10T <10 T10Z 110E
‘g sy
ﬁu#ﬁﬂ.«ﬁb
(Burninonop Jo $150q [ondoon)
sres) [EOSL] UL W]
Jusaoduio)) Aq uOnISOd 19N

&)

s (00gog dusamo], sumdan

uonisod 151 SpLM-TISUILISAOS (2101,
(U2h3p) paR0LISSIUf)
pRoLRsaY
$55% [Eide Ul JUIUNSIAT]
PIM-UAURLIZAOL)

wonrsod 190 sspianoe add)-ssoutsng o]
pajoLnsarar)
S1asse [esIdes Uf JusTuRsaAl]
sonupoe 2G-ssomeng

uonsod 131 SAMANIE FEIEIULIA0E TEmO L
(1ogop) paromsamr)
pa12insay
510558 [RHieD U SUSHnsaAl]
SOTIALDE [EIUSUNLIIAGL)



9Tt

SLE19TS1 opC il TI§ <69l 80 0T ¥l 8067E60F1 SE9TSL C1 SEPDEE VT SE0EE9 €1 SPTLEESL oo LE07C]
LZ1 LIO0SE g
18°£05°S 86T LTS 816°LE8'L ¥95°006'L £95°909'8 LEE6LT'S LIEFEEL 8199068 COCPEE'S 0ZE'0TEL
4018y SLTWES 88T'LSS 008°LLS kg rery SO0°0TS [£5°Z18 BIPEE [3:3 {23 9EL'11E
STLGOH9 § SIITSES §  S0500ES §  SICINLE S £T60IFE  $ PETESSS  § 066TERL SOITELY $  LEPOIC § SiUsyE §
SIS C6o80L S PEBO00FIL § 000611 §  S9Crecoll $ ISOSLLS0l § _BTLTITES T SIS 9668 IGC0606 S 8evoccl6 $ _I8C1/8%8 S
669 SPE 1 900 SLET TI06LS ¢ 086SoTT TOTBIEL LLLBIET LIZOSET €26 1LPT PISEC LETL66 1
ZTT L6T 211692 SEL18T YZoTH BTN TIETiE 1F6'65C 0ELTEE BLLLTE 001°¢PL
LLYSEY'T PEECOET LLTLYTT 95T SPYOLOT SOF'COTE SEC0R0'T £610P1T SOLLE6T LELGPS°T
SIT0SHSOL ST ISP 1Ll 0I8ZIFSLL <C RO E11 GLr ST €01 166 05L96 3115748 052 1788 SPETIS6S PZE GLE Y
00% TOL'ERT [ESLET SELIOT
09ULTYT 859868 £967E8E T 08L0ZS bed A3y g =ric] LO6'S09 €80°CES 690°96% Z86°65F
BELLITT 0SE'6rET STL'E0ET CI6'8SHT 1L6'651T £60°LP0'T 0£F691'T 9IETHLT 8L9°LTLL 6T69181
GI8PLEF QLOEESE YECLITE QLFSETE P01'9L67T 996°L96'T ZTO'118T S9ETBLT BILEFOT AR 83
eV 1066501 6T 1L 9LI'88C"] 0T 158 6LLSOL TELTLS STTYSY Ty
6L6'86Y'S 66L'9T6'S YEETLYS'6 R SN TEVOOY'S 618'681'8 SH999L 35 PEEL YETLEIL SLYLO0S
YITTSE SrSSTIY SITTIVY POF095Y 198°G1E°E 69CIPRE THO06Y Y LE6TELY IS0TTL 1EFELLY
$6L'ESTS STHLOSS £90°065°9 L0ESSHS CLOTIER'S SIELEY'S O0E'1EEY TSI Y LT6'LI0Y 6¥9°189°C
961'818°1 GY8°L8ET TOS'EEIT SS0°THET GrEg6Y'T LOO IP0T ST EvSl £8TY161 LTFI9IT 85T 12T
S00°TESL 0L86E9°1 LEFTIST 1587 1L8°1 60 L3LT SOE9Z9°1 LEO18P°1 LEEFOLT FEr°965°1 BLETEL'T
S0L'69S T 090°TLE'! SLSIEPT 0L9°908°1 £E0ETT LLEYEEL L08LYG 150'888 <eLSrL 06651
IZH°ESL01 951°9€5°01 $O6'TII I $e3eLrol 91044701 $65°0L0701 86L'68L'8 €8CTIES 001°€0L'6 £POTHL'S
951°8EL°L TIPS OTTHGH' 1 L6 6798911 01t'960°1 0r O’ 56101 0656 SI'gIg
SLEQTD SE65°CED cL16¥9 TIL'6T G59°LES $95°E6Y Srivse [~ VLBE6S PIVELS
SISCETTY  § CSUTOECY  §  66S°EOrSY  § LLLDIOES § 860°BEST9 § cLEBI89E §  TIOCHS0S SSTTEYIS §  TLSESSEr $ 0 €85086Ly §
002 6102 S10Z L102 510 S10Z 710C <102 ZI0E 1102
(€ PUNE PIpUS IBAX
poNpnEL}
(Buirunoaso fo SISBG PRIV}
TIol Sreay, [eost] B 18T TONISOJ 1N w S990Ey )

ot

LSy [P0gas AmsEme], sumdan

sanuoAsl eiSerd SANIATIOE USTRUIA0T (210 ],
SuCQNQLOUSS pue Sesd edery
$IonNqUIUoD puw Guel Fulerdgy
noREHodsUen JWIPNS
{uonm;} noRINSU]
$901AEs 105 Sa8reyD
SAUANDE [EIUAMEIAACE)
$INTaAIY WeAZ0LY

sosuxdxg sy @0

250dx9 SPRIATRE 2dA3-SSASTY [TI0L
157099 JHENLY
DITALIS POOS

SSTLALAE 2dA1-ssameng

SASUAMND SIGIALOE [EJUSENLRACS (101
IG9p WS-Fuc] UC 35180
F[00995 LD

SYISTN] PUE 5I0IAIFS LOAANS DO PU SSAUSHY

uonEUcdsTen uspug

ALmag

jueld 70 nonERG)

ued JO SOUBUNTER pambay]

UOTEISTIEIpE (00135

GORROSTUIIIPE [BISUALy

LHS [PUOnInAgsu Hoddns 1000

UOQATOSIT O nIWmRAbIdE]

SONIALRS Boddns BRO

SSRLADS TURERH

IO TEIXOS PUB SMEPUINY
590G Uoddng

TORINSTY
SAMIARDE [EUSIILIIACLY
sasupdxy



“TedR SO AR WO SATT] 25UKIND FIOIIBA PUR STORRALOROS PUe STRIS PAIRLISIIUN SN PASLIINUL YU “TEIA [RIST 10Z ST3 UL pojuswreidunt sem $7 HSVD

‘uogisod 3ou 01 $3955€ 19T §¢ Paodal AETOmaId $2TERG 30 LOTROGISSL[IR1 I pasmbol yongm “renk [Basyy £107 0 U prindwsidart sex £9 gSVD

“Teak [E9SH $102 43 SuLmp 1q3p FUPERISIte SI2 0 JPUTEwal 953 [0 pred 10MSK] 3L T 910N

WASEN 9.Aq PAPUEY S{00YIS STOLEA JO SUOTEAGURS S

nodn pRSEq 51 STECTRGLEUOD Pie sjuesd fepded 1 T Jeak 03 Tead oy uoneronyy Juedgruis 3G, [0

"SPIO331 BLDSICT PUR -V SEPACIG WIVD BImMOg

ooz ot &) S (809wrrs) & (Eo'soTy) S (lecetar) $ ULCLE6D) § OLUI6LT S #8889l § Cizles) . &  ZBLFit T (covoes) § 19L0SID [BI0L
(zeree] SEI'TY ¥Iv0T 995SLL 09L°91¢ L6 06 0T BYI (EsTwel) LLIYST VLT 8TT sapianoe adi-ssausag
(Lipesse)  § (spossy's)  §  (ge0sTTy)  $ (€96W00°S) § LLIIWSTT) S ®E'O0LT § 18565 ¢ (ZTOUST) § 056l $  (6e8vis) 8 SOTIANOE [EIUSTMLISAGE)
BotisoJ 19N ©f s¥oeq)y
S OICiE & fecoride S 11600586 5 LLGOYCYE §  61609¢98 3 SSploles §  TeB0T8L §  ZO0ThwL 8 SE06LSPL § _LGLO9L0CL S APLA-OLASIP [BIOL
3096 BIgEl <86 L L€ SoF 1S cEg TvE (24 SRELET L0 SA0IANOE FLA-ssawsng EOL
8056 9I8E1 <861 155 [T SBE +< (54 SBECET LE0E »Ro
sainoe sdA-ssansnyg
FOL10S L8 LECIEL06 SLETSS 8 G srs v6 ¥5r 60598 SOUI0IES 185 0C8 PL TS 79 ¥L SOLCLTPL 0OTEE0TL SIOIARSE [EnBEDACS [0
PHE666 PI[[PoUED [ENDAT teak to1d - way [B1oadg
061'%EL £PLE0T £L5669'1 G00FIL LTO18S Y8E'ET6 wesly $65°69L 6LETOL 130T 1 SOOI STIOABYZISTI
9LEOR £95°121 oFT TS 9¢1'1T +O0'6 gI€T 0T 93T 961°1 LTTET SHinires U msRAL]
oTL'ESILY TIGPOLTS ST E0L6E 657" TS0°98 F1LE88°6Y SELOrEo SSL9RL6E 0CBECHE TEOLIQ6E 1216098 FEOLNALAUCS PUE SIS paIotOsamy)
' ZETYLS 006965 £E1'809 3014195 3G3P 10} PALAD] SOXT Aradalg
FITONCEE  §  GICISTSE S 6SYIGHFLE  §  oSRSL9E §  GYUSEU9E §  BOUETELE S THEOEME § S6TLS6CS §  S6ILSE'EE §  B6ILSEEE § sasodmd (815028 107 Patas] soxe Aedold
SIIATLOE [EIUATIIIAOL
UOBISG] 19N U1 $IFUBY ) JOI( PUE SINAIAY [T
Teces 1o) 5 (206G8196) 5 \50060Lc0l) § (WiCOLLHG) S 5i706v88) & 1B1L60518) § (BLLCSilcl) § ligcecorl) § (LiSvecyl) $ (ZoL 2o 2L) § onuEaAy/(ssuadie) 19U SPLA-IILIS [HO],
(ovELY) 0ZE8L [ 6ZTCLl C6T S9T 1506 7988V (£89'pE1) (119) LE5%T SAOLAROT 0dA3-SSITITIY
(+9'881°18) § (C8TBIE96) S (9e6'1sLzol) § {s0e'spses) §  (1L5°€90°838) § (6T00rI8) §  (Dorisrel) §  (es9gelwe) s (00ZWETHL) §  (660°8Y8TL) § SALLADDE [EIUSTIGIACL
ARG AIsu3dx) N
TRl E CiS9IBLl § ItClitol § I6Cets9l § COvLLZLl S _CI096Ll § LISEESOl §  OLCOLSS F 1/5189°LL $ _Glgsrcrl $ sanzaas] uresSoxd ISP [0
65E 862 1 SCEE09E Srr 19T 60 859°C L6V E80C ¥IS0I9T GEL 66V C OFTLEST CESPELE ¥6SLICT SoNURA0S WRIFOL $HRIANSE 5dA3 ssauISTq (0L
276 10S1 Py sl PECCES SPeEST 1 0T e9s1 AR LITEES | L6 GFS | (R 109%6LE suBANYLYTOD Put SR Furend)
61482 £69°0E€ 00L'§0E SL5°LEE 086°5EE T66'6EE Lanits 0ZY'8ET 6v0EST 1£T°4T 191093 JgENDY
S1T60E $  6IZIL $  60TO0L g 180°L¥O $  PI¥SES §  08E6ES $  BLUSEE § S06'ISE §  LOGLLS § 2907968 $ FIAIBS POOY
sa01A19S 10§ $aTrey))
sanLAnos adAyssoumg
0Z0Z §10T 810C £10C 910 S10T 10T <i0T TI0T 1102
"D SUNJ PPUI FIX,
PRUPIEUL]
(Buiunoson fo SISOy [Prdd90)
TIoT sIE9§ [2081d U2 L 357 ‘uonisod 1 ut soduey)
ol PLasiq ooyog dysmao], aumndan




8Cl

‘uonEULIOIUL fEUORIPDE
107 SIUBUIANEIS [RISUBTLY 21SBQ ST 01 SAIU 99§ JoA [ROSLY 31 JO PR AU 1I9YE [RUN PIIID Fursq s1eg 21 Wwom
siusTARd pre STEIS 1ST] AU JO 1[NSAX U1 AR PUNJ AMNUDAI [e1oads pue pung [REsE03 A1 UT SISSP 9L 1 AION

'5P10321 OIS PUE [~ (OS2 YIVD H0ImOG

666.1L0) § 0o/ 675) & lzoocie) ¢ (oigwpee) & lL12Z19)  § TIIrsss)  § (5ve16S)  § (BLicls) §  (68%979) (PCCe6s)  § SPUNY [EIUSUITLZACS 190 [[2 (0],
GEFTIe) § Wcl62s) & (z09cis) § (ospes) ¢ (igTle & ATirsest 3 Gra168) § BILTLS) § (5879¢9) § {FC5868) § (FOUSP) PUry snusAsl [erosds-pousisseus)
mUﬂ.: i E:uEEUPQ.O uur_uO mﬁ
TATCIETL & O6CE6LOIl § ODSCCADEl S TEB6LCl § 86800041 § 68568L€l §  ITSBIEOT § OVCIOLO §  SYEIE6D § 950100, § pung [210Us3 0L
{186°96) (807 1€T) o (1gpsse ) . . (gs17ess) aoue(Rq PNy (OGAP) paBissenr}
‘ SE5°TR6L ¥18°9€TE T T . SLYOFF'l 10€°0£¢°T 681°€95 0 pauBlssy
COIZIFFL §  FOL060°TL §  SIETIIIL §  8I0E6TE S L99WSLWL §  OTOSHIST § GE0TLER §  6EA0STS § 8GHYRLL § L98ISH9 § patLsy
PUDE [RIUSL)
0Z0c 610T 210T L102 910z croe +10T <10 ZI0C 110t
“0g sunf
Eﬁ«ﬂﬂ.ﬁﬂp
(Summonsp fo s150q i payipouy)
S7a & [ROSL U3 ] 158]

SPAM] [EIUSUNLIDAOL) - SIUR[RE pun{
&f PUSIT jooyag diysumo] sumdan



6C1

T-E AMPARAE WAVD eamog

samgrpuadxe feudeoucu
Jo o3muonmd B ST 9914595 193

SOOLEEq PRy Tl 95D 1N

(s9sn) seomos Smoueuy SO [IO],
PAeoTEs [ErU0E Jeak Joud - Wy eradg
DURMSTL WG SPICLy
WO SISTRIY,
O SIS,
{5250} $30un08 IVDTCULY SIYI0

samarpuadya (spun} Ao
SINUIA JO (ADTIOYI(] } $570xg
samyIpuaho (810,
safxens JsI0 ple 1S2amu]
edLowLg
[OLAIS 393
Aepno pegides
S[00Y3S A1)
suetdzd Feysq-up
SIYSUAG PUE SIVLALRS 10ddns 130 pur ssamsng
uopELodsURD WIpNS
wreid jo uoneiedyy
Jreyd Jo Paeusiue pasmbey
ASoloUN29) UOTBTLICH]
SIVATIS TRNUID
UOBERSIAHIPE (00025
VORERSTUIAPE [RIT005)
Hururen geis euononnsy
Arexqr] [ooyag
TORDMAS JO IIIA01dITy
seows ueddns mpp
$IINAIS RIEIH
0. [B1003 PUE SIUEPLIRY
:5901A39¢ 1oddng
BOOONASUY LONEITDE [Boads pue wiSsy
TOOAROSU]
saampuodyy

SNUIAML YEIOT,
$23m08 [eI3pa]
$201008 TG
SNOIUR[[AISTIA
sSumres 350103]
s395 nonepodsrer]

°%00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %TC %Ly %ET %01
604 EEYT [T sy s {SIreeed) 0T HEIE TIgLor's  §  POTBESE 8§ (8sC9il) (Zr9°L6) S SOrS0eT
- - - +¥S 666 - - - 16798 - B
PHEE6s
16¥'98
(808°L+0°T) (6p9°0Z81) (L8geeL ) (658°cL5°1) (L2L°€85"1) (6617651 (125T8IT (oLz'zery} {€6ETLLT) (626'60$°1}
208LPOT 6v9'0261 18¢'6eL™] 698°€49'1 LTLE8ETT 661°¢€6"1 1E8C8lT CLTTEYY $6ETLLT 6Z6°60E°1
GOLEEY'T ELI0LTT) TEH RS (696'T65°S) £0TPE1°C ZISL9Y'E POTBESE (688°20%) (249°L6) £OV'S06°T
6V LESSE 051682 86 ST £91'Y6 O3 16886 0T6 0 68 $83°CES LS [SIHECES oz'16°88 TV SIL6S RO 65118
T8¢ SLECSL TI$HT $09°04T
000°6¥1 000T0LYE orretLL 000°€0S
861°CIET PISHITE SLOTSTIE 108°10V6 TI0LOLT PESE0LE IrELoN's 869°L15°E 199°5£T°¢ TEF ALY
090 LIFT SrOE6E1 9677851 08L0TS oriTee TTT9ES LOG'809 £80'ES 650°965 TRE'EST
901°L80°11 oltorro! LBLFEV'E 801°LET SLICIFL 110°61£9 £6T°809°C £5E°THI LEOYER'Y SHeELlY
Z0L81TEl 816'€L0°C1 QETEEDFL LT I8! Tor 10911 666'61F 11 LEB'GET LT LOE'LTSTL 996'998'11 0T6T6H 1T
9ET'600°E ZI9uEle ZEI08LT TLE'5EST 630°F09T LISTOSE ZLLLSYT C05'L9Y'E SE6M19ET LEETLET
629'TLYD ZIE'8ESY PEE'66S'9 102°108'% ¥OL'6LSS TLETILS 166°CHS 996°L50'0 169°666°C LEGTEES
$B0°ELT SPYSSET £8£°0$6T TEYVRLT £06'8E6T $ECTOLE CEPRGTE SLTE61'E SIETLES LECIRGE
rZYEPE w1y OLYOFE 0617€6< 956'T6¢ 800'1LE 111289 6P THE TETEOE TELTEET
COT'S8L 9TEETS YORGLL 05t'8T8 960°6E8 SIS'SPS 603 186°018 668508 987482
0LST98T SPI'LE6T PPoTesHs BEL'OS0E LECTG6'T TSP'988T TIEF6LT 080°05LT UOWIT 199°015C
LSIPIETT £88°s5T'l LEFPOST YEELIS'T ¥IS'059"1 SECFIE] vrL'38C] &THE0Y1 2090141 0465681
00€'s
1£9°758 96£°L98 GEY'ECE 0L1°L06 SLOTEE 10576 (287986 £HE'GL0T CEOOTYL TISEETl
SL1°098 06T910°1 0LOTEL €5ITIS STOFLS 1497608 PIE6IL 66£°TCO [3¥5=24 88T'1T8
18990 91L'L9SL 100'FSE'L BT0°E90L 1667965, 9LGLITL 1€0°259°9 STEPLOL A THYROL'S
66%°C8L LEYTEL CLLTOL SOLYLO +58°69% £EC089 088689 SIE'TLO oP0'rLe £T6°CSS
$TLEEE 908" 1LE SC1662 LLE™96T $6HTET 1L LS'6PT LER'ROE LEL06E [8TTLE
SrP'S0E8E +95°500°0F 9ITHIT'SE 3CL°CRH 8 6T6'FLY B £P1°E6T9€ SE1'G0r'SE SPCEETSE 150°901°6€ 09L0STFE
PO S9L LS SL681CLE IO LPLYE TLE8EFEE AN DOL'E9E' 16 61605168 15T 83188 0$8°0£9°63 SBF PO TS
[98%18C SHEITE $O9'PSET SISRECT 880°TIST SEI'1EPT $COIITT S0L'G89T [{EFEIRTS 0T 6LV €
164758 Ly TIPSy 165'€89"LY £OF690°LY 0561149 SEFPOS ST ¥10°058"sy 10765 sF 0SE'89L Y TEFC6L0r
LOS°L1Y 6051 LEL'2E0°T 6001L LT0°T8E vREETE izt HOL'E89 SLE 0L 18€'€0T'1
LGOS 957 ITT OvE'TS I'T +0'6 S1ET 90T 93T°T 961°1 LETEL
[odir: e SLIYE 88¢TLEE 008'LLS ZIP995 $50°0F% 1£6°21¢ T8IPEE [T 9£L'11E
STH60F9 SILTOES ROS700E'S SIS IPLS £TH0TS'S PETEEC'S 066°TT8°S GOI'TELY KEPOTE STI'grL's
LT OPEEE GIEIFTSE 6RFIGYLE 3 T9COSLOE 6Y9'CE0°9E SO06IECE  §  THEOLYPE  § OSPLESHE S60FSCHE  §  [SEL9SPE
0Z0Z 610T 3102 £102 910 5102 ¥16¢ <107 Z10Z 1102
“OE QUL[ PApuR TeI L
patprieuy)
Sreaj [EdSTI0a] 152

T

Spum] [EIUSUIIAAGT) “SI0URRY pun UL SaTuey)
1msiY [oouag drysumeo L sundap]




0£1

*SP10221 IOLOSI 190IN0S

LOSLIO 00£°8¢1 612102 885°€TT $91°FE 9¢ 0z0T
£SO°SIy 1LS°1L 9EFT0¢ JAN 9L $O1°1 6107
LELTLEOT LLOELT 9£5°99¢ 979'FIv 1LY LTOOY 810T
600°F1L 988°LL 69V LEY 97108 9TL] 18911 L10T
LT0°18S 189°89 99t 00 c01°601 70§ $LTT 9102
$8£°€C6 LIF6 169°¢LE TTETOL €61°1 0F9°9<t §10Z
#S0°S1¥ 6SH 0T ¥181cT 976171 cegor P10Z
$O1°€89 ZEL601 01£°L8€ €eL 11 680°0 $  0vT'esl £102
6LETOL 83511 VLT 06E 8LTTT 6€T16T 2102
116966 § 665y § ILT68¢ §  0S8%9¢  § 165702 § 1102
ﬂmaorw : .om@.m m_.mpﬁmm S91BQY TesA .mow.a Jo muhﬂwﬁnmaxmﬂ nom aunf ﬁovﬁm
Auoeg AN SIYD PIOA I3k Jolg IBa A 1eosId
Jo punysy
ﬁoﬁ.ﬁﬂmﬁg
SIRa X TeIsIJ U], 1887}

80.IM0S A 9nUAY [220°T IS - purtd [BISUSD
19L0sK( [00Yos digsumoy sumdaN

&I



TOWEXE] 3O PIEOR AIUTION ‘SHGRIT JO 10RNSY “IOIII07) PUE JOSSITFY 3BT, [PADIIYA ‘SPIOIEH J01ASK] [90mog

001§ Jod I SormINEY, 4

POUTOSP SILAIIS FUCIRID SB JALAI AOINTRIS TOZLIA JO S5ED YL 1t 5% 40 XEI SARI3! 5505 §Bnomy 100 paseqd el Auzodosd o1 walkgns 1e8o0] opy
~ semreduio]) washs JFuassopy pue qderdap] auoqdspy, 0 WAmdmbg pUE Stuawajdul] AISUTTA JO INEA, AqeNE], ¢

emAC STRRddE XE1 Fama] JO POOUTSNT] Sil PUE SUORTNIEA J0HISM 1 1250]2 BT Funmsos ‘(feak 19d ACISAU U JO 9407} SWSWSSISSE / SUonadsl Auadoid
WIPHGD 01 107 W AWROT) GINOURIOA] LI PAONpONL Sex. weiSesd 1opd ' "DORTXE) JO PIEog AJMed 941 Aq PAIapio udga R0 SIUISIISTeaY]
‘nonExT JO pIEoq Aunos Tows AQ PoqsyqeIss ST (3njea 1NIERE 10 J27) SO[eA T 10 98710250 WO 18 PIESISST 90 01 pammbox sy Ledord ey

IBION
00L2S1'L0TY $L610 DOL'LS1°LOT Y - 00LLSLLOT Y 001000°LLL QO1°LET'LY 000'S€8'TLS 0086 008'86T 005°80T'65E°C 00F°895°05 020
000FOELED 6L60 0O0"F0L LE0 - 000POCLED'Y 008°61L'PLT 005'859'89 0P EEL RIS 003’6 000382 00T HLSELIE Q0E0LT IS 6102
COLTEE06'E 6060 0OL'THE06'E - 00L'TEE'906°S 001'€LL™LST 000'959°89 608°0TL 098 008's 008°98C 006'065'+90°S DOSEECHS 8102
003 669°519°S Lol 008°569'519°€ - 008'569°$19°C 00£°€98°L51 008°86C79 000°ES0'ETS Q086 008°HLT 008'96T°LT8T 00£°L88'TS L10Z
OI09STLESE 650°L OLOST LES'S - 010°'95TLESE 00179621 005°801°L9 00L°9EL'B0S 008'51 005°619 QIF9ZrL8LT 002'965°5F s10T
06T S3FR0S'E Lzol 067587 $05°€ - 06Z°S87'80S™E Q08'185"1T1 COFErSes 000'661"FES 00891 008'TIS OPL'6OVTHL'T 05€'C90° 1t S10T
ObL'ETE005'E 6571 08T LOELO8'T - 03TLOCLOET 00+ 11988 00T'188°T9 038'00+"86€ oot'sl 000109 00°PIY0TET 00L'9LE'9E ¥10Z
0TZ'§rS'S8S7E %11 CEL'IE9'SO6T £EE089'5 00V 166'668°T 006°56°68 00T'188'T9 00t 9L E6E 001'51 000°109 Q00'165'91ET 008'€85°9¢ 10T
OLE9RY'999°E 98Ul £E8'95H0T6T £EE09'S Q0591806 008 1LL'06 008°408'SS 00L°€5E" 165 00191 000109 Q08 POTGLEE T I9T'6E TI07
o8L'8LL0S9E § 08T 8 LPFISCS06T § LyTHSES S 00TRESL6ST S 00TLYI06 $ OOFESFYS  §  OOLTHEWRE S 0091 0ACTLO9 ¢ C09'9TRIZET  §  005PIEsE S 1T
[E5N P S{EEEL _SSUMROUGNd  OR[EA passassy [BIOL TRELEdY TELEETpa] TEBISUG0) ) oy Wieg EEPESY PURT WESRA e SRy
pozmenbg Auno)) el jooysg TORERIRA N popug
[P0V PARRMSY s [MOL A
[esty

PRlpOBIN
S1E33, [B51I B3], 15T
ALraddoad lqRNE], JO I0[EA, [FILIY PUR ST[EA Passessy
of LIS [PO4YF AYSIM] IUTIIIN



€l

‘1083255 ¥u ] [Rdmumy pue spI09sI 19L0SKJ 30Mmos

007001 eLel Fish 4 951 £0°6e 66°Sh - 66'sY Q20T
00001 el Ly 651 T6¥e FISE - a5y 610T
00°C0T §eet 6LV L8] 86°FE sy - sy 8102
00°001 061 weY &1 L0ee SUor - sUsr LIOT
007001 8671 6t IS 95vE LYSF - L8'CY 9102
007001 el LGS 8l Yt Tior - Ti'or g1z
00°001 €8¢l el £61 A 2 L¥oy - Lror ¥10E
007001 STHl 1459 09’1 w9ce 6¥'9F - 6%°9% £10T
06001 071 ot £9'1 QT PO'LY 6L°0 SToF pALi
% 00001 % 9T¥l % IT¢ % 91 % 1l'le Y% 99LY % 0870 % 989 [16T
Aunas SRS Aresqry drysumo], 102 [HOL VMG Ay dseq papug
'Y XL YINOURIOT ax3] sumdsp aumadap] W vonead e L
Burddepend [RISUBD e8I
PUE 1035 [G10L So1Ey BUIGdRIISA() 131051 [O0UDS dmSEmo] sumidang
ageuaned

(2104 XD [D301 JO 2307U50.45])

8ITT 070 660°0 ££0°0 TFLO PL60 - ¥L6°0 az0z
SPIT 8e0 1010 ¥E0'C 6+L°0 6L6°0 - 64670 610T

0L1'CT 6270 010 ¥E00 85270 6460 - 6L670 810T
L¥TT 06Z°0 £6070 £€0°0 88L°C LL0°T - LEO'T Al
97T v6c' o SE0°0 S8LG 680°% - 6801 910¢

LTTT 600 <Iro ££0°0 8L°0 L3071 - L2t g10T

60L°T 19¢°0 6L1°0 ™00 8060 65T'1 - 6571 4t
995°T £9£°0 FAINY] 1+0°0 L£870 £61°1 - £61°1 £10C
[Zec £5eQ 01’0 oo 3080 o811 0200 981’1 zloz
L&F'T $ 9se’0 $ ARY $ TG0 $ LLL0 $ 06171 3 ozo'e $ QLT § 1102
Ao’y SIADSI] ArBIQU] drysumo] Rad o], QOMIG srey dseg Papux

ey XB, IENOLIIOT a111 sunydeny aurgden 192 BonesIa0 Tesi
Surddepard [e1aUa0) TeosLy
PUE 102I1(T [10], saey sulddeiond PSI(] [oogag dngsumo] sumdang
(anjoa passasso fo gOrg Lod a1y}
pavpnEaq)
STEOJ [l Ua] 1587

saqey xe] Auadorg Suxddepiea() pue 10311g
1LESI( [0040g dRSUMO], SIEIN

fon



£el

-108533SY X2 [, [edIDIInA pue SpI0osy] PLSK] ©2mos

%36 009°I8Sv¥1_ $ %Sh'S 006°LE1°62T __ $ el
%E$0 ¥ 00000t ST yoorg Surdwmy 35807 587
%5£°0 L 000°007°01 sIaUpEd YoUURD
%¥<0 b 009°708°6 Ansnpuy o0y Mred sundan
YT “00SSY 22BNbG 9ACID) 153 M

%ZE0 01 0009v1%6 %¥E0 01 000°TEEFT dro)) syedsoy werpLeiA
%SE0 6 00€° LYo Y1 -00ssy Suneajy duter) 34010 U0

%110 9 007918 11 %9¢°0 8 000°SST°ST 1T N BACID) U0
%ZE 0 6 006916 %8E°0 L 00£°LEO9T puefirepy Jo jusmdo[sasg qH
%8570 £ 000°008°91 %650 9 00L°8LE0T daq xe], dord ste1sg [eay LewWlem
%Ly 0 ¢ 00¥°60L°CT 2%55°0 ¢ 001°LY6°TT D771 “aurgdaN SPUR[POOM
%6570 14 001°508%T sSurpjoy sumday €

%ILO z 00296570 %790 € 009°6LT°9Z di0 fED-YoRIN % (e joouq Surdump
%5670 I 001°269°LT %1870 z 009°SE1PE OT7 “Sepua)) Surddoyg eze(q sumdan
%960 1 00Z'SZr oF $ s1misg 129y ANG % DT ‘siupred sumdaN

IM[BA PISSISSY quey aneA aNjRA POSSISSY ey EICET IaAedxe],
JaN IOSI Passassy 9N 101LSI(T possassy
10130 % s[qexe], 2101 3O % Slqexef,
1102 0Z0T
paupneupy
08y SIea X SUWIN PUE oo X JUaLn))
syaked xe] Auedorg redoutry

oms1(] jooyrs diyswmoy, sumdan



6-f

~pojeImISa 318 SATRI PUE STUROUIR UONOS[[09 STTL 294 Tepua[ed 1) JO PUS St} YSnoIy) Unl STONIA[02 redomomy
~spuatsambar Azojniess Iod se [y Ul PRlos][00 21am S3TAS] Xe} [00TIs
9A0QE 31 "I2oA [00TDS 21 JO PuS o) 03 Joud 20UB[eq SNBSS SY IDLNSTP [00Y2S 9] OF UL 03 pannbai st

* 1019911070 Xe ], [edIOIUmIA] PUR SPIODSIIDWISI(] 99IN0g

Aredormu e “amatels 211§ A9sIaf MAN IOpU[) "I0JAR([0D XB, Tedionmya; 971 AQ P230S1[00 2B S9XE] [OOUDS SOI0N
+ %08°1 + %0786 TLTLOLS +  09.°899°88 TLTOPS 6E 070T
* %0171 * %06'86 60¥°LEG S8 x 888°¢85°0g 61 1¥T8E 6107
%6<°T %1986 90L°9£9°¢8 LLLPISYS 631 167°LE 8102
%Y1 285786 TITTLI6L SO T1£08 79€9¢5L°9¢ L10T
%65 T %1986 000°001°SL TTI'LST9L 6¥9°6£0°9€ 9102
%Sl 265986 000°0ST°EL 1ZT°ISTvL 890°6TESE 10T
%11 %6986 199°20T°1L L6L LY TL THE9L9 e 10T
%671 %IL 86 TPO'6EL°69 6L6°TSI'OL OSHTES'VE €10T
2%06°1 %01°86 86615789 owmnmhmh% 860 7SS FE 10z
%8%'1 %186 SRICOFLY 3 £89°969°89 3 1€£°695°FE {10
SIEO X Aaor] JUNOUTY Ied & [eosL] Jea X [edasLy 0¢ aumny
1usnbasqng 30 sBepuanisd 213 10] PAIALT AU 10J PRS00 papugq
I SUOTINI[OD AAST 213 JO Jed X [BISL] saxe ] Tedroruniy DUE PolAS] Te3 X 1BOST
Y UTIA P10af[o)) soxe, [ediommia SeXe L, 100735
paypaeur)
SIBo X [BOSL] U], 158

STONDI0]) Pue selaeT xe], Atedory
1Losiq [ooyas drgsumo], sumdaN



'y

“SJUSTUSIE)S JRIDUBNY J(SBG S} 03 SIOU SY3 U PUNCY 97 U3 1qap FUIpTeIsine $3o1usIp ay) Suiprefal sfreie(l 810N

-Jea4 tepuaes Joud ot 107 uonerndod
pue swosul Jeuosiad Swsn pare[Ra[Es 918 SoNeI 259, wiep uonemdod pue swoou reuosiad 10§ $1-f 295

“[-1 910pRYdS WAV WHISIT 30mMOg

e

001°LE %0070 - - - 0z0T
600°LE 2000 - - - 6102
6L9°CE %0070 - - - 10T
LELTE %0070 - - - L10Z
L68°1€ %0070 - - - 9102
0£8°1€ %0070 - - - $10T
0£8°1¢ %0070 - - - ¥10Z
0£8°1¢ %5617 000°St1 - 000°s¥1 €102
6LT°08 %+3°0 000°19°¢ . 000°sZEE 000062 z10Z
0¥0E 24L8°0 000°0¢E’c § 000006 $  000°9cr 1102
L BHdRD 12 . LESI(Y (B30, uoyedide] spuog “0¢ aung
SUOOU] [RUOSI3J - JO sareonIa)) UOnESqO papug
Jo oBmuaniag [ed2UsD) eI [edst]
SOMAIDY [EIUSUILISACD
psuprRU)
STEa A [BOSLI UQL ISE'T

01-r

adK 1 £q 3g9(7 SurpuessinQ JO souey
wisI [ooydg diysumoy sumdsn




9

<

“#1-[ Tl pUnOY 2q Wed vyep uonemdod q
“eqep xe1 Atadold 1oy o-r 995 ®

190N
001°LE %0070 - - 0T0T
¥88°CE %0070 - - 610T
6L9°CE %0070 - - 810T
LELTTE %00°0 - - L10T
L6S°IE %0070 - - 9102
0£8°1€ %0070 - - §10T
0£8°1¢€ %00°0 - - ¥10T
0€8°1¢€ %0070 000°SH1 000°SH1 €102
6L7°0€ %170 000°S19°C 000°S19°C Z10e
FOV 0 %8170 000°0€e’s  $ 000°9¢€’¢ § 1102
a ede) 194 Aiado1g T Supuesing suonanpag uonedonied 0¢
Jo , enep 1931 papuoyd JO SaeORIR) sunp papug
s[gqexe] [ENIoY [eloUal) 19N pue spuog Ie3 A 12381
J0 35musoieg uopesnqo
AT

[§ i)

SUIPEEISINQ 3G3(] POpUog [BIFUAD)

papneEun)
SIEa X TBOSII US], ISe]
SupueIsing 193] papuog [BIeUsl) 19N JO SONBY
1010sI(Y [ooyos drysumo ], sumdeN



L

“Iooyg( soueu digsumo], sunjdeN pue SPIOOSIPMOSK]  9IIMOS

“nemAed SmddepIsao yors 30 qep oy Surdedar Jo] 9[qisuodsal aJ0JaIsY) PUB JUIPISAI © ST JoArdxel A12A2 TR
AjduI 10U S50P STQ) I9ASMOH FUNOOSE OJII USYE)} 3q P[NOYS SISSIUIST] PUE SIUSPISAI 8U3 Aq SUIOQ USPINA 12P SN 343 “9ap
wwie)-Suoy Aedal pe onsst 01 AJ[IE S10L0SI 973 SULISPISUOD USUM TEM] SSZIUS000. ssanoxd siy ) -digsumo ] sumadoN Jo sesssUISng pue
SJuspIsal 9y £q suwIoq St 1en) sjueweAos Surdderroao asous Jo 1G5p Supuesino 24z Jo worpod Sy SS1RNIISI SNPSYoSs SHT,

-JOLYSI(] 21 JO saLrepumoq o1yder50s5 a1 M ‘wed Ul 1ses| Je “9pIouIos JBy) IS0l e STHAWIaACS Surddeimag) 30N

yeFOre9rY $

ST Or8ior
8LT0SL91 %LTE
000°000°C 2007001

9L1°060°8C $  %00°001

0LT‘6ST°TIS
000°000°C

9L1°060°8C $

192 Smdde[1sn0 s1qeorpddy
JO 2IByg pITewInSH oFmuasiag
P3jewnsy

(4w}

Surpumsing 192

popreun)
0Z0T “0¢ sUnf Jo sy
199 S9nIALDY [EruewIAon SuddeeaQ Jo soney
10L81(] [00YaS drysumo ], sumdaN

19op Surddereac pire 150.00p [R10]
195(] 19911 3oLsI(] [oogag dmsumo], sumdan
1qop Surddepasao eI0IqNSg
HINOWROA] JO AIUN0D)
Loy sferamag sumdan jo drysumoy,
199D 12110

drgsumo 1 sumdan
soxe Auedoxd g predeiiqag



81

“1eaf (2357 10T 3 SELUNP SPUOS SMPIESING S 30 PR 3 O Pred 101sK] S0Y BeN

$pa0&32 1DLOSKT PUE BONWE L JO UOMIAKY "AINSEaI] 9 JO NBUIRd(] Kassaf maN JO LIS LI Hoday [UTy SAGREY JO PROSQY

I0UNOT
%000 %000 %000 %00°0 %000 %000 %00°0 %010 ST 2475°S o 399p 30 28enind v se
g S 03 21quoidde 1qop 1ou oL
26 TI0TEL T CeesTiEsl | §  [Z6Llevirl §  seresiorl £ 186'wLgIfl $  vZL 8T oCl S P IE0 el S prSsecspl §  SO06IFFFT  §  9BF66EOFL g widnew 109p el
T = B - = - - 0005kl 000°§19°C [ ] 03 SEoIdE 193 PU EI0L
T6£110'T91 £ SSTSTURST  §  LISLSHIFL  $  SEYISITP] § I86°ELETIEL $  PILSPGECI §  vEeTeErt S pPEOLESET $  SOUWRO'SFL S 98FSSL'ISI $ e BLEYe
0Z0T 6102 810T 7107 S10z SI0Z ¥10Z <107 Ti00 1102
e —
£eC 110 E9] s[04l i Gop (50T
- [le}] EP 008 PAPIOY PN
S TI0TOT 3 {AZV IO % ¥) I IR
-
002 P8T 050 S vonene4 pozzenbs Say
e
OorFe30slTL & Lv]
8L TEE 06 € 8107
00 HDTLE0 Y 6107
00L'LET°LOTF 0202
$158Q TODEN[RA paziEnbI

0Z0T 152 A, [e061 103 UORRIEIR) WSTEI 193¢ P53+

POUPTEE[Y
sreag [Esiy 551 159
uAmRURIONUY WFIEI 19T 1T

€14 uonTNp Jo preog dysuao], aumadan



Neptune Township School District
Demographic and Econonic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population Personal Income Rate
2011 27,935 $ 30,404 12.1%
20142 27,963 30,279 12.0%
2013 27,389 31,830 10.7%
2014 27,914 31,830 8.2%
2015 27,902 31,830 7.8%
2016 27,574 31,897 5.8%
2017 27,789 32,737 5.3%
2018 27,844 33,679 5.0%
2019 27,384 37,009 4.3%
2020 27,350 *# 37,100 * 14.1% *

Source:  NIJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development

Regional Economic Information System
Bureau of Economic Analysis
US Department of Commerce

* Estimated - Current Year Information Not Yet Published

2011- 2020 Per Capita Income for Neptune Township

)-14
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Neptune Township School District J-20

Insurance Schedule p.1
Year ended June 30, 2020
Unaudited
Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
Mulii Peril Package Policy
New Jersey Schools Insurance Group
Section I - Property:
Blanket building and contents $ 500,000,000 $ 5,000
Flood Zone Aor V $ 25,000,000 3 500,060
Flood Zone - All Other $ 75,000,000 $ 10,600
Earthquake 3 50,000,000 5 5,000
Extra expense $ 50,000,000 $ 5,000
Business Income / Tuition $ 200,000 $ 5,000
Loss of Rents $ 400,000 $ 5,000
EDP equip, data, media, extra expense 3 500,000 $ 1,000
Energy systems-boiler and machinery $ 100,000,000 $ 5,000
Demolition/Incr. Cost of Construction $ 25,000,000 $ 5,000
Blanket contractors equipment Inc in property
Cameras, musical instruments Inc in property
Glass coverage Inc in property
Seetion II - General Liability:
Bodily injury and property damage $ 31,000,000
Sexual misconduct $ 17,000,000

Section ITI - School Board Legal Liability Policy:
Agaregate limit of liability $ 31,000,000 3 10,000

Section IV - Crime;

Blanket employee dishonesty $ 500,000 $ 1,000
Depositors forgery b 500,000 3 1,000
Computer Fraud 5 500,000 5 1,000
Money and securities $ 25,000 b 1,000

Workers Compensation:
Section A Statutory

Section B - Bodily Injury by Accident $ 3,000,000
Bodily Injury by Disease - cach employee $ 3,000,000
Bodily Injury by Disease - policy aggregate $ 3,000,000
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Neptune Township School District J-20

Insurance Schedule p.2
Year ended June 30, 2020 {Continued)
Unaudited
Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible

Automobhile:
Bodily injury and propetty $ 31,000,000
Personal injury protection $ 250,000
Uninsured/underinsured - Private Passenger Autos $ 1,000,000
Uninsured/underinsured - All Other Vehicles

Bodily Injury per occurance $ 15,000

Bodily Injury per Accident 5 30,000

Property Damage per Accident 5 5,000
Comprehensive and collision _ ACV $ 1,000
Environmentai Liability:
Policy aggregate limit of liability-primaty $ 2,000,000

Each Incident $ 1,000,000 3 50,000

Umbrella Liability
Each Claim & 50,000,000
Anmnual Aggregate $ 50,000,000
(Fireman's Fund Insurance Company)
Student Accident:
Medical per injury $ 1,000,600
(Arch Insurance Company & US Fire Insurance Company)
Fideiity Bonds
Business Administrator/Board Secretary $ 300,000
Asst. Bus. Admin, / Asst, Bd. Secretary by 300,000
Accountant I $ 300,000

(All Bonds are written through Selective Insurance Company)

Source: District records.
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W’ WISS

A PARTNER TO GROW WITH

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Neptune Township School District
Neptune, New Jersey
County of Monmouth

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Neptune
Township School District, in the County of Monmouth, New Jersey (the “District”) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 19, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and
the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Sat &, )

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

Z(/,uua ¥ &W
WISS & COMPANY, LLP

January 19, 2021
Florham Park, New Jersey
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A PARTNER TO GROW WITH

Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal and State Program and
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Neptune Township School District
Neptune, New Jersey
County of Monmouth

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Neptune Township School District’s, in the County of Monmouth, New Jersey (the
“District”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance
Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the District’s major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. The
District’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations and the terms and
conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal and state
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients
of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for major each federal
and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs
for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

St G, (b

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

Wissr o+ Crupary

WISS & COMPANY, LLP

January 19, 2021
Florham Park, New Jersey
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p.1

Neptune Township School District

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. General

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include the
federal award and state financial assistance activity under programs of federal and state government for the
year ended June 30, 2020, The District is defined in Note 1 to the District’s basic financial statements, All
federal awards and state financial assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as
federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies are included on the
schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

2. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented
on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the enterprise fund, which
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and those recorded in the special revenue fund, which are
presented using the grant accounting budgetary basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Note 1 to the District's basic financial statements. The information in these schedules are presented in
accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Singfe Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Therefore, some amounts presented in these
schedules may differ from amounts presented, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements
because the schedules present only selected portions of the operations of the District, it is not intended to and
does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the District.

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the District’s basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a
GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements and schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and
special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted
by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the fiscal year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. The general fund is presented in
the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis of accounting with the exception of the revenue
recognition of the two last state aid payments in the current year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2,
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p.2
{continued)

Neptune Township School District

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

Year ended June 30, 2020
3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (continued)

For GAAP purposes those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and
recording of the last state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special
revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with NJSA
18A:22-44.2,

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $142,474 for the general fund
and $42,179 for the special revenue fund. See Note to Required Supplementary Information for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special
revenue funds. Federal and State award revenues are repotted in the District’s basic financial statements on a
GAATP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 135,996 $42,130,175 $ 42,266,171
Special Revenue Fund 2,678,865 5,724,616 8,403,481
Food Service Enterprise Fund 1,285,258 16,690 1,301,948
Unemployment Trust Fund 63,853 63,853
Total award revenues $4,163,972  $47,871,481 $ 52,035,453

4. Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.
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p.3
(continued)

Neptune Township School District

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

Year ended June 30, 2020

5. School-wide Program Funds

School-wide programs are not separate Federal programs as defined in the Uniform Guidance; amounts used
in school-wide programs are included in the total expenditures of the program contributing the funds in the
schedule of expenditures of Federal Awatds. The following funds by program are included in school-wide
programs in the District,

IDEA Patt B - $ 972,515
Title I 778,128
Title HA 112,065
Total $ 1,862,708

6. Other

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Donation Program represent cucrent year value received
and current year distributions, respectively. TPAF Social Security contributions represent the amount
reimbursed by the State for the employer’s share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the
year ended June 30, 2020,

The post retirement pension, disability insurance and medical benefits received on-behalf of the District for
the year ended June 30, 2020 amounted to $8,781,504. Since on-behalf post retirement pension, disability
insurance and medical benefits are paid by the State directly, these expenditures are not subject to a single
audit in accordance with New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, however, they are required to be reported on the
Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance, as directed by the funding agency.

7. Indirect Costs

The District has clected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed by the Uniform
Guidance,
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Neptune Township School District

K-6

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30, 2020

Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether
the financial statements audited were prepared
in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to the basic financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major

federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:

Unmodified

Yes X No

Yes X None Reported

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X None Reported

Unmodified

Yes X No

CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.010 SO10A190030 Title I, Part A (Grants to Local Education Agencies
84.010 S010A190030 Title I, Reallocation (Gra(liigit)ell),ocai Education Agencies
84.010A S010A190030 Title I, SIA (Grants to Lo((jsla]’;slgzill)lcation Agencies Cluster)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and

Type B programs:

$750,000
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p.2
Neptune Township School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Results (continued)

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major state programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major
state programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with NJOMB Circular 15-08 as applicable? Yes X No

Identification of major state programs:

GMIS/Program Number Name of State Program or Cluster
General State Aid Cluster:
495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid
495-034-5120-084 Security Aid
495-034-5120-086 Preschool Education Aid

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: $1,175,243

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditec? ‘ X Yes No
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Neptune Township School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)
Year ended June 30, 2020
Part IT — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

No compliance or internal contro! over financial reporting findings noted that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

K-6
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p. 4

Neptune Township School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

Part I - Schedule of Federal Award and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of
noncompliance, including questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs,
as required by 2 CFR 200 Section 516(a) and New Jersey Treasury Circular OMB 15-08,
respectively.

Federal Award Programs

No compliance or internal control findings noted that are 1equned to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200 Section 516(a).

State Financial Assistance Programs

No compliance or internal control findings noted that are required to be reported in
accordance with New Jersey Treasury Circular OMB 15-08.
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Neptune Township School District
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Year ended June 30, 2020

Not applicable as there were no prior year findings.
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